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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BO_ARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARB E C E ! V E DI

T
APPLICATION FCR PERMI MAY 2 4 2o

SECTION|. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATICN, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be compieted for alf projects. SESS@:%: l:l\’:é\?lléwgg:}m

Facility/Project Identification
Facility Name: UJ.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis
Street Address: 1201-1213 Butterfield Road

City and Zip Code: Downers Grave 80515
County: DuPage County Health Service Area? Health Planning Area:

Applicant/Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Qak Brook LLC

Address: xas 75093
Name of Registered Agent; C T Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Stephen Pirri {President)
CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093
Telephone Number: 214.738.2700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Carporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Govemnmental
Limited Lizbility Company i Sole Proprietorship a Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies muslt provide an Nlinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pannsr specifying whether each is a gensral or limited pariner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all comespondence or inquiries during the review period)
Name: Edward Clancy

Title:  Attormney

Company Name: Ungarett & Harris LLP

Address; 70 W. Madison Suite 3500, Chicago lllinols 60602
Telephone Number: 312,977 4487

E-mail Address: eclancy@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405

Additional Contact

{Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: A

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Mumber:
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Applicant /Go-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Alliance LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093
Name of Registered Agent: C T Carporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Stephen Pirri (President)
CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75083
Telephone Number: 214 736.2700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

| Non-profit Corporation O Parinership
| For-profit Corporation O Governmental
5| Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited Kability companies must provide an IRinols certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all comespondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Thomas L. Weinberg

| Title: _Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Company Name: .S Renal Care Inc
Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350 Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214-738-2700

E-mail Address: Tweinbera@USRENALCARE.COM

Fax Number: 214-738-2701

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner._Anar Real Eslate, Inc.

Address of Site Owner: 1213 Butterfield Road, Bowners Grove, {llinois 605615

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is fo be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentaiion, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownershl p, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.

S

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: USRC Oak Brook LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Pkwy #350, Plano, Texas 75093

O Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

x] Limited Liability Company d Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liabilily companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Slanding.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest In the licensee must be identified with the % of

0wnersh| p.

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130,140). If the related person or entity is parlicipating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interast and the amount and type of any
financial contribution. .
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.}

Provide documantation that the project camplies with the requirements of liinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the propased project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain

maps can be printed al www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format In addition please provide a siaternent attesting that the project complies with the
: Lk .

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
__[Refer to application inslructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requitements of the Historic Resources
PreservatlonAcL

B ¥ L]
AppucAnou FORMA
7 o e W =
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT
1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer fo Part 1110.40 and Pad 1120.20(b}]
Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]
O  Substantive [0 Part 1120 Not Applicable
[] Category A Project
X Non-substantive (Xl Category B Project
[} DHS or DVA Project
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2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a bref narralive description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined tarms, NOT WHY it is belng done. If the projedt site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
descriplion of the site. Include the rationale reganding the project's classification gs substantive or non-substantive.

USRC Oak Brook, LLC {"Applicant”) proposes to establish a 13 station in-center hemodialysis facility at
1213 BuMerfield Road, Downers Grove, Hllinois 60515, The facility will utilize leased space to be built cut by
Applicant. The facility will provide both incenter hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysls for patients with End
Stage Renzl Disease ("ESRD").

USRC Oak Brook, LLC will be in HSA 7.

This project is "non-substantive” under Planning Board rule 1110.10(b) as it entails the establishment of an
In-center hemodialysis center provide renal dlalysis services.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Parl 1120.110) associated with the project, When a
project or any compenent of @ project is to be accomplished by lease, danation, gift, or olher means, the
fair market or dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related 1o the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must
equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts
Modernization Contracts $585,000 $585,000
Contingencies
Architeclural/Engineering Fees $42,000 $42,000
Consulting and Cther Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (net in construction
contracts} $70,157 $88,601 $168,757

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction {project

related}
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment $974,666 $974 868
Other Costs To Be Capitalized $91,244 $91,244
.[A?agisitlon of Building or Cther Property (excluding '

- a

! TOTAL USES OF FUNDS ~ $1,763,067 $98.601 $1,861,668

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $1,763,067 $98,601 $1,816,868
Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (projecd related)
Morlgages

Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants

Other Funds and Scurces
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $1,763,067 $98,601 $1.861,668

ERIC,SEQUENTIA R
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, wilh respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the fast two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes [x] No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
[x] Yes [ No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fisca! year when the project achieves or exceeds lhe targeﬁl
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ __$2.111.133

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

] None or not applicable [X] Preliminary

[0 schematics Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): _8/1/2012

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

] Purchase orders, leases or contracls pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ Project obligation is contingent upon permitissuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation™ document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

State Agency Submittals

Ara tha following submitials up to date as applicable:

N/A [] Cancer Reglstry

N/a [ ] APORS

N/A [] Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

N/a ) Al reponts regarding outstanding permits
Fallure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following farmat, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The iype
of gross square foctage, either DGSF or BGSF, musl be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portien of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose:h'gtt)::ll Gross Square Feet

New . Vacated
Const, Modernized | Asls Space

Dept. / Area Cost Existing ! Proposed

REVIEWAEBLE
Medlcal Surgical
Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

1 Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE
Administrative
Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-¢linical
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CERTIFICATION
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The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

¢ in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or

more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more

beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Oak Brook, LLC .

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

e

SIGNATURE

Thomas L. Weinberg

Lo Pl

Stephen M. Pirri

ATURE '

PRINTED NAME

PRINTED NAME

Manager President and Manager

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this _19th day of May

o, Voo

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn 10 before me
this _19th day of May

o Qe

Signature of Notary s "”
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CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {(or the sole

o]
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

L]

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Alliance, LLC
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required

for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

W

Magh )

SIGNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg

SIGNATURE

Stephen M. Pirri

PRINTED NAME

Manager

PRINTED NAME

President and Manager

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 19th_day of ___ May

\ﬁg;’?” JM \“\mmmm,,

Signature of Notary \* /9/\

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this _19th_day of May
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ALTERNATIVES
1

2)

3)

Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Altemative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities 1o meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
atternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes;

C) Uitizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the projec!; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of tha project to altemative options. The
comparison shall address kssues of fotal costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in bath the short term (within one to three years afler project completion) and long
term, This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERMATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED. :

The applicant shall provide empirical evidenecs, including quentified outcome date that
verifies improved quality of care, as avalilable.

Page 12
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Critetion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document thal the amount of physica! space propesed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of lhe following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
naads, as supported by pubiished data or studies;

b. The existing facility'’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that resulls in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The projact involves the conversion of existing space that resutts in excess square footags.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
foltowing format with Attachment 4.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE ; DIFFERENCE MET
BGSFIDGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

T R T T
5 ATTACHMENT- 147N

i “‘%"‘;‘

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion Is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of gperation, the annual utiization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
pravided.

A table must be provided In the following format with Attachment 15,

UTILIZATION
DEPT.J HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
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G.

Criterion 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysls
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize in-Center Hemodialysis
must submil the following information:
2. Indicate station capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of stations changed by
action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Stations Stations
[ In-Center Hemodlalysls
kX READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the ¢riteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand [ Modernize
1110.1430{b){1) - Planning Area Need - 77 lil. Adm, Code 1100 X
{formula calculation)
1110.1430(b){2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.1430(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110,1430{b){4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion of Existing Category of Service
$110.1430{b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.1430(c}{1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.1430(cK2) - Maldistribution X
1110.1430{c)3) - Impact of Projeci on Other Area Providers X
1110.1430(d){1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.1430{(d}{2) - Documentation X
1110.1430(d)(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.1430(e}-  Staffing Availability X X
1110.1430{f} -  Support Services X X X
1110.1430(g) -  Minimum Number of Stations X
1110.1430(h} -  Conlinuity of Care X
1110.1430() - Assurances X X X

Projects for relocation of a facility from one location in a planning area lo another in the
same planning area must address the requirements fisted in subsection (a){1} for the
“Establishment of Services or Facilities”, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -
*Discontinuation” and subsection 1110.1430() - "Relocation of Facilities”.

Pago 26

13




ILLINO!S HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- Moy 2010 Editicn

The following Sections DG NOT need to be addressad by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or quarantecing the funding of the project If the applicant has a bond rating of A~ or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencles, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affimed
within the latest 18 month perlod prior to the submittal of the application):

+ Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
+ Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
«  Section 1120.14D Economic Feasibility - Review Criterla, subsection (a)

VIl - 1120.120 - Availabllity of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be availabte and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable; Indicate the doliar ameunt to be provided from the following sources:

$1 861,668 aj Cash and Socwiles — statements (€.g., audiled financial statements, letlers from financlal
—_ institutions, board resolutions) as o

1} the amount of cash and sccurities available for the project, including the
identification of any secunity, tsvalue and evailability of such funds; and

2) inlerest to be samed on depraciation account funds or to be eamed on any
assal from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

by Pledges - for anticipaled pledges, a summary of the anlicipatad pledges showing anticipated
recelpts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross roceipts and ralated fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

¢} Gifts and Bequests - verification of the doilar amount, ldentification of any conditions of use, and
the estimaled time lable of receipls;

d} Debt - a stalement of the estimated farms and conditions {inchuding the debt time perlod, varlable
or permanent Inferest rates over the debt time peried, and the anticipated repayment schedute) for
any Interim and for the permanent financing preposed to fund the project, including:

1) For gensral obligatlon bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
. evidence 1hat Ine governmendal unit has the authority to Issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the isue, including any discounting

anticipated;

2y For revanus bonds, proof of the feastbiilty of securing the specified amour and
Interest rale;

3 For morlgages, a letter frem the prospective tender altesting 1o the expeciation

of making the loan In the amount and time indicated, inchading the anlicipated
interest rats and any conditions assoclated with the morlgage, such as, but not
limiled to, adjusiable interest ratas, balloon payments, eic.;

4) For any lease, e copy of the kease, including all the lerms and conditiuns,
inciuding any purchase options, any capital improvernents fo the property and
provision of capilal equipment

5) For any oplion to lease, a capy of tha option, including alf terms and conditions.

)] Govemmental Appropriations = a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance eccompanied by a
statement of funding availabllity frem an officlal of the gavermental unit. if funds are to be made
available from subsaquent fiscal years, a copy of a rasolution or other action of the governmential
unit attesting to Ihis intent;

f Grants - a letter from the graniing agency as to the avallability of furds in temms of the amount and
time of recelpt;
q) All Other Funds and Sources = verification of tha amount and type of any other funds that wifl be

used for tha project

$1,861,668 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

14




COST AND.GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR:SERVICE

. RIENE: c || e [F 6 H ‘

Ospartment - 5 ) — T - — Jotal

flistbetow)y | Cost/SquareFoot | GrossSq Ft | Gress83Fr | Const $ | Mod. $ Cost

' ‘New Mod. | ‘New ‘eme” [ Mod. Cire™ | fA%E) {BxE) G+ H)
‘{ ESRD $80.00 | 6,500 (585,000 | $685,000
Conlingency
| TOTALS $90.00 6,500 585,000 | $585,000
: [~ fholiide Hhe percentate (%)-0f space for CENAon
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual eperating costs {in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unlt of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
foltowing project completion. Direc! cost means the fully ellocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project an Capital Costs.

The appficant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current doflars per equivelent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project

completion,
APREND DOGUMENT, ATTACHMENT-42.1N NUMERIC G EQUENTIAL,ORD
P o o et g Lol L L - e it 3 v
FARPLICATION FORMY, L e

X1, Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes afl of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AKD
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS: ’

1. The profect's material Impact, if arry, on essential safety net services in the community, {o the extent that il is feasible for an
applicant to heve such knowladgs,

2, The projects impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
krown to the applicant.

3. How the disconinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers In a given community, if
feasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Not Impact Statemonts shalf also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a cenlfication describing the amount of charity care provided by ihe applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reperting raquirements for charity care reponling in the
Ilingis Community Beneflts Act. Non-hospital applicants shall repost charity care, al cosd, in accordance with an appropriate
methodolegy specilied by le Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior lo the application, a certification of the amount ¢f care provided to Medicaid patients. Hospital and nen-
hospttal applicants sha!! provide Meadicaid information in a manner consistent with the Information reporied each yaar to the liimols
Department of Public Health regarding “Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source® and “inpatient and Qutpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Sourca as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annuel Hespital Profile.

3. Any infermation the appficant believes Is directly relevant to safety net senvices, inctuding information regarding teaching,
research, and amy other service,

A tablo In the following format must bo provided as parl of Attachmant 43,

Safaty Net Information por PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Yoar Yoar Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost In dollara)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Madicaid [# of patients) Year Year Year
inpatien
Cuipatient
Tatsl
Page 53
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Mediceld (revenus)

Inpatiert

Qutpalient

X, Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amaunt of charity care for the latest three auditod fscal years, the cost

of charity care and the ratlo of that charlty care cast to nel patient revenue.

2 I the applicant owns or operates one or more facilties, the reporting shall be for each indivtdual facility located in illinols. I
charity care costs are reported on a cansolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cosl of charity
care; the rallo of that charity care to the net patient revenus for the consolidated finandlat statement; the allocation of
charlty care costs; and the ratlo of charfly care cost to net paliend revenue for the facility under review,

3. I the applicant ks not an existing facliity, i shall submit the fadlity's projected patied mix by payer sourca, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care™ means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider dous not expect to recelve payment from

the patlont or a third-party payer, {20 ILCS 3560/3) Charlty Cars must be provided at cost.

A tabie in thas following format must bo provided for all facilities as part of Atachment 44,

CHARITY CARE

Year Year

Yoar

Nel Pationt Revenuo

Amount of Charity Care (charges)

Cost of Charity Cara

Page 54
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TYPE OF OWNERSHIP - CERTIFICATE OF GOOD
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File Number 0352014-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that ‘ '

USRC OAK BROOK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MARCH
22,2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE 18 IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH '
day of MARCH AD. 2011

D “ ! :‘ " ““ V
Authenlication #: 1108700056 ‘m

Authenticate at: hitp:/Awww.cyberdrivellinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0345096-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that | o

USRC ALLIANCE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 28,2011,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS'A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this STH

day of MAY AD. 2011

gy e
¥ 2a1 A% s l ,
Authentication #: 1112501906 - M W

Authenticata ai: hWip/hwww.cyberdrivelliincts.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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ATTACHMENT 2

SITE OWNERSHIP — PROOF OF OWNERSHIP
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5001 Spring Valley Road
Suite 500V

TRANSWESTERN SO

Phone: 214-446-4525
Fax 214-445-45T1

Letter of Intent
May 16, 2011

Mr. Dwight Olson

ANAR REAL ESTATE
{2135 Butterfield Road
Downers Grove, 1L 60515

RE:  LETTER OF INTENT TO LEASF. SPACE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT:
1201 BUTTERFIELD ROAD — UNIVERSITY PLAZA (“BUILDING)
SUITE #150 - (THE “PREMISES”)

Dear Drwight:

USRC Qak Brook, Li.C ("Tenant™) has determined that the above referenced building meels its criteria for a possible
medical location. This propused tocation will serve s a clinic for the Oak Brook, 1L area,

Pleasc reply by providing the requested infonmation in the right column. 1fyou are in agreement with the termis, please
slate"Apgeeed™ in the column to the Tight.

PEMISES / LEASE Tenant will require approximately 10,000 | 1201 A Butterfield Road
TERM: square feet. Please propose an address, | Downers Grove, IL 60515
dedicated suitc number und rentable square
footage. Approximnately 6,500 square fect

Please propose a ten (10} year term with the
right to termvate a4 any time after 60
months with $0-davs written notice.
RENTAL RATE/ Please provide an ageressive, market | Years 1 & 2 50.00/NN
CONCESSIONS: sensitive  ralc  with  corresponding | Year 3 87.00/NNN
concessions on a ten{10) year term, Please | Year 4 514,00/NNN
indicate the structure of the renial rate (net, | Years 5 & 6 $15.50/NINN
gross or full service) and alt costs andfor § Years 7 & 8 $16.50/NNN
services not included in the rent. Years 9 & 10 $18.00/NNN
Triple Net

$1.34 PSF Taxes

$2.50 PSF Cam

$0.20 PSF Insurance

Attachment2 22




_ [l TRANSWESTERN

LEASE i. Landlord must deliver the Premises in { Agreed on 60 days and Tenant's
COMMENCEMENT: wanp  shell  condition per mutvally | specification listed under “Tenant's
acceptable specs within thinty (30) days af | Spces”™ below,
lensc execution,
2. Rent will commence one hundred fwenty | Agreed 1o 90 days bun need some
(120) days afler issuance of a Certificate of { timeline on issuance. The 30 month
Need by the State of Ifinois. equivalent abatement will begin after
that (2 years no base rent; 3™ year 50%
3. This leasc wili be conlingent on | 07§14 psf).
obtaining a Certificate of Qccupancy by the
City of Downers Grove and State of 1llinois.
Agreed,
RENEWAL OPTION: Please propose two {2) consecutive, five (3) | Apreed.
year lease renesal options at fixed rates.
TENANT !. Landlerd shall deliver the Premises in | Agreed
IMPROVEMENT warm shell condition per Tenant’s specs
ALLOWANCE (TENANT | which have been listed in the section below,
PERFORMS):
2. Please provide a market sensitive Tenant | None.
Improvement Allowance for a ten {(10) year
e
3. After delivery of the Prewmnises, Tenant | Agreed. Prior 10 commencing
shall complete all nccessary tcnamt | construction of its  improvements,

improvements to the Premises pursuant (o a
space plan and specifications to be prepared
by TENANT, opproved by Landlord.

4, Tenant shall not be required to pay
Landlord any constniction managemcnt or
supervisory fec  for any  (enani
IMproveInenis.

Tenant shall deposit an amount cqual
to the cost of such improvements in a
construction escrow ot Chigago Title
and Trust Company for disbursement
as work is completed upon submission
of approved sworn statements and kien
waivers.

Agreed.

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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TRANSWESTERN

TENANT SPECS:

| listed below.

Tenant will require cerain specifications
I the specifications are not
part of the base building package, please
elaborate on how the specifications can be
met.

1. 1.5" diameter incoming water line.

2. The presence of sewer service with no
less than a 4 line inte the premises with an
inven depth that will adequately service our
sanitary demands

3. 208Y 3Phas¢ power pancl with 400
armps.

4. Gas line running to the Premises,

5. Ome (1) ton of HYAC service for every
250 USF.

6. Current asbestos survey,

7. Fully engincered as built drawings of the
Premises,

8. The subjcct property shalt net be located
within a 100 vear floed plain,

9. The property shall not be located within
150 feet of easement boundaries or setbacks
of hazardous underground locations
including but not limited (o liquid butane or
propane, liquid petroleum or natural gas
trensmission tincs, high pressure lines, and
not within the cascment of high voliage
electrical hines.

Agreed to all items listed below,

BASE YEAR/

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Piease provide a break-down of atl
operating expenses for which Tenant will be
responsible,

$1.34 PSF
$2.50 PSF

Taxgs:
Cam:

Insurance: $0.20 PSF

SIGNAGE:

Please describe building standard signage
rights along with any opportunities for
Building signage and or monument signage,

Signage available on Pylon sign on

Butterfield Road.

Ruilding signage subjecr to village

reguirement,

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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PARKING: Tenanl wili require 5 reserved handicupped | Agreed.
spaces located at or near the entrance of the
Premises, 10 reserved visitor spaces marked
“(Tenant) Visitors Only™ loacted near the
entrance of the Premises, and 20 spaces
which will be locaied in the Building

parking arca.
RIGHT OF FIRST 1. Tenant shall have a Right of First Refusal | Agreed.
REFUSUAL: on any adjacent suite(s).

2. Teant shall have |5 business days from
receipt of written notice from Landlerd to Apreed.
exercise its Right of First Refusal.

3. If Tenant exercises its Right of First Agreed, but there will be no pro rated
Refusal, Tenant shall lease the additiona) construction allowance.

space for a term that is cotenninous with its
Lease for the Premises and at the rental
tate{s) and other Lease terms in cffect, with
a pro rated construction allowance.

MISCELLANEOLS: 1. Tenant will require the right to allow a | Agreed.
tractor Wrailer (18 wheelerd 1w deliver
supplies in the delivery area located behind
or in front of the Building,

2. Landlord will aflow Tenani, at its awn | Agreed.
expense to instali an awning at the front of
the Premises for a patient drop of¥ pick up
area,

TERMINATION QPTION: | Tenant shall have the right to terminate the | Agreed.
Lcasc at any time after the {ifth anniversary
of the real commencement  date by
providing written notice thereof at lcast 120
days prior to the daie of tennination,

HOLDOVER: Tenant shafl have the right to holdover for | Agreed.
three £3) months afler torm expiration at the
same rate as the last month of the lease
term. After the third month, the holdover
rate shall increase to 125% of the rent for
the fast month of the lease term.

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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BROKER / DISCLOSURE: | Roth Landlord and Tenant recognize and | Agreed with commission to be
acknowledge that the Tenant is represented | Mutually determined.

by Howard Watkins and Edic Kessler with
Transwestern, as procuring Broker, in this
transaciion.  Landlord agrces to pay a
procuring  brokcrage @ commission per a
scparate agreement,

This Letter of Intent shall not constitute a binding agreement. This lexter does not create any legal rights or obligations
between Lendlord and Tenant. Mo binding agreement will cxist unless and until the terms expressed hercin and ather
essentinl terms are set forth i a definitive lease agreement executed by both parties.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
ANAR REAL ESTATE, INC,, USRC OAK BROOK, LLC
Agent for the benelicial ovner

o (2 e e 4 By_Qﬁuz &Ww‘@\.
Print:Pethinaidu Veluchamy Print: \md[ HMRMHBN
Its: Managing Member Print: §CN!D'Q UP

*This tcase will be berween Tenant and
Chicago Title Land Trust Company Suecesscr
Trustee to Cole Taylor Bank as Trustee under
Trust Nunber 96-6568 dated February 22, 1996

1213 Butterfield Road
Downers Grove, JL 60515

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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ATTACHMENT 3

OPERATING IDENTITY/LICENSEE CERTIFICATE OF
GOOD STANDING

Persons with 5% or more ownership interest in licensee.

Direct Interest:

None

Indirect Interest: % Ownership
ANIS ABDUL RAUF, D.O., F.A.SN. 24.5%
MOHAMMED S. AHMED, D.O. 24.5%

1888959-1

Attachment3 27




File Number 0352014-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of fhe State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that . :

USRC OAK BROOK, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MARCH
22,2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH

day of MARCH AD. 2011

Aulherfication #: 1108700956 . M

Authenticale at: hHp:/Awww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECAETARY OF STATE
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ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS —
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

U.S. Renal Care Inc.

Y

USRC Alliance LLC

USRC Oak Brook LLC

U.S. Renal Care Oak
Brook Dialysis

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 5

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS

| 1888959-1

Attachment 5 30




B1SP=pl 20pWid s|qejieae enawul4 urejdpooj4 Aunon abegqng

HLuC

1101 HLNOS

el

1 i

oA e e et

Attachment5 31




ATTACHMENT 6

ILLINOIS HISTORICAL PRESERVATION AGENCY
LETTER

1888959-1
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Illinois Historic

=== Preservation Agency
FAX (217) 782-8161

M 1 Old State Capitol Plaza <+ Springfield, lllinois 62701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov

DGEEQB County

Dowmers Grove
CON - Lease to Establish a Dialysis PFacility, U.S. Renal Care
1201-1213 Butterfield Road
IHPA Log #015032811

April 15, 2011

Shawn Moon

Ungaretti and Harris

Three First National Plaza
70 W. Madison - Suite 3500
Chicago, IL 60602-4224

Dear Mr. Moon:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further gquestions, please contact me at 217/785-5027,

Sincerely,

Anne E, Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A teletypewriter for the speech/hearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. it is not a voice or fa Attachment 6
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ATTACHMENT 7

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS

ITEMIZATION OF COSTS NOT OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED IN THE

1888959-1

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS TABLE

Architect Fees 42 000
Computers & Wiring 32,867
Dialysis Chairs / Scales 20,744
Fair Market Value of Dialysis

Machine Lease 188,166
Leasehold improvement £85.000
Leasehold Improvement

Allowance 0
Fair Market Value of Leased

Space 786,500
Medical / Biomed Equipment 16,546
Misc 11,244
Ofhce Fumilure / Equipment 98,601
Water Treatment 80,000
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ATTACHMENT 8

OBLIGATION

1888959-1
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Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed TotaI_Gross Square Feet
That is:
Dept. / Ar Cost | Exising |Proposed] Y% |Modemized| Asis | V2coled
ep ea 08 isting ropose Const. Space
REVIEWABLE
In-Center
Hemodialysis $1,861,668 0 6,500 6,500
Total Clinicat $1,861,668 0 6,500 6,500
NON REVIEWABLE
Adminisirative
Total Non-clinica! ‘
TOTAL $1,861,668 0 6,500 6,500
18889259.1
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Please find the attached certification from the Applicant as well as licenses associated with this
Project.

1888959-1
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DCA of Adel, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Adel] Dialysis

203 Robinson St

Adel GA 31620

_(220) 896-4529

EIN: 56-2335380

License No. ESRD001228

Medicare No. 112733

DCA of Ashland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Ashland Dialysis

113 N Washington St

Ashland VA 23005

(804) 752-3444

EIN: 27-0094841

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492622

DCA of Barnwell, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Barnwell Dialysis

10708 Marlboro Ave

Barnwell SC 29§12

(803) 541-7225

EIN: 20-2131118

License No. ERD-0179

Medicare No. 422615

DCA of Calhoun, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Calhoun Dialysis

105 Professional Pl

Calhoun GA 30701

(706) 624-4497

EIN: 20-4119620

License No. ESRD001266

Medicare No. 112770

DCA of Camp Hill, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Camp Hill Dialysis

158 S 32™ St Suite 192

Camp Hill PA 17011

(717) 731-0506

EIN: 26-1554083

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392750

DCA of Carlisle, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Carlisle Dialysis

101 Noble Blvd Suite 103

Carlisle PA 17013

(717) 258-3099

EIN; 23-2869880

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392627

DCA of Central Valdosta, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Central Valdosta Dialysis

506 N. Patterson St

Valdosta GA 31601

(229) 219-0099

FIN: 58-2617394

License No. ESRD001193

Medicare No. 112699

DCA of Chambersburg, Inc. d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Chambersburg Dialysis
765 54" Ave, Park 5™ Ave Professional
Center Suite A

Chambersburg PA 17201

(717) 263-9300EIN: 25-1810333
License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392648

DCA of Chesapeake, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chesapeake Dialysis

305 College Parkway

Arnold MD 21012

(410)431-5106

EIN: 20-4373428

License No, E2619

Medicare No. 112619

DCA of Chevy Chase, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chevy Chase Dialysis

3 Bethesda Mctro Center Suite B-005
Bethesda, MD 20814

(301) 652-3434

EIN: 75-2978031

License No. E2633

Medicare No, 21.2633
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DCA of Cincinnati, LLC d/b/a 11.S. Renal
Care Mt Healthy Dialysis

7600 Affinity Pl

- Mt Healthy OH 45231

(513) 931-7900

EIN: 31-1810465

License No. 0684DC

Medicare No. 362655

DCA of Columbus, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Columbus Dialysis

2360 Citygate Dr

Columbus OH 43219

(614) 428-4001

EIN: 20-8388926

License No. 0880DC

Medicare No. 362662

DCA of Delaware County, LLC d/b/a U.S.

Renal Care Delaware County Dialysis
1788 Columbus Pike

Delaware OH 43015

(740) 369-4870

EIN: 20-5799636

License No. 0871DC

Medicare No. 362713

DCA of Eastgate, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Eastgate Dialysis

4600 Beechwood Rd Suite 900
Cincinnati OH 45244

(513) 528-3222

EIN: 26-4578574

License No. 0968DC

Medicare No. 362762

DCA of Edgefield, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Edgefield Dialysis

306 Main St

Edgefield 8C 29824

{803) 637-3225

EIN: 20-2131213

License No. ERD-0149

Medicare No, 422602

1888959-1

DCA of Fitzgerald, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Fitzgerald Dialysis

402 S Grant St

Fitzgerald GA 31750

(229) 409-2221

EIN: 58-2596232

License No. ESRD001161

Medicare No. 112698

DCA of Hawkinsville, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Hawkinsville Dialysis

292 Industrial BLvd Suite 100
Hawkinsville GA 31036

(478) 892-3008

EIN: 20-8548207

License No. ESRD001199

Medicare No. 112707

DCA of Hyattsville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Hyattsville Dialysis

4920 LaSalle Road

Hyatisville, MD 20782

(301)277-0490

EIN: 26-367442]1

License No. E2620

Medicare No. 212620

DCA of Kenwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Kenwood Dialysis '

5150 E Galbraith Rd

Cincinnati OH 45236

(513) 791-2698

EIN: 26-4578451

License No, 0956DC

Medicare No. 362759

DCA of Manahawkin, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Manahawkin Dialysis

675 State Hwy 72 Suite 1006-B
Manahawin NJ 08050

(609) 978-6723

EIN: 22-3491564

License No. 22277

Medicare No. 312539

Aftachment 11
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DCA of Mechanicsburg, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mechanicsburg Dialysis

120 South Filbert St

Mechanicsburg PA 17055

(717) 790-6080

EIN: 23-3078802

License No. N/A

Mcdicare No. 392691

DCA of North Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care North Baltimore Dialysis
2700 N Charles St Suite 102

Baltimore MD 21218

(410) 243-4193

EIN: 20-4373297

License No. E2577

Medicare No. 212577

DCA of Norwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Norwood Dialysis

1721 Tennesee Ave

Cincinnati OH 45229

(513)242-6733

EIN: 86-1117490

License No. 0773DC

Medicare No. 362631

DCA of Pottstown, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Potistown Dialysis

5 S Sunnybrook Rod Suite 500
Pottstown PA 19464

(610) 718-1127

EIN: 47-0924656

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392707

DCA of Rockville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Rockville Dialysis

11800 Nebel St

Rockville MD 20852

(301) 468-3221

EIN: 06-1707727

License No. E2641

Medicare No. 212641

{888959-1

DCA of Royston, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Royston Dialysis
611 Cook St
Royston GA 30662
(706) 2345-0817
EIN: 20-0546217
License No. ESRD001105
Medicare No. 112719

DCA of Selinsgrove, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Selinsgrove Dialysis

EIN: 20-8030379

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392728

DCA of SO GA, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
South Georgia Dialysis

3564 N Crossing Cir

Valdosta GA 31602

(229)249-3222

EIN: 22-3715287

License No. ESRD001180

Medicare No. 112688

DCA of South Aiken, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care South Aiken Dialysis :

169 Crepe Myrtle Dr

Aiken SC 29803

EIN: 20-2130991

License No. ERD-0156

Medicare No. 422604

DCA of Toledo, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Bowling Green Dialysis

1037 Conneaut Ave Suite 101

Bowling Green OH 43402

(419) 353-1080

EIN: 34-1933418

Licensc No. 0631DC

- Medicare No. 362630

DCA of Vineland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Vineland Dialysts

1450 East Chestnut Ave Bldg 2 Suite C
Vineland NJ 08361

(856) 692-9060

EIN: 52-2180919

License No. 22278

Medicare No. 312551
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DCA of Warsaw, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Warsaw Dialysis

4709 Richmond Rd

Warsaw VA 22572

(804) 3334444

EIN: 13-4226110

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492627

DCA of Wellsboro, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Wellsboro Dialysis

223 Tioga St

Wellsboro PA 16901

(570) 724-3188

EIN: 25-1762601

Liccnse No., N/A

Medicare No. 392602

DCA of West Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care West Baltimore Dialysis

22 8 Athol St

Baltimore MD 21229

(410)947-3227

EIN: 75-3170570

License No. E2647

Medicare No, 112647

DCA of York, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
York Dialysis

1975 Kenneth Rd

York PA 174808

(717) 764-8322

EIN: 76-0792137

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392731

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Bedford Dialysis

141 Memorial Dr

Everett PA 15537

(814} 623-2977

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392612

1888959-)

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Huntingdon Dialysis

820 Bryan St Suite 4

Huntingdon PA 16652

(814) 643-3600

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392656

Pine BlufT Dialysis, Inc, d/b/a Kidney
Center of McGehce

610 Holly St

Mc Gehee, AR 71654-2109

(870} 222-6700

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2565

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Pine Bluff -
U.S. Renal Care '
2302 W 28th Ave, Suite C

Pine Bluff, AR 71603-5081

(870} 534-7400

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No., 04-2564

- 1.S. Renai Care Boerne, LLC d/b/a U.5.

Renal Care Boeme Dialysis
1595 South Main Suite 107
Boerne, TX 78006

(830) 816-3030

EIN: 43-2099925

License No. 008371
Medicare No. 67-2563

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC
1313 La Concha Ln

Houston, TX 77054-1809

(713) 608-2744

EIN: 32-0223510

License No. 008644

Medicarc No. 45-2840
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U.S. Renal Care of Northeast Arkansas LLC
d/b/a Paragould - U.S. Renal Care

901 W Kingshighway

Paragould, AR 72450

(870)215-0187

EIN: 62-1826477

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2562

USRC Altoona, LLC d/b/a U.S, Renal Care
Altoona Dialysis

200 E Chestnut Ave Suite 3-A

Altoona PA 16601

EIN: 27-3164836

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Atascosa County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Atascosa County Dialysis
1320 W Qaklawn Rd

SUITE G&H

Pleasanton, TX 78064-4304

(830) 569-3052

EIN: 26-1394783

License No. 008674

Medicare No. 672631

USRC Azle, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Azle

605 Northwest Parkway Suite 1

Azle TX 76020

(817) 406-4331

EIN: 26-4113763

License No. 110026

Medicare No. 672652

USRC Bellaire Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bellaire Dialysis

7243 Bissonnet Dr Suite A

Houston TX 77074

(713) 988.7200

EIN: 26-1527679

License No. 110013

Medicare No. Pending

1888959-1

USRC Canten, LLC dfb/a U.S. Renal Care
Canton Dialysis

400 E TX 243 Suite 14

Canton TX 75103

(903) 567-2250

EIN: 26-2409182

License No. 008728

Medicare No. 672607

USRC Clebumne, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Cleburne

1206 W Henderson Suite A

Cleburne TX 76033

(817)641-5530

EIN: 26-3465019

License No. 110025

Medicare No. 672650

USRC College Partnership, LP d/b/a Baylor
College of Medicine - Scott Street Dialysis
6120 Scott Street Ste F

Houston TX 77021

(713) 741-705%

EIN: 20-8317462

License No. 008624

Medicare No. 672605

USRC Dalton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Dalton Dialysis

1009 Professional Blvd

Dalton GA 30720-2506

(706) 278-1070

EIN: 27-3966564

License No. ESRDO001109

Medicare No, 11-2524

USRC Dela, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Detta Dialysis

400 East Edinburg Blvd

Elsa, TX 78543

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 56-2584922

License No. 008419

Medicare No. 67-2557
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USRC Downtown San Antonio, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Downtown San Antonio
Dialysis

343 W Houston St Ste 209

San Antonio TX 78205

(210) 251-2824

EIN:26-3721871

License No. 110024

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Eagle Pass, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Maverick County Dialysis

3420 Amy Street

Eagle "ass, TX 78852

(830) 773-3878

EIN: 56-2533704

License No. 008305

Medicare No. 67-2534

USRC East Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis East Fort Worth
6450 Brentwood Stair Rd

Fort Worth Texas 76112

(817) 888-3015

EIN: -27-3360902

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Edinburg, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Edinburg Dialysis

206 Conquest

Edinburg, TX 78539

{956) 383-8488

EIN: 41-2166757

License No. 008539

Medicare No. 45-2890

USRC Friendswood Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Fricndswood Dialysis
3324 EFM 528

Friendswood TX 77546

{281) 993-5067

License No. 008692

Medicare No. 672624

1888959-1

USRC Gateway Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Gateway Dialysis

7171 New Hwy 90 West Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78227

(210) 673-9200

EIN: 26-2064040

License No. 008664

Medicare No. 45-2851

USRC Grove, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Grove Dialysis

1200 NEC Loop Suite B&C

Grove OK 74344

(918) 787-2900

EIN: 27-2194282

License No. N/A

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Harlingen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Harlingen Dialysis

4302 Sesame Drive

Harlingen, TX 78550

{956) 365-4103

EIN: 41-2166755

License No. 008196

Medicare No. 45-2817

USRC Kingwood, LP d/bfa U.S, Renal Care
Kingwood Dialysis

24006 Hwy 59 North

Kingwood TX 77339

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8996067

License No. 008603

Medicare No. 672604

USRC Laredo South LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Laredo South Dialysis

4602 Ben Cha Road

Laredo, TX 78041

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 20-5786850

License No. 008497

Medicare No. 67-2566
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USRC Larcdo, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Laredo Dialysis

6801 McPherson Road Suite 107
Laredo, TX 78041

{956) 725-1202

EIN: 41-2166761

License No. 008197

Medicare No. 45-2823

USRC McAllen, LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
McAlien Dialysis

1301 East Ridge Road Suite C

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166763

License No. 008198

Medicare No. 45-2820

USRC Medina County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Medina County Dialysis
3202 Avenue G

Hondo, TX 78861

(830) 426-3843

EIN: 26-2175292

License No. 007311

Medicare No. 45-2765

USRC Mid Valley Weslaco LP d/b/fa U.S.
Renal Care Mid Valley Weslaco Dialysis
1005 South Airport Drive

Weslaco, TX 78596

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166767

License No. 008429

Medicare No. 45-2870

USRC Mineral Wells, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Mineral Wells

2611 Highway 180 West

Mineral Wells TX 76067

(940) 468-2704

EIN: 26-4113811

License No. 110043

Medicare No. Pending

1888959-1

USRC Mission, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Mission Dialysis

1300 S Bryan Rd Suite 107

Mission, TX 78572-6626

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166764

License No. 110005

Medicare No. 67-2502

USRC Murray County, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Murray County Dialysis
108 Hospital Dr

Chatsworth GA 30705-2058

(706) 517-4818

EIN: 27-3989608

License No. ESRD001178

Medicare No. 11-2685

USRC N Richland Hills LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis North Richland Hills
6455 Hilltop Drive Suite 112

North Richland Hills, TX 76180-6039

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774637

License No. 008430

Medicare No. 67-2554

USRC of SE Arkansas, LLC d/b/a Stuttgart -
U.S. Renal Care

805 W. Madison Street

Stuttgart, AR 72160-2543

{870} 673-0003

EIN: 43-1958286

Lieense No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2579

USRC Rio Grande LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Rio Grande Dialysis

2787 Pharmacy Road

Rio Grande City, TX 78582

EIN: 41-2166762

(956) 487-2929

Liecnse No. 008668

Medicare No. 45-2664
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USRC SA Bandera Road LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bandara Road Dialysis

7180 Bandera Road

San Antonio, TX 78238

(210)403-9493

EIN: 90-0185327

License No. 008087

Medicare No. 45-2895

UUSRC SA Houston Street, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Houston Street Dialysis

2011 East Houston Street Suite 102d

San Antonio, TX 78202

(210) 225-0004

EIN: 34-2011633

License No. 003134

Medicare No. 67-2506

USRC SA Pleasanton Road, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Pleasanton Road Dialysis

1515 Pleasanton Road

San Antonio, TX 78221

(210) 922-6255

EIN; 20-8968868

License No. 008588

Medicare Neo. 67-2510

USRC SA Tri County LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tri County Dialysis

14832 Main Street

Lytle, TX 78052

(830) 772-5784

EIN: 42-1635878

License No. 008135

Medicare No. 67-2507

USRC San Benito Dialysis Ltd d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care San Benito Dialysis

295 North Sam Houston

San Benito, TX 78586

(956} 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166758

License No. 008215

Medicare No. 67-2514

18889591

USRC SW Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Southwest Fort Worth
5127 0Old Granbury Road

Fort Worth, TX 76133-2017

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774638

License No. 008443

Medicare No. 67-2559

USRC Tarrant LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Central Fort Worth
4201 East Berry Street Suite 8

Fort Worth, TX 76105

(817) 531-0326

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008457

Medicare No. 45-2799

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Fort Worth

1001 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

{817) 877-5907

FIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008467

Medicare No. 45-2579

UUSRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Grand Prairie

1006 North Carrier Parkway

Grand Prairte, TX 75050

(972) 263-7202

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008468

Medicare No. 45-2855

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a 1.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Mansfield

1800 Hwy 157 North Suite 101
Mansfield, TX 76063-3930

(682) 518-0126

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008464

Medicare No. 45-2896
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USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis North Fort Worth

1978 Ephniham Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76106-6670

(817) 624-7811 '

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008454

Medicare No. 45-2838

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis South Fort Worth
11905 Medpark Drive

Burleson, TX 76028

(817) 293-1978

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008465

Medicare No. 45-2637

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Arlington

203 West Randol Mill Road

Arlington, TX 76011

(817)275-7787

EIN: 87-0746621

Licensc No. 008463

Medicare No. 45-2580

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Tarrant County

1009 Pennsylvania Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-1515

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008466

Medicare No. 45-2656

1888959-1

USRC Valley McAllen LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Valley McAllen Dialysis

109 Toronto Suite 100

McaAllen, TX 78503

(956) 994-3374

EIN: 41-2166760

License No. 008199

Medicare No. 45-2872

USRC Weatherford LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Weatherford

504 Santa Fe Drive

Weatherford, TX 76086-6503

(817) 594-2832

License No. 008567

Medicare No. 67-2543

USRC West Fort Worth Dialysis LP d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Tarrant Dialysis West Fort
Worth

1704 S Cherry Lane Suite 200

White Settlement, T 76108-3629

(817) 367-0822

EIN: 26-1527980

License No. 008649

Medicare No. 672637

USRC Westover Hills, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Westover Hills Dialysis
11212 State Highway Building Two Suite
100

San Antonio TX 78216

EIN: 27-3170218

License No. Pending

Medicare No. Pending
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Certification & Authorization
USRC Oak Brook LLC

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1110.230, I certify that no adverse actions have been taken
against USRC Oak Brook LLC, or any facility owned or operated by the Applicant, by
Medicare, Medicaid, or any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the
filing of this Certificate of Need application; and

As required by 77 IlIl. Admin. Code 1110.230, I authorize the Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and lIllinois Department of Public Health to access to information in
order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of
this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information related to this Certificate of Need
application.

o~

Signature ’

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Qﬂ' day of May , 2011
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Signature of Notary
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

The purpose of this project is to keep diatysis services accessible to 2 growing ESRD population
in DuPage County (HSA 7) and to alleviate the current need for the provision of dialysis services
within HSA 7. As identified in the Revised Needs Delerminations for ESRD Stations dated
April 20, 2011, HSA 7 currently has an unmct need for 14 additional stations. U.S. Renal Carc
Oak Brook Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations available to
ESRD patients. The market area that U.S. Renat Care Oak Brook Dialysis will serve is ptimarily
a seven mile radius around the facility including the Downers Grove, Oak Brook, Oak Brook
Terrace, Hinsdale and Naperville arcas. This facility is needed to accommodate the 147 ESRD
patients that Applicant has identified from this area who will require dialysis services in the next
1-3 years. Operational facilities in the area, as identified in Attachment 26 — Unnecessary
Duplication of Services, are currently operating at 76.4% occupancy, while this is not at the statc
required Icvel of 80% occupancy, an incremental increase of less than 4% in patient volume
would result in the 80% occupancy level. Applicant has identified 147 pre-ESRD patients that
are anticipated to require dialysis services. In addition, this increase in ESRD patients is based
upon current patient populations and does not include future patients that present with diagnoses
of CKID4 or CKDS. As such, additional dialysis stations are required to meet the needs of these
patients. The goal of U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis is to keep dialysis access available to
this patient population as we continue to monitor the growth and provide responsible health care
planning for this arca. In addition, the project will provide ESRD patients with another choice
for provideres of dialysis services. According to the statc agency's utilization inventory,
Fresenius currently controls approximately 70% of the dialysis stations in HSA 7.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

REVISED NEED DETERMINATIONS
34202011
ESRD STATIONS
ESRD APPROVED  CALCULATED  ADDMIONAL  EXCESS
SERVICE EXISTING STATION STATIONS ESRD
AREAS STATIONS NEED NEEDED STATIONS
HeA 1 129 134 3 i
HSA 2 148 149 4 0
HSA 3 155 142 0 13
HSA 4 156 164 B o
HSA -1 176 142 0 3
HSA 6 1,030 1,083 53 0
HSA 7 1,064 1,088 14 )
HSA 8 330 295 0 35
HEA 9 29 162 0 67
HSA 10 56 56 0 30
HSA 11 153 155 2 0
ILLINOIS TOTAL 3,644 3,550 Bl 178

AMBULATORY SURGICAL TREATMENT CENTERS

e e e —————

ASTC ASTC OPERATING
PLANNING AREAS FACILITIES ROOMS
HSA 1 4 11
HE8A 2 6 18
HSA 3 5 12
HB8A 4 15 11
HSA & 10 20
HSA & 22 57
HSA 7 46 148
HSA B 14 40
HS8A 8 8 25
HSA 10 4 ]
HSA 11 11 20
ILLINOIS TOTAL 146 402

188895%-1
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ATTACHMENT 13

ALTERNATIVES

The alternatives to the Projcct are limited. The State’s Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, shows a need for 14 ESRD stations in Health Service Area 007.
This Project will establish 13 ESRD stations to meet the ESRD needs projected for HSA 7.

Alternative Options
1. A project of greater or lesser scopc and cost

Projects of greater and lesser scope were considered in the planning stages of this project. The
alternative of a project of lesser scope would not sufficiently meet the ESRD station needs of
HSA 7. As indicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has identified 147 pre-
ESRD paticnts that are anticipated to require dialysis services in the next 1 to 3 years. This
increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient populations and does not include future
patients that may present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKDS5. As such, additional dialysis
stations are required to meet the needs of these patients.

2. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangcment with one or more providers or entities
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings
to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

The operating model for this project is consistent with the standard that US Renal Care has
implemented in various states. This model allows US Renal Care to provide the quality
patient care services required by its patients while controlling costs. Pursumg an alternate
arrangement for the provision of these services may negate this proven operating model or
otherwise dilute the benefits realized by patients of US Renal Care.

3. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to scrve all or a portion of the
population the Project proposes to serve

Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their options to utilize other health care
resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of
Ireatment, patients must be ablc to acccss conveniently located and effective facilities. For
example, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes would result an annual drive time
increase of 52 hours. Furthermore, based on the inventory of ESRD stations within HSA 7,
Fresenius controls approximately 70% of the stations in HSA 7. This market dominance limits
the availability of such services for patients who cannot or will not obtain such services from
Fresenius. In order to provide dialysis patients with sufficient options in obtaining their required
care from the provider of their choice, Applicant proposes to provide dialysis services through
this project.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the short terps (within one to three years after project completion) and long term.
This may vary by project or situation, (See Attached Comparison Chart)

1888555-1
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The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outceme data, that |
verifies improved quality of care, as availahle.

Applicant maintains high levels of clinical quality for dialysis patients, on a corporate level U.S.
Renal Care has accomplished a three month average patient outcomes of 92% of patients with a
URR >65% and 92% of patients with Kt/V > 1.2 for the period ending March 31, 2011.
Applicant anticipates similar patient outcomes for the proposed project.

Attachment 13 52




ATTACHMENT 14

SIZE OF THE PROJECT
Size of Project
Department/Service Proposed State Difference Met
BGSF/DGSF Standard Standard?
In-Center Hemodialysis 500 450-650 -150 Yes
besf/Room bgsf/Room | bgsf/Room

The amount of physical space for the proposed project is necessary, and not excessive, for the
provision of hemodialysis services. The 500 bgsf/Room of the proposed project falls well within

the state standard.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Utilization
Historical Proiected
Dept/Service | Utilization/Patient | |y ﬁtfza n?on State Standard | Met Standard?
Days etc.
In Center 30 patients / "
In Center 63 patients / N
Year 2 Hemodialysis N/A 81% 80% YES

Applieant has identified 542 cuirent patients in the area with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKD5. Of
these patients, applicant estimates that 147 patients will requirc dialysis services within the next
1-3 years. Bascd on Applicant's experience 10% of CKD 3, 50% of CKD 4 and B0% of CKD 5
will require dialysis services within 1 to 3 years. When project is completed, most all of the
patients Applicant has identified will require dialysis serviees within 2 years.

1888953-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

As identified in the most-recenily available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for fourteen (14) ESRD
stations. U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13
additiopal stations available to ESRD patients. A copy of the relevant page of the IDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations is included in this attachment. The Project
proposes to establish 13 ESRD stations.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

REWVISED NEED DETERMINATIONS

w2001t
ESRD STATIONS
ESRD APPROVED CALCULATED  ADDITIONAL EXCESS
SERVICE EXISTING STATION STATIONS ESRD
AREAS STATIONS NEED NEEDED STATICNS
H5A 1 1 134 3 D
HSA 2 145 149 4 4]
H3A 3 155 142 0 13
HSA 4 156 164 ] 0
HSA 3 175 142 0 33
HSA 6 1,030 1,083 53 0
HSA 7 1,054 1,068 14 D
HSA 8 30 295 0 35
HSA 9 229 162 0 67
H3A 10 86 o6 0 N
H3SA 11 153 165 2 0
ILLINCIS TOTAL 3,644 3,550 84 178

AMBULATORY SURGIGAL TREATMENT CENTERS

ASTC ASTC OPERATING
PLANMING AREAS FACILITIES ROOMS
HSA 1 4 11
H8A 2 5 18
HSA 2 5 12
H3A 4 15 41
H8 5 10 20
HSA & 22 57
HsA 7 48 148
HSA & 14 4D
H3A 9 9 25
HSA 19 4 ]
HSA 11 11 20
ILLINOIS TOTAL 146 402
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE TO PLANNING
AREA RESIDENTS

USRC Oak Brook, LLC proposes to establish a thirteen (13) station in-center hemodialysis and
peritoneal dialysis facility at 1201-1213 Butterfield Road, Downers Grove, IL 60515. The
facility will utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both in-
center hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease to provide
necessary health care to the residents of castern DuPage County and HSA 7, where the proposed
project will be physically located. The market area that U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis
will serve is primarily a seven-mile radius around the facility including the Downers Grove, Oak
Brook, Oak Brook Terrace, Hinsdale and Naperville areas.

1888555-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE DEMAND -
ESTABLISHMENT OF CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Projected Referrals — Attached in Appendix 1 is a physician referral letter attesting to the
physician's total number of patients who have received care at existing facilities located in the
area; the number of new patients located in the area that the physician referred for in-center
hemodialysis for the most recent year; and an estimated number of patients that the physician
will refer annually to the applicant's facility within a 24-month period after projeet completion,
based upon the physician's practice experience.

1888959-
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The planning area for the proposed facility possesses several factors which contribute to service
restrictions for patients in the area.

Market Dominance of Area Providers

As discussed, based on the inventory of ESRD stations within HISA 7, Fresenius controls
approximately 70% of the stations in HSA 7. This market dominance limits the availability of
such services for patients who cannot or will not obtain such services from Fresenius. This
market dominance has led to severe access issues for patients due to the admissions policy of the
existing providers. Included in this attachment is a physician attestation recounting various
paticnt encounters in which paticnt care is negatively impacted by admissions policies of the
existing providers. This attestation demonstrates that a barrier to service accessibility exists and
the necessity for the proposed dialysis facility.

Some additional issues in obtaining services from existing providers that have been identified
include the unavailability of dialysis shifts and transfer to distant ESRD facilitics despite the
availability of closer dialysis facilities. In order to provide dialysis paticnts with sufficient
options in obtaining their required care from the provider of their choice, Applicant proposes to
provide dialysis services through this project.

Planning Area Need

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for fourteen (14) ESRD
stations. U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13
additional stations available to ESRD patients.

High Utilization of Area Providers

As indicated in the table below, those facilities within a thirty-minute drive time are currently
expericncing overall occupancy levels nearing the state defined utilization target with several
facilities operating at near capacity. This high utilization has a negative effect on the ability for
patients to obtain timely dialysis service in this area. Patients forced to travel further for dialysis
services will encounter access issues as the increased travel time for treatment three times a week
will have a negative effect on patient access. Applicant means to address this barricr to patient
access through the proposed facility. Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their
options to utilize other health care resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3
treatments per week) and length of treatment, patients must be able to access conveniently
located and effective facilities. For example, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes
would result in an annual drive time increase of 52 hours,

18889591
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May 16, 2011

Mr. Dale Galassie
Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

I am a physician with a practice in nephrology located at 2340 S. Highland Ave, Lombard,
Illinois. A substantial number of my patients require dialysis three times a week. These patients
are typically but not exclusively seniors, 65 or more years of age. At any time in my practice, it
is likely that I will treat >50 of such patients.

On a routine basis I have encountered increased lengths of hospital stay due to inefficiencies of
the admission process for dialysis patients into the Fresenius Medical Care (FMC) dialysis
clinics. FMC currently holds a monopoly of dialysis care in the western suburbs of Chicago, and
as such we are at their mercy in caring for our patients in a timely and fair manner.

In support of the Cerlificate or Need application for US Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis, I submit
the following email correspondence from a social worker at LaGrange Memorial Hospital
illustrating the difficulties with placement of patients in Fresenius dialysis facilities in the
western suburbs of Chicago. The following correspondence will illustrate that the current system
of admissions to FMC is not only increasing hospital costs with prolonged lengths of stay, it
denies the patient choice in dialyzing at the facility closest to their home.

I understand that this letter will be submitted in connection with an application seeking a permit
under the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Act to establish a new dialysis facility.
It is submitted subject to penalty of perjury and I am prepared to testify on the matters related.
Because of HIPAA patient names are not disclosed.

March 4, 2011
Subject: Fresenius referrals

During the past week 1 have had multiple problems with referrals to Fresenius Dialysis. 1 was
asked by Dr. Rauf last week to advise him of any problems I had, which 1 believe he will address
with Fresenius staff. These problems are adversely affecting the care of our patients. In our
recent meeting with Fresenius representatives, who attended one of our staff meetings, we were
assured that the referral process has been improved. This has not been my experience; I share
these experiences with you in an effort to improve the care of our patients.
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Patient case # 1: MR. K

The referral to Fresenius was initiated by ||| N JJEEEEEE on 2/24/11, he was transferred to my
floor later that day. I called Fresenius early Friday morning, as I was informed that pt. was very
anxious to be d/c’d, he had just been informed by his MD that he has terminal liver CA, pt.
decided to continue dialysis as it would give him more time “to get his affairs in order”.
Medically, I was informed by the MD that pt. was ready for d/c on 2/25, we were just waiting to
complete the O/P dialysis arrangements. The urgency of his case was communicated to the
Fresenius caseworker assigned, [} His case was complicated because he was admitted
under Humana, but he was planning on switching to traditional Medicare on 3/1/11, right when
he would be beginning O/P dialysis. Pt. preferred to go to FMC-Willowbrook Dialysis, but was
willing to begin dialysis at the Berwyn site as they are in network with Humana. 1 made several
calls to Fresenius to try to expedite the process, none of my cails were returned so [ attempted to
involve [ to assist me. On one of my calls 1 did reach JIl] who told me she was
leaving for the day, the case would be referred to i} but that pt. would need to go to
Berwyn, I informed her pt. was prepared to do that. 1 misunderstood is role at Fresenius,
so I did call her also, she did promptly return my call and referred me to . When [ did speak
to JJj she was on her way into a MD’s office and told me she would call me back. I did not
hear back from her and it was approaching the end of the business day, so I called B -cain,
she laughed and told me that mmformation had been faxed to the Berwyn office, but that the
medical director had left for the day and would not be returning until Monday, so dialysis
arrangements could not be completed until that time. She suggested we d/c the patient and “in
worst case pt. could return to your ER for dialysis if we are not able to set it up”. (It appears
B is not aware that a patient could not have dialysis in the ER, pt would need to be
readmitted.) She stated she would follow up on Monday which was not their usual procedure and
technically she is not supposed to do. 1 left another message for -, who did return my call,
she explained that this is not what she usually does, but was kind enough to tell me she would
Jook into it and get back to me. At this point it was already 6:00 PM. I provided [JJl] with my
home phone number to follow up. did call me back at 7:00 PM and tell me that she was
told that ] at Willowbrook dialysis was working all day to get approval from Humana to be
seen at Willowbrook Clinic. Not once did any of the other staff tell me that, so I'm not sure if
that was accurate.

MR. K did remain in the hospital over the weekend so that his dialysis arrangements could be
completed prior to his d/c. I spoke to - on Monday morning and she did quickly get back
to me with the finalized arrangements. MR. K’s blood pressure was too low for dialysis on
Monday, so he had dialysis on Tuesday, then was d/¢’d. Pt. ‘s dialysis was at the Berwyn Clinic,
I notified their SW that pt. does want his care transferred to Willowbrook Clinic as soon as
Medicare could be verified.
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Patient case #2: Mr. D

I called the Fresenius central admissions phone on Wed., 2/2/11 to refer Mr. D and request the
admissions form. It was faxed to me, I completed the form as required and faxed to the phone
number on the form-a process which takes at least 15-20 minutes. My fax did not go through
because the phone number on the form was incorrect. 1 called the admissions office and was
provided another fax number, with, of course, no apology for the incorrect information. Included
in the information packet 1 informed Fresenius that this pt. works, he needs an 11:00 schedule,
that the hep screen was not available and I would fax that it the AM. I refaxed the information at
12:00 on Wednesday, did not receive any call from Fresenius to advise me who was the
caseworker assigned.

On Thursday morning 1 called Fresenius, spoke to B 1o vas the caseworker
assigned. He verified that they rec’d my fax, but they had just begun to work in it and to verify
insurance. 1 informed Mr. ithat I anticipated that pt. would be d/c’d later that day. I rec’d
several calls back from Mr. asking if the pt. works, where he works, -which is information
that is on the facesheet and confirmed in my fax sheet. [ faxed the hep screen. Mr [l stated
that they are waiting for insurance approval to confirm schedule. Pt. was not d/c’d as
anticipated, he had his catheter placed in late afternoon.

I cailed Mr. [l today, Friday, informed his d/c was today and wanted to confirm schedule.
He told me he would call me back. He did call and asked if pt’s insurance was an HMO or PPO,
they have still not rec’d insurance approval. Then he called me again at 11:45 and told me he
needed pt’s insurance card, so that he could “quickly and efficiently” get the insurance approval.
He then informed me he was told yesterday at 2:00 that insurance was not approved. 1 asked
why he didn’t call me right after that, he told me he had other referrals to work on. Then he
called me back at 12:00 to ask if I had gotten the copy of the card yet. I find it ironic that
Fresenius had 2 days to work on this and I have 15 minutes. 1 faxed the insurance card
immediately and am waiting to get confirmation of pt’s schedule.

Patient case # 3: Ms. S

Ms. S is a current patient of Fresenuis, she was a PD pt. at Willowbrook dialysis, but now has to
transfer to hemodialysis. On 3/1 I was asked by Dr. h to begin to prepare to arrange Ms. S’s
O/P dialysis at Willowbrook, she will be transferred to Manor Care, Hinsdale at d/c, will go to
Willowbrook for dialysis from Manor Care. At Dr. [l s suggestion 1 cailed the Willowbrook
Clinic and spoke to to request the hep screen, which Dr. states they would already
have so we wouldn’t have to repeat in the hospital, also confirmed that a completely new referral
has to be made to Frescnius, even though pt. was already being seen at the Willowbrook Clinic.
Il confirmed I needed to begin a new referral and agreed to fax me the hep screen.

I never rec’d the screen, so on 3/3 I called - at Willowbrook Clinic, she seemed to be very
annoyed and informed me pt. did not have a recent hep screen and the hospital would need to do
it. I have initiated a new referral, as pt. has a very complicated medical condition it involved
faxing close to 200 pages to Fresenius central admissions, now they will fax all that information
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to the Willowbrook Clinic. Fortunately Ms. S is not ready for d/c so I am confident we will have
her arrangements in place by the time she is medically ready for d/c.

There just has to be a better way for us to transition patients to O/P dialysis. Not only is this
process extremely frustrating and time consuming for us, it is not fair to our patients and families
as they need to rearrange their lifestyles to adjust to the patients new medical need for dialysis.
The longer it takes for us to advise patients of their dialysis schedule, the less time they have to
make transportation and other arrangements.

Respectfully,

Signature: CA‘“« @3' M

Name:  Anis A. Rauf

Title: Nephrologist

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me

this /L day of _ff ¥ 20/ "OFFICIAL SEAL’
JACK SARTORE

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
[ MY COMMIS&ON EXPIRES 3/26/2013
L ¥ VN
% Public
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The attached tables show the following information:

e A list of zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal
travel time of the project's site;

» The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the 2000 population
numbers available for the State of Tllinois population available at
hitp://www.census,gov/geo/www/gazettcer/places2k.html ); and

zIp 2000 ZIP 2000 ZIP 2000
Code  Population Code _ Population Code  Population
60005 29,183 60187 61,481 60521 37,496
60007 35,162 " 60188 43,730 60523 10,231
60008 23,316 60190 12,0685 60525 32,475
60018 58,611 60191 14,360 60526 13,301
60018 28,950 60193 41,099 60527 #NIA
60053 21,668 60301 2,158 60532 27,341
60056 56,625 60302 32,527 60534 10,212
60068 37,732 60304 17,839 60538 13,702
60077 25,040 60305 11635 60540 42,065
60101 38,141 60402 60,373 60542 11,007
60104 20,571 60415 14,039 60544 44,284
60108 22,404 60439 20,004 60546 15,700
60108 21,960 60440 46,546 60554 4,812
60126 45355 60445 25,879 60555 13,852
60130 15,688 60448 20,141 60558 12,539
60131 19,342 60453 54,499 60559 25,954
60133 ENA 60455 16,138 60561 23,570
60137 38,026 60456 4,452 60563 31,405
60139 32,303 60457 14,110 60564 32,206
60143 10,021 60458 14,226 60565 40,640
60148 50,460 60459 27,978 60601 5,581
60153 26,863 60463 13,286 60602 70
60154 16,714 60484 9,520 60603 378
60155 8,254 60465 17,198 60604 78
60157 2,111 60480 4,758 60605 12,423
60160 23,034 60482 11,262 60606 1,682
60162 8,513 60490 9,263 60607 15,652
60163 5212 60501 11,175 60608 92,472
60164 21,682 60504 44 412 60610 47,513
60165 5,171 60505 56,971 60612 37,990
60171 10,681 60506 51,184 60616 47,073
60172 25,349 60510 26,565 60618 98,147
60173 12,046 60513 19,146 60622 76,015
60176 11,636 60514 17,313 60623 108,144
60181 30,161 60515 27,514 60624 45,647
60184 698 60516 30,593 60630 54,781
60185 32,936 60517 31,344 60631 28,832
18889591
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ZIP 2000

Code  Population
60632 87,577
60634 74,164
60638 55,788
60639 82,9851
60641 73,824
60644 59,059
606846 27,016
60647 98,769
60651 77,583
60656 27,129
60661 4,382
60706 22,809
60707 42,821
60714 31,051
60803 22,757
60804 86,133
60805 20,821
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The names and locations of all existing or approved heaith care facilities located within
30 minutes normal travel time from the population site that provide the dialysis scrvices
that are proposed by the project.

Mapquest maps of driving times and distanccs are included in Appendix 2 in the order
they appear in the facility table.
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ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

This Project will not result in maldistribution, because there is not an excess of stations in health
services area 007. On the contrary, this area has a need for 14 additional stations, as published in
the IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated April 20, 2011. A copy of the
relevant page of the Long-Term Care Bed Inventory Update is included in this attachment.

A ratio of stations to population that exceeds one and onc-half times the State average:

The ratio of stations to population for within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility does
not exceed one and a half limes the State average. The State average, calculated from the most-
recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated April 20, 2011
and 2000 census population statistics results in a state station to population ratio of 1 station per
3,408 persons. The calculated station to population ratio within the 30 minute drive time of the
proposed facility is 1 station per 4,176 persons. Thus the station to population ratio within the 30
minute drive time of the proposed facility does not exceed one and one-half times the State
average.

The associated calculation of station to population ratios is included in this attachment. The
calculation for the state station to population ratio utilizes 2000 Census data by for the Illinois
and the total station count as found on the IDPH Revised Needs Detcrminations for ESRD
Stations dated April 20, 2011. The calculation of the station to population ratio for facilities
within a 30 minute drive time is calculated using those facilities and zip codes identified in the
Unnecessary Duplication of Services attachment. Population statistics for those zip codes were
obtained from http.//www.census.gov/geo/www/gazetteer/places2k html.

Attachment 26 72




ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

REVISED NEED DETERMINATIONS

2012011
__ ESRD STATIONS
ESRD APPROVED  CALCULATED  ADDHIONAL  EXCESS
SERVICE EXISTING STATION STATIONS ESRD
AREAS STATIDNS NEED NEEDED  STATIONS

ASA 1 131 134 3 0
HSA 2 148 148 4 0
HsA 3 155 142 0 13
HSA 4 156 184 B 0
HSA 5 175 142 0 33
HSA 6 1,030 1083 53 o
Hsa 7 1,054 1,068 14 0
HSA 8 330 205 0 35
HSA 9 229 162 0 67
HSA 10 86 56 0 0
HSA 11 153 155 2 0

ILLINOIS TOTAL 3,844 3,550 84 178

AMBULATORY SURGICAL TREATMENT CENTERS

ASTC ASTC OPERATING
PLANNING AREAS FACIUTIES ROCMS
HSA 1 ) ]
HSA 2 & 18
HSA 3 5 12
HEA 4 15 41
HSA 5 10 20
HSA ] 2 a7
H3A 7 46 149
HSA 8 14 40
HSA 9 25
HSA 10 4 9
HSA 11 11 20
ILLINOIS TOTAL 148 402

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

The addition of 13 ESRI stations atthe USRC Streamwood Dialysis Facility would only
account for 1.42% of the total shift capacity in the 30-minute drive time area and 1.25% of the
total shift capacity in HSA 7. Assuming 80% utilization (9,734 shifts per year) was achieved
immediately, the facility would only make a 1.13% difference* in the 30 minute drive time
occupancy levels and a 1% difference in the total shift capacity of HSA 7. This increase in
stations is fractional compared to the number of licensed stations in the area, thus it is unlikely
that the addition of these stations will lower the utilization of other area providers, both those
who are operating above 80% and those operating below §0%.

Additionally, the HSA7 has a station need of 14 stations, as published in the IDPH Revised
Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated April 20, 2011,

*This calculation is based on the HSA 7 approved stations of 1,054 as calculated on the IDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated April 20, 2011 and the 30 minute drive

time facilities as identified in Attachment 26 Unnecessary Duplication of Services. Shift
capacity of each station is calculated as 3 shifis per day, 6 days a week, 52 weeks a year.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Medical Director
The curriculum vitae of the facility's Medical Director is included in this attachment.

Staff Recruitment

U.S. Renal Care Inc. recruits facility personnel through the use of various job posting websites as
well as a recruitment tool maintained on the corporate website (available at

hitp://www usrenalcare.com/us_renal_care_careers.htm).

Training

Applicant maintains rigorous orientation and training requirements for all staff of dialysis
facilities. Clinical staff are subject to a comprehensive orientation regimen providing training for
such personnel in multiple areas (policies related to orientation and competencies are included in
this attachment). Such staff are also required to comply with any federal or state training
requirements necessary for certification in their respective fields. In addition, U.S. Renal
maintains both corporate and facility level training requirements for facility staff. For example,
all staff are subject to corporate requirements for annual competency assessments and quarterly
assignments provided through U.S. Renal Care's training tool, Health Streams (a copy of the
schedule of assignments, email reminder and completion report are included in this attachment).
Furthermore, dialysis staff are also required to comply with any facility required training
programs as implemented by the governing body of the dialysis facility (see attached policy#
EQ-8002).

Stafling Plan

Applicant maintains staffing ratios in compliance with state requirements for the state in which
Applicant maintains a dialysis facility. Included in this attachment is the U.S. Renal Care policy
regarding staffing ratios which demonstrates the requirement for on duty RNs when the patients
are present and maintenance of direct patient care providers in compliance with state regulations.
In the case of Illinois Applicant will maintain a ratio of one direct paticnt care provider to every
four patients.

188895%-1
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CURRICULAM VITAE

PERSONAL DATA:
Name: ANIS ABDUL RAUF, D.O., F.ASN,
Homc Address: 105 Covington Ct
Oakbrook, IL 60523
Personal Contact: {P) 630-498-0003
(H) 630-908-7935
(C) 773-960-4585
Office Address: Advanced Renal Care, LTD
www, AdvanceRenalCare.com
333 Chestnut Suite LO06
Hinsdale, 1L 60521
(0) 630-495-9356
(F) 630-495-9357
Email: anisraufi@att.net
Mavrital Status: Married, 3 children
Citizenship: United States
EDUCATION:
1993 - 1997 Northwestern University
. Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Engincering
Evanston, IL.
1997 - 2001 Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine
Midwestern University—CCOM
Downers Grove, [L
POSTDOCTURAL TRAINING:
2001 — 2004 Internal Medicine Residency
University of Tllineis at Chicago
Chicago, IL
2004 - 2005 Critical Care Fellowship
Mayo School of Graduate Medical Education
Rochester, MN
2005 —-2007 Nephrelogy Fellowship
Loyola Universily Medical Center
Maywood, IL
Rev 5/9/2011 Page | of 5
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SPECIAL PROCEDURE TRAINING:
2004-2005 Diagnostic bronchoscopy and ventilator management
Mayo Clinic
Rochester, MN
2005-2006 Permanent dialysis catheter insertion, removal, and exchanges
Edward Hines VA Hospital
Hines, IL
2005-2006 Peritoneal dialysis and Plasma exchange therapies
Loyola University Medical Center
Maywood, 1L
CURRENT HOSPITAL APPOINTMENTS:
2009—Present Clinical Instructor
Midwestern University , (CCOM)
2007 — Present Part-time Critical Care Intensivist
Alexian Brothers Medical Center
2007 - Present Nephrology and Critical Care Consultant
Good Samaritan Hospital
2007 — Present Nephrology and Critical Care Consultant

Adventist Hinsdale, LaGrange
Hinsdale, BolingBrook & Glen Oaks Hospitals

2008—Present Nephrology and Critical Care Consultant
Elmhurst Hospital

2008—Present Nephrology Consultant
Edwards Hospital

PREVIOUS HOSPITAL APFPOINTMENTS:

2005 — 2007 Critical Care Physician
Advocate Electronic Intensive Care Unit
Oak Brook, IL

2004 — 2005 Hospitalist and Emergency Room Physician
Enhanced Med—Mayo Clinic A ffiliated Hospitals
Rochester, MN

2005 —2007 Emergency Room Moonlighting Physician
Hines V A Hospital

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION:

Rev 5/9/2011 Fage 2 of 5
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2001-Present linois State Medical License #36109596 {active)
2005-2007 Louisiana Statc Medical License #DO#00030  (inactive)
2003-2006 Minnesota State Medical License #46836 (inactive)
2005-2006 Florida State Medical Permit # UO1236 (inactive)
2004-Present Certified in ACLS, PALS, and BLS

2004-Present ABDM Certification in Internal Medicine

2007-Prescnt ABIM Certification in Nephrology Critical Care Medicine
2009-Present ABIM Certification in Critical Care Medicine

MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL SOCITIES:

American Society of Nephrology
National Kidney Foundation
Saciety of Critical Care Medicine

HONORS:

Fellow of the American Society of Nephrology, 2008 - Present

Most Valuable Physician Nominee, 2007 & 2008, Good Samaritan Hospital
Midwest 2006 Nephrology Fellows Research Day Presenter

American Society of Nephrology 2002 Residents Program Participant

Edna Dunning Mcdical Scholarship Recipient 1997-99

Northwestern University Deans List, 1995-96

Northwestern Honers Program in Undergraduate Research Program, 1593
WGN Exua Effort Award, 1993

UIC Young Biclogist Award, 1992-53

PUBLICATIONS:
Rauf AA, Long, KH., Anderson, 55, Swaminathan, L., Gajic, O., and Albright, RC. Intermittent versus
continuous renal replacement therapy for acute renal failure in the intensive care unit: an observational economic

outcomes analysis. Journal of Intensive Care Medicine, Vol. 23, No. 3, 195-203 (2008)

Rauf AA, The Role of Antibiotic Use in Ventilator Associated Pneumonia. Manuscript (in press) to Journal of
Hospital Medicine.

Swarninathan, L., Rauf AA, Albright, RC., Clinical profile and outcome of Acute Kidney Injury in the ICU: A
Tale of Three Era’s. Manuscript (In Press) to Mayo Clinic Proceedings.

Rauf AA, Benson, MD., Picken, M., Litbarg, N., AA Amyloid related to Ankylosing Spondylitis with minimal
proteinuria; A Case Report and Review of Literature. Manuscript (In Press) to Nephrology, Dialysis and
Transplantation.

Rauf AA, Joshi, A, Shanaah, A., Popli, $., Ing, TS., A Failure of Sonography to Visualize A Kidney Affectcd by
Emphysematous Pyelonephritis: A Case Report and Review of Literature. Jadian Jowrnal of Urology, April
2007.

Rauf AA, Beto, J., Bansal, V., Effect of Dialysis Modality in Acute Kidney Injury (AKI): Comparison of
Intermittent Hemodialysis (IHD), Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT), and Slow Low Efficiency

Rev §/9/2011 Page 3 of 5
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Diatysis (SLED) or Extended Daily Diatysis (EDD): A Meta-Analysis and Systematic Review. Manuscript (In
Press) to The American Jowrnal of Kidrey Diseases.

ABSTRACTS:

Rauf AA, Beto, J., Bansal, V., Effect of Dialysis Modality in Acute Kidney Injury (AKI): Comparison of
Intermittent Hemodialysis (IHID), Continuous Renal Replaccment Therapy (CRRT), and Slow Low Efficiency
Dialysis (SLED) or Extended Daily Dialysis (EDD): A Meta-Analysis and Systematic Review. Abstract,
American Journal of Kidney Diseases. April 2007 Supplement.

Peck, A., Rauf, AA.. Picken, M. and Hou, 8, Severe Nephrotic Range Proteinuria in a Primigravid Woman of 22
Weeks Gestation. Abstract, American Journal of Kidney Diseases. April 2007 Supplement.

Rauf AA, Benson, MD., Picken, M., Litbarg, N., AA Amyloid related to Ankylosing Spondylitis with minimal
proteinuria: A Casc Report and Review of Literature. Abstract, Journal of American Society of Nephrology. Nov
2006, Vol. 17; Pub 142, 846A.

Rauf AA, Swaminathan, L., Albright, RC., CRRT Dosing in Acute Renal Failure in the Intensive Care Unit.
Abstract, Critical Care Medicine Supplement. Dec 2005, Vol, 33: No. 12, A74.

Rauf AA, Long, KH., Anderson, SS., Swaminathan, L., Gajic, O., and Albright, RC. The Cost of Acutc Renal
Failure in Intensive Care Unit. Abstract, Blood Purification March 2005; 23:149-174.

PRESENTATIONS:

“Acute Kidney Injury in the Intensive Care Unit”, Grand Rounds at Adventist and Good Samaritan Hospitals, Fall
2009.

“The Aging Kidney and Chronic Kidney Disease”, Grand Rounds at Adventist and Good Samaritan Hospitals,
Spring 2008.

“Hyponatremia”, Grand Rounds a1 Adventist Hospitals, Grand Rounds at Adventist and Good Samaritan
Hospitals, Fall 2007.

Rauf AA, Beto, J., Bansal, V., Effect of Diatysis Modality in Acute Kidney Injury (AKI): Comparison of
Intermittent Hemodialysis (IHI%), Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT), and $low Low Efficiency
Dialysis (SLED) or Extended Daily Dialysis (EDD): A Meta-Analysis and Systematic Review. Research Poster,
National Kidney Foundation, Orlando, Florida , April 2007

e e iy
A IaIW AR OT W,
P00z
Rauf AA,, Swaminathan, L, Albright, RC., Clinical profile and outcome of Acute Renal Failure in the ICU: A
Tale of Three Era’s. Research Presentation for Midwest Nephrology Fellow Research Day, Chicago, Iliinois,
March 2006.

Rauf AA, CRRT Dosing in Acute Renal Failure in the Intensive Care Unit. Rescarch poster presented at Society
of Critical Care Medicine 10th Annual Congress in San Francisco, CA Jan 2006

Rev 5/972011 Page 4 of 5
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Rauf AA, Intermittent Hemodialysis vs. Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy: A Comparative
Outcomes Analysis. Presented Mayo Critical Care Grand Rounds, Nov 04, 2004. Research poster presented at
10" Annual CRRT Meeting, San Diego, CA March 10, 2005. :

Rauf AA. The Role of Antibiotic Use in Ventilator Associated Pneumonia. Presented at Mayo Critical Care
Grand Rounds, February 2005

CONFERENCES ATTENDED:

CRC Biomed Critical Care Medicine Board Review Course in McClean, Virginia, 2009

National Kidney Foundation, Annual Meeting in Orlando, Florida April, 2007

American Society of Nephrology, Annual Meeting in San Diego, California, November 2006
Peritoneal Dialysis Academy, Nephrology Fellow Workshop in Birmingham, Alabama, October, 2006
Renal Physicians Association, Nephrology Fellow Workshop in Indianapolis, Indiana, September, 2006
Renal Research Institute, Annual Research Seminar in Las Vegas, Nevada, January, 2006

Society of Critical Care Medicine, Annual Meeting in San Francisco, California, January, 2006
Continuous Renal Replacement Therapies, Annual Mccting in San Diego, California, March 2005.
Society of Critical Care Medicine, Annual Meeting in Phoenix, Arizona, January 2005.

American Society of Nephrology, Annual Meeting in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, November 2004.

Rev 5/9/2011 Page 5 of 5
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us.] RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE1OF5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

HEMODIALY SIS ORIENTATION FOR NEW CLINICAL STAFF
Also see State Specific

The oricntation period is approximately 6 — 8 weeks in length. In order to meet the objective of
the Orientation Checklist, and to allow for sufficient clinical practice, the following schedule is
presented as a guide. Mastery of both theory and clinical skills is the responsibility of the
student and no student may practicc independently without demonstration and documcntation of
required skills. Until the individual has satisfied the training and competency requirements, the
individual during the process of completing training shall be identiftcd as a trainee when present
in any patient area of the facility.

Prior to providing dialysis care, all nursing staff shall demonstrate satisfactory completion of
either the training program or educational equivalency and the competency skills assessment
checklist as required for the dialysis technicians.

Any registered nurse or licensed practical nursc who is employed without previous experience in
the dialysis process, and who has not yet successfully completed the skills competency checklist,
shall be directly supervise when engaged in dialysis treatment activities with patients by a staff
member who has demonstrated skills competency for dialysis treatment as required by the
State/Federal Regulations.

In addition to the Amgen and Ncphrology Core Curriculums, the Employce Qrientation Program
Workbook is a good resource tool. Delivery of training material will be accomplished through a
combination of lecture, video presentations and independent study.

WEEK 1:

Day 1: Facility tour and orientation

Overview of the services provided by the facility

Meet preceptor

Meet the staff and physicians

Review of Employee Handbook and Job Description

Staff Roles and Responsibilities

QOverview of US Renal Care Philosophy

Qverview of P & P Manual

Introduction of dialysis machine and dialysis prescription

Reference Amgen Core Curriculum

Read/review Module I and 1I (Today’s Dialysis Environment/The Person with Kidney
Failure)

Universal Precautions/fOSHA Education

HIPAA training

Fire and Electrical Safety

Professional education

View state specific training videos

Testing: OSHA (TB, Blood borne pathogens, Universal Precautions, Hepatitis)

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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i US|RENALCARE
POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
012011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE2OF5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

Day 2: Scavenger Hunt
Practice sct up of dialysis machine with preceptor and removal of lines
Observation of Hemodialysis procedure and orientation to clinic routines
Proper cleaning of chairs, machines, clamps, and blood pressure cuffs
Basic chemistry of body fluids and electrolytes
History of Dialysis
Legal and Ethical Issues
Hygiene and Grooming
Mobility and Positioning
Read/review Module I1T (Principles of Dialysis)

Day 3: Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor
Intreduction to screen of dialysis machine and machine components i
Reference Braun Operators Manual ' i
Vital signs 5
Overview of the continuous guality improvement program
Read/review Module IV (Hemodialysis Devices)
Role of the dialysis technician in a dialysis setting: legal and ethical considerations and

concepts of delegating.
Communication and Team work Skills
Pre and Post weights
Machine testing PH/conductivity/temperatures

Day 4: Machine operation and intreduction to problem solving with preceptor

Trouble shooting equipment — machine alarms

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Policies and Procedures on Patients rights including Patient Bill of Rights

Delivery of an adequate dialysis treatment and factors which may result in inadequate
treatment

Complications of dialysis and interventions

Aseptic technique

Education con the proper use of Safety Needles

Education on accidental needlc sticks (Issues and Prevention Strategies for Healthcare
Workers)

Day 5: Preparation and use of dialysate baths
Practices sct up of the dialysis machine
Elder Abuse in the dialysis machine
Testing: Modulc I (Today’s Dialysis Environment)
Identify allergies, patient charl (electronic medical record)
Identify goal, treatment time, UFR, TMP
Evaluation: Week 1

US Renal Care, Inc, proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved

Attachment 26 83




U.S.IRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAYF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01211

POLICY #: EOQ - 0002 PAGE3OF 5 REVISION DATE:
472011

WEEK 2:

Continue practice set up and use of dialysis machine

Residual testing for presence of bleach

Introduction and education on access placement and taping access
Review location and use of emcrgency equipment:

(Oxygen, suction, crash cart, EKG, AED, Emergency box, fire drill & evacuation)
Introduction to patient monitoring during treatment

Introduction and education on documentation procedures and the HII system
Theory and practice of conventional, high efficiency, and high flux dialysis
Interpersonal Communication

Read/review Module If and 11 (The Person with Kidney Failure/Principles of Dialysis)
Evaluation: Week 2

WEEK 3:
Emergency Plans and Procedures
Introduction to dialysis termination procedures
Review and practice pre and post treatment procedures, patient monitoring
Review clinic specific responsibilities and documentation
Education on Transplants
Review complication recognition and trcatment
Continue practice with machine set up and operation
Read/review: Module V (Vascular Access)
Testing: Module IV (Hemodialysis Devices)
Evaluation: Week 3

WEEK 4:
Introduction to initiation of dialysis with cathcters (as appropriate to job description)
Review and educate on commonly used dialysis medications
Medication Administration
Continue supervised practice of dialysis termination
Review P & P Manual
Normal and abnormal lab values
Pre and post dialysis blood draws
Lab processing duties
Orientation and competency for blood glucose monitoring equipment
Supervised practicc to incorporate pre and post dialysis procedures and patient
Monitoring with machine operation, and documentation
Introduction to initiation of dialysis by cannulation
Introduction of materials used to create grafts, needle placement for access in a graft, and
prevention of complications: and identifieation of signs and symptoms of complications
when cannulating access
Education on PD
Renal Dietitian: Nutritional Considerations
Read/review Module VI (Hemodialysis Procedures and Complications)
Evaluation: Week 4

US Renal Care, Inc, proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Rescrved
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US.|RENALCARE
POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE 4 OF 5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

WEEK 35:

Cannulation of a patient with fistula needlcs

The orientee will incorporate trouble shooting and patient complications with all
previously learned and practiced experience

Continue supervised practice of dialysis initiation via catheter, dialysis termination,
and treatment procedures and monitoring :

Incorporate machine problem solving and recognition and treatment of complications
Into practice

Education on monitoring of arterial and venous pressures

Renal Social Worker: Psychosocial issues

Rcad/review Module VII and VIl (Dialyzer Reprocessing/Water Treatment)
Testing: Module V (Vascular Access)

Evaluation: Week 5

WEEK 6:

Continue supervised practice of hemodialysis procedures

Competently complete a 1 — 2 patient assignment

Education on the management of adequacy ocutcomes

Technical Specialist: Water system, risks to patients of unsafe water, water checks,
machine maintenance, trouble shooting machines and cleaning of machines
Evaluation: Week 6 (Preceptor/Orientee/Administrator)

WEEK 7 & 8:
Competently complete assigned patient assignment
Testing: Module VII and VIl (Dialyzer reprocessing/Water Trcatment)

This orientation program is based on the assumption that the orientee has no previous
experience. Alterations/Adjustments in the orientation program will be made based on previous
experience and proven clinical skills. During orientation the orientee will also receive theory
training provided by the Clinical Services Department.

REFERENCES TO BE REVIEWED DURING ORIENTATION:

Core Curriculum for Dialysis Technicians
State Specific Educational Videos
Dialysis Training Manual

Dtalysis Machine Manual

Dialysis Machine Trouble Shooting Guide

US Renal Care, Inc. proprielary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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USWLRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01,2011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE 50F5 REVISION DATE:
4/2011

EVALUATION:

All tests in the orientation manual are to be passcd with a score of 80%.

Weekly evaluations with the orientation checklist will be filled out throughout the orientation
process by the orientee, preceptor, and educator. The Administrator will evaluate all checklists
weekly.

If at any time there are difficulties with the learning of the didactic material or inability to
complctc modules in the specified time period the Facility Administrator will be notified
immediately. If at any time there are difficulties with the dialysis machine set-up, treatment
monitoring, or termination of the treatment the Administrator will be notified, The Preceptor and
Administrator will assess the training schedule orientee’s progress and if needed will make
changes in the orientation program.

US Renal Cere, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved

Attachment 26 86




us.] RENAL CARE

POLICY: RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #EQ-1001 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:
RN/ LPN / LYN ORIENTATION

SCHEDULE FOR RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION AFTER ALL STEPS OF
HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION ARE MET

(Ex. RN/LPN/LVN may only need 4 weeks to achieve Hemodialysis Oprientation and then
RN/LPN orientation can start)

Week. 1 Paperwork
Medication Administration and Documentation
Dressing Changes
IV Pump
Review of PD concepts- schedute with PD Nurse. Ultra Bag Competency and
instillation of medications in PD bag.
Rounds with the physician
Transcribing orders
Evaluation

Week 0 Charge Nurse Competency
Day I: Shadow the Charge Nurse
Day II-V: Charge Nurse role with Preceptor
Medication Test
Evaluation

Reference: Core Curriculum for Nephrology Nursing

Attachment 26




US|RENAL GARLE
Hemodialyais Charge Nurse Skills Chocklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011
POLICY # EO-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2041
Employee:
Title:
Facility: _
Date of Hire:

PA, VA, NY, GA a LPN maybe a charge nurse os long as diglysts RN is available in the buildng. The LPN may not mpervlsca RN
Charge Nurse, Adm inlutrator, or quaified desipnee may perform shilis verification ay preceptor
Objectives: To ensure proper oricatation to the charge nurse gosidon.

To provide # smooth mansicoen from the ¢hinies] floon setting to the charge position

Expeciations: The Charge Nurse will demonstrate ability ro camplete ell cherge marss ducies s per all faeility protocols and procsdues sccording to job description

o i, e e oy 12 DFigntation REQUIFERRGH. -~ g e vy ¥ L SDate Completed 3] - Breceplor Sighature =
Received a wpy of the Federal/State Regulations and bme Eamdm:wn.h 1he rule
ond regulations of the practicing state.

Understands and sccepls expectations of job description
Knows the facility's fleor plan for emergency purposes and location of the

equipment and supplie.
Demonstrate knowledge of policies and procedures:

a, Patients' Rights and Responsibilities 8. a
b, Paticnt's Grievance Proccduie b. b
¢, Patient/Staff disaster plan, emerpency evacuation and use of <. c.
CIMCTRENCY Supplisy

d. Process for fransferring patient o hospitals and other healih care d d.
focililies.

e. Patient Admissions and Discharpes e €.
f. Processing of the transient patient f. f
g. Adminigration of medications and (count of nareotics) if required per |2 B
facility procedure.

h. Adminisration of blood products (if provided) es per facility protocol _fh. h.

Demonstates knowledge of the Electronic Medical Record(EMR)
Pass a writlen comprehensive @@m on Renal A&P, ESRD, and Hemodialysis with a
score of §0% or better.

Pass a wrillen medi cation test a8 rerted to dialysis and other conditions related (o renal
faituse

Alrend formsl chmgo nurse education class contact nd'ucawt

i Daily Respongibilities ».....7v

~ T |- Date:Completed - | Preceptor Shmatore: .

Verifiex Water lesting is performed per policy;

#. AM opening - Check all water parameters, 3. a.
Pressure ganges, Softner and Carbon Tanks

b. Checks Carbon tanks prior 1o stan of each shifi b. b,

¢. End of the day checks - Soflner trnk c. .

d. Ensures nf loga ave properly completed -3 c.

Clinical Checls

Knews the Jocation of the emergency cint, AED and suction equipment

Ensures all equipment is functional and ready for usc

Verifics all daily checks are donc, i.c.; glucometer, AED, crash cart, exygen, sustion
supplies

Assures drug counts are performed and necurate at start and end of day and documents on
logs

Verifies temperatures on medication and lab refridgerniors are within established limits
and 4 s on logs.

Makes daily staff nssignments bosed on patient needs

Ensures staffing ratios do not exceed 4: 1/PCT and 12:1/license nurae of 83 per siate regs.
FA is notified if not met

Ensures staff maintains imtegrity of palient schedule. FA notified if not met.

Provides immedials supervision of patient carc.

Provides ovessipht and dircction 1o PCTe and LYNW/LPNa

Intervenes to gh in patient's condition

R s changes in treatment based on patient's curvent needs

[Ensures patients are in view of staff during hemodi alysis treatments.

Page 1 ofa

Attachment 26 88




US| RENALCARE
Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172014

POLICY # ED-1002 l

REVISION DATE:
042011

Ensurés visulaization of the paients, their access site, and their btoodline connections
durinp the dialysig treatment

Enlarces siaff campliance o personns] policics regarding reaks, lunch periods, ete.

Efficiently manages staff hours and ovartime - including sending staf¥ home a3 needed
when census is lew.

Ensures li with state and federa) repularions - FA notificd if not met

References the Palicy and Procedure manunl 1o increase personal knowledge of PP

Practices secording to licies and procedures

pany p

Verifies and corrects others to follow company P&EP

Follows proper infection control practices

Monitors/icarecis infection control practices for stafF, patients and visitors - FA notified if

not et
IEnsures biohazard wast is disposed of and stored properly

Crversees ihe clinical floor is kept clean of debris/spills

|Ensures an urobstructed path to patient stations is ined
Ensures emergency exits are not obstructed
Oversees that gency proced are followed

Transcribes orders carrectly anto Kardea, camputer system, and/ar methods as per facility
protocol

Verifies staff is franscribing/carrying out orders correcily

Hospitatization of a paticnt: notifies physician, sends commeet paperwork, proper
d ion in progress notes.

Proper do cumentatinn on return of hospitalized patien

Conducts assessment of p patient when indicsed by & question relating Lo s change in the
patient’s status, extended or frequent hospitalizations, or at the patient’s request.

Fegilitmes comm unicatin between the patient, patient’s family o sigmificant other

Initiates and provide patient education and follow up as needed
Participates in the interdisciplinary team review of a patient's progress

Preparcs for and assists with CIPA and POC completion as sssigned

Proper medication adminstration, ineluding use of pratocols for:

a_Epogen

b. Vitamin D Anslogs: Carijex, Heotorol, Zemplar

¢. Iron: Venfor, Ferlecit

d. Oxypen

e. Hepititis vactine

f. TB Tuberculin Testing

g Heparin

h. Lidocaine

i. Urokingse (Activase)

B N Bl Ol Y L

ESREEECUEE

j- Antibioties

k. Nomal Saline

T

=

Mannges complicalions dering hemodislysis

2. Hypotension

&. Hypertension

©. Cramps

. Hendaches

2. Pruritig

f. Nausea, vemiting

e = (e [ ]P

g. Fever, chilly

h. Pyrogenic reaction

Bl

i. Chest pain

. Sermres

k.Hypoglycemia

1. Hyperglycemia

B = R R e El T L e

Page2of 4
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US| RENAL GARE.

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
042011

REVISION DATE:

POLICY # EOQ-1002 l

04/2011

Oversces use And gement of Reusc chemicals where applicable

4. Approve sterilant

b, Signs and sympiotn3 of reaction/exposure

Proper use of incident repons

Verifies all ordered lab is drawn, pr d, packaged and serd out

Verifies staff perfoms pH/eonductivity checks before treatment

Recognizes maching problems, comectly handles machine problems, communicates with
technicol

Communiecates with physician, dietécian, and sucial worker regarding patient needs

Ensures charts ars clased out prier o leaving and a1} peperaark communicaled io

b office as required (illing logs, st¢.)

Secures the building at the cnd of the day:

a. mnkes surg nll pati have left the Facility

b. ¢hecks that water and scid valves have been rumed off

¢, thecks thal answering service has bes activated

d. makes sure &l doors have been locked

BGIGIE

KA

S ot e -Wiekly Monthly [Quarterty Respedsthilities . w7 "%

.. Diate Coripleted.- -

R

~ - Preceptor Signatore s

Chccks crash cart for edequaty of mupplies, kind of supplics, and expiration dates, ie.;
meds, nirwny, 1ab tubes, misc,

Checks (o se8 whal weekly labs need to be drawm

Review of lab results and reports any critical abnormal results to the Physician

Adjust patient treatment according 1o Tab resubts following protocol

Monthly Diabetic Foot Checks donce

o by review of patient’s home medi

o bttt -Tremtment Initiation Responsiblities = -~ " Tate Completed Preceplor Sigasiare -
Conducts nursing rounds ance ofl paiients are undergeing ireatment and
5. reviews patient pre-treatment assessments and verifies accuracy and n i
Wul(.
b. verifics a¥l parameiers are sef to prescribed order. b b.
c. verifies pre-treatments machine checks have been performed and ¢ <
documented
4. verifies mestment is iniliated 3-5 min utes after heparin bolus is given d d.
aceording to documentation
o "o - Iniradialyfic Responsibilities.. T |t Dnte Completed. . L7 Preceptor Stgnaturecss
Delegi admmnslmion of medications ko licensed staff
Verifies medicarions are prepared and labeled appropriscely
Adjusts medication doscs based on Jab per established protoco)
Reviews “routine” chaning by nurses/PCTs
[Reviews *apecial situntion® charling (acute prob!ems, drug reastions, chest pain, fover,
[blood ogs, efe.)
Monitess machine alarms are answered in a timely manner
Ei 1/2 of all patient car staff are present on the clinical floor at aJi umes
M Turn-Around Responsibilities. . i7" - |- Dale Completed [ Preeeptor Sigrature -

Omhcstmtes a smooth tumaver by remaining on the dialysis floor dunng Iumover
re-assigning staff as needed and trashleshooting problems

Monitors sharps are disposed of properdy

Motitoss trsh is disposed of properly
Ensures staff docs not [ake breaky during umover

I:uswes no personnl phone calls are taken during tutnover

o Physician RoundingRe:

~.Date Completed -]

. PreceplorSigiinture 15

Round.\ with physicians and review labs, med.lcmons and other smdy resnhs with MD,
Updates MD 10 ary new patient developments.

Rccelves new mdm_ transeribes themm accurately, and carry them owt in g time manner.
. Emergency Procedures -~ :° .

Trati Completed

Preceptor-Signature

Tar]

Dcmomtmtes!f ge of Emergency Mr

4

a Fire cvacwation

b. Loss of power

c. Loss of water supply

d. Natum) disasier procedures

Earthquake

Tomado

Hyrricane

Pagc3ofd
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US{RENAL CARF.

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checkiist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY # EQ-1002

REVISION DATE:
0412011

Jh essfully compleled the USRC Charge
Nurse 8kitls Checklist o include successful return demonstrations and is competent to perform the clinical

duties included on this checklist.

Employee Signature:

Reviewer Signature:

Medical Direciar Signature:

Date;

Pagedaofd
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u S.lRENAL CARE

POLICY : PATIENT CARE TECHNICIAN EFFECTIVE DATE:
CERTIFICATION 01/2011

POLICY #: EQ - 0012 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

POLICY:

All Patient Care Technicians (PCTs) shall be certified under a state or a nationally approved
certification program as follows:
1. For newly employed patient care technicians, within 18 months of being hired as a
dialysis patient care technician or
2. For paticnt Care technicians employed on October 14, 2008, within 18 months after this
date (on or before April 14, 2010).
3. For current employees who transfer in to the patient care technician role from other jobs

(reuse or water treatment technicians) certification will be obtained in 18 months from
the date he/she started in the new PCT position

Ultimately US Renal Care (USRC) recognizes that certification of the PCT is an individual
responsibility and a condition of continued employment in the dialysis industry. USRC will:

1. Offer review classes for voluntary attendance.

2. Offer copies of the “Amgen Care Curriculum for the Dialysis Technician” as a study
guide.

3. Assist the employee with the application process to ensure completion and thoroughness
of each application.

4. Pay initially for the first exam.
5. Reimburse for a second testing attempt once proof of a passing score is provided.

6. Encourage cach PCT employed on October 14, 2008 to sit for the certification exam no
later than the cnd of January 2010 to ensure adequate time to reschedule and retake the
exam by the April deadline if necessary.

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and cenfidential information. All Rights Reserved
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US|RENALCARE
Clinical Annual Competency EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/1011

POLICY # EO-9003 REVISION DATE:
Employee:
Title:
Date of Hire:
NOTE: Not All Skills May Be Reguired ] _ . _ S e
Univérsal Precintions/Expusisie Contral-« % TRt | Date'Conipleted - | 5 Précéptor. Sigoature L
Sterile Technique
Aseptic Technique

< 3& | x5 Dife Compleled

Machibe Setiip/Initiation of Treatmiet

o Precepiob Signatore

Hemodialysis Machine Set-Up

Correct Bath

Gathar g1 Supplics

Tum on Water

Alam Testing

Line Placerent/Connect Concenirate

Peracetic Acid or or other Residual Sterilant Testing (when applicabld

Secuores the Correct Dialyza for the Patient

Verification ofDiafyzer

Conductiviy/pH Procadure

Treatment Seitings

Ll

THte Comipletcd’

TFreatmpnt Procednre’; e RER AT

| Preécepton Sigiatutess st

52

Initiation of Tremtment

Caleulating Fluid Removal

Sesting UFR/Programs/Na Modding/Coef

Calculnting Fluid Replacenent

Adjusts Blood How Rate to Paticnt's Prescription

UltrafiltrateOnly

Heparin Administration

Patient Monitaring

Vilal Signs

Fluid Replacanent

Complication Assessment and Treatment

Reports unusual Findingsto CN

Oxygen Administration (if applicable)

Verifies the Ordered Flow Rate from the CN

Sets up Equipment Comecily

Connects Tubing Correcily to Bquipment and to Patient

Comphicaticn Infervenfion:afi Tian .. Date Contfileted 5

PreEceptor Sigontu)

Hypolmsicn

Hypertension

Nausea'Vomiling

Cramping

Chest Pain

SOB

Scizures

Cardiac/Repimaiory Arrest

Informs CN of any Unussal Findings

Pagelof 4
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1:8RENALCARE

Clinical Annual Competency EFFECTIVE DATE:
01,211
POLICY #EO0-3003 REVISION DATE:

Medication Admifistration : - , Erp 215 Date Contpleted i [1f
Ascptic technique is used when preparing and administering intravenous medications
from vials and amplules

P.O.

1M,

LV, Push

1. V. Drip

Sub Q
Labels Syringes Correctly
Licocaine Administration (if applicabie}

Checks Patient’s Prescription

Identifies the Correct Vial of Medication

Preparcs Dosage Commctly

Administers the Dose Comyectly

Observes for and Understands Passible Complications
Heparin Administration (if applicablg

Deseribes Basics of Anticoggulation Therapy

Assess Patient for and Reports Evidence of Active Bleading

Cheeks Patient’s Prescription

[dentifies the Correct Vial of Madication

Prepares Dosage Comeetly

Adminigiers the Dose Correctly

Observes far and Understands Possible Complications

Monitos Appropriateness of Anticoagutation Throughout Treatment
Normal Saline Administration (if applicable)
Understand Facility Protocol
Checks Patient's Prescription
Recopnizes Signs of Hypotenson
Notifies RN Approprintdy
Adminigiers Normal Saline Correctly
Treatnent Tepitinstion 4857 &
Rinseback Procedure
Removal of Fistula Needles
Treatment of Post Treatment Bleeding
Care of Catheters Post Treatment (if applicable)
Discarding Supples
Reports Unusual Findings to CN
Sanitizing equipment and treatment area
Ciitlieteis ‘(As PerState-Reps) ™3 " L= Diste" Compléted *1 -
Assessment
Pretreatment Preparation
Initiation of Dialysis
Accessing the Bloodstream
Corvecting Opaational Problams:
Poor Arterial Flow —
Poor Venous Flow
Cletting in Cathder
Elevaicd Arterial/Venous Pressures
Site Infections'Cultures
Take Off Preparation
Rinseback Procedure
Post Treatment Care of Catheer
Dressing Change

i

Date Completed 4 | s Preceptor Sigiature .

~Preceptor Signaiure .

Pagc2of 4
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115 RENAL CARE,

Clinical Annusl Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-9003

REVISION DATE:

Fistulas/Grafts .

Dafe Completed

Preceptor Signature’ 1

Asscssment of Bruit and Thrill

Pretiestment Preparation

Cannulation

Inspects the Access for Patency

Prepares the Skin Using Aseptic Technique at all Times

Calls for Assisstance Appropriately

Places Needles Corsectly

Replaces Needles Appropriately

Secures Needles

Aceessing the Bloodstream

erational Poblens and Comections,

Responds Appropriatdy to Machine Alams

Infiftration with Cannulation

Infiltration During Treatment

Anerial/Venous Spasms

Arterial/Venous Pressure Problems

Localized Bleeding

Dislodged Needle

Clotted Needie/Dialyzer

Blood Leak into Distysate

Biood 1.£ak Quiside of Blopdpath

Documentatlon . . - & LS R T LT e T

- Date Completed -

Precepior Signstare

Clinical nformation System use

Tlowsheet

Dialyzer and Pntient Verification

Machine Cheghs

Vital Signs

Medication Administration

Pre and Post Assessments

‘Treatmeni Complications

Monthly Nursng Chartirg

Admissions Charting,

Discharge Charting

Patient Occurmence Charting

Patient AssessmenvPlan of Care

Disgnosti¢ Laboratory Testing -2~ 7. 0 255 " o

. Date Compléted

. Preceptor Signature: -

Monthly and Othe Labwork

Blood/Wound Culurs

Blood Gucose Testing

Abte to Describe:Appropriate'Response to Patient Emerpencics

1 iDte Completeds, &

. Precejitor. Signature ;i

Air Embolism

Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest

Unstable Angina

Seizures

Shock

"New Dialyzer Reaction”

Hemoylysi

Pyrogenic Reaction

Chiorine in Dialysate

Other

Page 3 of 4
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Us. [RENALCARE

Clinieal Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

01,2011

POLICY #EO0-2003

REVISION DATE:

Equipinén

: Préceptot Sigiiata e

Drialyzet Blood Leak

Clotted Dialyzerand or Lines

Lass of Electncal Power

Hand Crank Take-Off Procedure

Fire or Flood

Emergency Ev of Bulding

Tomado/Hurmicane/Blizzard Phns

Knews Comect Procedure for Machine Failure

IR T 1

Use ol Errérgéiicy; Equipment S i oo i

0 DafE.Compléted

i Précepior Signwture. v

'pen

Ambu Bag/Oral Airway

Crash Cart

Pertable Suction

Pt, Evacuation Durirg an Emergency

Eilviation: : AT e

= Diite' Completed

. Precépior Signatureé .

Fire Safety

Back Safety

Hazard Communication

Electrical Safety

US Renal Care Standards of Canduct & Complisnce Program

Prevention of $1igs, Trips and Falls

Emergency Preparcdness

Trevention of Needlesticks

Additional conpetencies as required by statespecific regulation, pb roleor needs
assesament

Complete Annual Competency Checkfist - Clinical Employee (Techmical
Training Manual Section 9)

Annual Training Program to include successful retum demonstrations end is competent to perform the

. clinical duties included on this checklist,

Employce Signature:

Precepior Signature:

Medical Director Signature:

, has successfully compkted the USRC Clinical

Deate:

Date:

Date:

Page 4 of 4
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QUARTERLY ASSIGNMENTS for all Staff in Clinics: Health Streams via the internet

1" QUARTER:
HIPAA
Patient Rights

2™ QUARTER:
Infection Control
Personal Protective Equipment
Standard Precautions

3*® QUARTER:
Preventing Slips, trips etc
Back Safety
Electrical Safety

4™ QUARTER:
Fire Safety
Hazard Communications
Corporate Compliance

This is the email that they receive the first day of each quarter at this time.

Report Notification: 226 Assignment Completion - Drill-Through - Created Mar. 31 2011
02:05:29 PM
warp@healthstream.com

Your report entitled '226 Assignment Completion - Drill-Through - Created Mar. 31 2011
02:05:29 PM' is now available. Please click here to view your report.

This report will be available at this location until 5/16/2011 EST. If you wish to keep the report
electronically beyond this date, you may download it to your local machine by clicking ‘File'
then 'Save As...' at the top left corner of your browser.

For your convenience, you can also view this report from within the HealthStream Leamning
Center (HLC). After login, select the 'Reports’ Tab and click on the 'Request Manager' link. With

Request Manager, you can schedule reports to run automatically and view data from previous
reports.

Report data as of 5/2/2011 11:11:54 AM EST.
This is an automated message. Please do not reply.

When they click on the word here, they are automatically taken to this report. By clicking
on any of the blue type they will be taken to a link; if they click on a name they are taken to
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that individual’s transcript, if they click on a topic they are taken to a page that shows how
many in each of the departments within their facility have completed the assignment.
Basically they can look at this many different ways.

ASSIGNMENT COMPLETION REPORT -
US Renal Care

Completion Grid (based on Completion Date)
Completion Date Range: From 1/1/201! through

$/2/2011 Data as of May 04, 2011 1:00 AM ET

Delivered 5/4/2011

Reporting on Scores

Unique Students Included: -8 - [ Completed: . 25.00%

Score Not Yet Due As:  Not Yet Due - Completed On-Time: 21.43%

Show Full Report Critetia:.: - No = - Completed Late: 3.57% o

Group By Department: No Not Yet Due: o 71.43%
PastDue:. "= -~ . C000%
Delinquent: 3.57%
Total: -+ =+ .~ . - 100,00%
Exempt: 0

Return to Complction Sumimary

REPORT DESCRIPTION: COMPLETION METHOD - -
This rcport displays all assignments completed in the date range. Incompletc assignments that intersect
the date range (that is, the assignment start date falls before or during the date range and the end
date falls during or after the date range) are also displayed in the lower layers of the report. The
Completion Grid presents detailed status for all selected students. NOTE: If an assigned Icarning items
and/or assessments was completed outside the date range specified, it will not be included in this report.
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US/|RENAL CARE

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE:
PROGRAMS 01/2011
POLICY # EO-8002 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE PROGRAMS-
SEE STATE SPECIFIC ALSQ

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines on continuing education

POLICY:
All employees must have the opportunity for continuing educntion and related
development activitics. Continuing education and in-service programs are
encouraged for all staff in the facility to continuously improve the quality of
patient care by increasing staff knowledge.

PROCEDURE:

The governing body or designated persons are responsible for developing |
regularly scheduled in-service programs that will meet the needs of the staff and :

the center.

Documentation of attendance at continuing education activities will be kept in
the personnel file for each staff member. Continving education activities may
consist of, bul are not limited to; seminars, lectures, and educational workshops
for one-on-one training.

The Facility Administrator will maintain minutes of all such meetings, including

attendance records. Out of center continuing education programs will be at the
guidance of the Facility Administrator.
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USLIRENAL CARE

POLICY : STAFFING POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: C-AD-0140 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

Staffing requirement for the ESRD facility include the coordination of personnel by the
facility administrator to adequately staff for safe and effective provision of patient care.

The following guidelines will direct the staffing of each facility.

1. Afulltime supervising nurse shall be employed to manage the provision of patient
care.

2. A nurse or nurses functioning in the charge role shall be on site and avaitable to
the treatment area to provide patient care during all dialysis treatments.

3. A registered nurse shall be in the facility when patients are present in the facility
— if applicabie.

4. Licensed nurse to patient ratio shall meet the required state regulations which
govern the facility.

5. Sufficient direct care staff shall be on-site to meet the needs of the patients. The

staffing levet shall not exceed that which is required by state specific regulations
which govern the facility. See below for state specific staffing requirements.

State Specific Staffing Requirements

State Licensed Staff to Direct Care Staff to
Patient Ratio Patient Ratio
Georgia 1to 10 1t04
Maryland 1109 1103
1 New Jersey 109 1103
Ohio None None
South Carolina 1tc 10 1to4
Texas 1t0 12 1tod4
Pennsylvania None None
Arkansas None None
Oklahoma None None
South Carolina None None
New York None Nohe

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Rights Reserved
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77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e}(5) - Medical Staff
As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5), Applicant certifies that US Renal

Care Qak Brook Dialysis will maintain an open medical staff. Any Board Licensed
nephrologist may apply for privileges at this facility.

P e

Signature /

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May _, 2011

Signature of Notary

Seal SN STEWg T,
SNt %
SSRGS
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ATTACHMENT 26

SUPPORT SERVICES

1888959-1
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) - Support Services

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) and with respect to the US Renal
Care Oak Brook Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies that:

1) Applicant certifies that they will utilize the Health Informatics
International system for the provision of care to its patients;

2) Applicant certifies that support services consisting of clinical
laboratory service, blood bank, nutrition, rehabilitation, psychiatric
and social services will be available to its patients; and

3) Applicant certifies that provision of training for self-care dialysis,
self-care instruction, home and home-assisted dialysis, and home
training will be provided by the US Renal Care Oak Brook

Dialysis facility.

Signature /

Thomas .. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19"  day of May , 2011

D Vs

Signature of Notary

Wy

SRU ST,
SRIRY T2

PA

Seal

.."oc vat
LTI

S
-
05
a
m
n
L ]
-
..
7
“'//,

‘37-20 \\*
" W
Gt
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ATTACHMENT 26

MINIMUM NUMBER OF STATIONS

The proposed U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis facility contemplates the establishment of 13
ESRD stations which meets the minimum station requirements for a metropolitan statistical area.
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ATTACHMENT 26

CONTINUITY OF CARE

1888959-1
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

USRC Oak Brook, an lllinois limited Hability company deing business as, US Renal Care Oak
Brook Dialysis (Center) and Adventist Hinsdale Hospital (Hospital) an [llinois not-for-profit
cog:roration, make and enter into this Transfer Agreement (“Agreement™), effective as of this
Dol P 2011 e

WHEREAS, the Center has submitted to the Illinois Health Facilities Services and Review Board
(the “Board”) an application for a certificate of need permit to establish a free-standing renal
dialysis center for treatment of patients with end-stage renal disease, which the Center will locate
in , Ninois;

WHEREAS, the Hospital owns and operates a licensed and Medicare-certified acute-care
hospital, located at 120 N Oak Street, Hinsdale, IHinais, in reasonable proximity to the Center;

WHEREAS, patients of the Center (“Patients™) may require, from time to time, evaluation,
treatment, or admission to the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, the partics hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for facilitating the trapsfer of
Patients to the Hospital.

NOW, THEREFORE, to facilitate the transfer of Patients to the Hospital, the parties hereto agree
to the terms of this Agreement, as set forth below.

1. TRANSFER OF PATIENTS: If the Center determines that a Patient needs emergency
evaluation, treatment, or admission to the Hospital, and a Hospital physician accepts the ransfer
of the Patient, the Hospital will accept the transfer of the Patient, as promptly as possible,
provided such transfer meets the Hospital’s transfer requirements, and the Hospital has adequate
staff and bed space for the Patient. A designated staff member of the Center shall contact a
designated staff member of the Hospital to facilitate such transfer and admission to the Hospital.
The Hospital shall receive Patient in accordance with applicable federa! and state faws and
regulations, and reasonable Hospital policics and procedures. The Hospital’s responsibility for
Patient’s carc shall begin when Patient enters the Hospital.

2. RESPONSIRILITIES OF THE CENTER: The Center shalt be responsible for performing or
ensuring the performance of the following:

a. Transpartation: The Center will arrange for transportation of Patient to the
Hospital;

b. Designated Coordinator; The Center will designate a staff member who has
authority to represent the Center and to coordinate the transfer of the Patient to the
Hospital (“Transfer Coordinator”). The Center will notify the Hospital and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Transfer Coordinator;
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<. Notice to Hospital: The Center's designated staff person will notify Hospital’s
Admission Coordinator before the transfer to alert the Hospital of the impending and
estimated time of arrival of Patient and to provide information on Patient, to the extent
Section 4 of this Agreement allows;

d. Paticnt Choice: The Center recognizes the right of a Patient to (i) request transfer

intothecare-of a-hospitat-of the Patient’s choosing and-(ii) refuseto-consent to treatment—————————
or transfer; and

€ Compliance with Law: The Center will comply with the requirements of
applicable state and fedcral laws relative to the care and transfer of individuals to
hospitais.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE HOSPITAL: The Hospital shall be responsible to perform or
ensure the performance of the following:

a. Designated Coordinator: The Hospital will designate a person who has authority
to represent the Hospital and to coordinate the transfer and admission of Patients into the
Hospital (“Admission Ceordinator™). The Hospital will notify the Center and keep it
apprised of the name and contact information of the Admission Coordinator; and

b. Compliance with Law: The Hospital will comply with the requirements of
applicable state and federal Jaws relative to individuals admitted to hospitals.

4. PATIENT INFORMATION: In order to meet Patients’ needs for hospital care, the Center
shall provide relevant Patient information 1o the Hospital. Such information may include:
resident name, social security number, date of birth, insurance coverage, Medicare beneficiary
information (if applicable), current medical findings, diagnoses, known allergies or medical
conditions, treating physician, contact person in case of emergency, and any other relevant
information Patient has provided the Center in advance.

5. NoN EXCLUSIVITY: This Agreement shall in no way give the Hospital an exclusive right
of transfer of Patients to the Hospital. The Center may enter into similar agreements with other
hospitals, and Patients will continue to have complete autonomy with respect to decisions on
medical care.

6. FREEDOM OF CHOICE: In entering into this Agreement, the Center in no way endorses or
promoies the services of the Hospital. Rather, the Center intends to coordinate timely transfer
for medical care. Patients are in no way restricted in their choice of hospitals or medical-care
providers.

7. BILLING AND COLLECTIONS: Hospital and the Center are each responsible for billing the
appropriate payer for the services it provides. Neither party shall have any liability to the other
party for such charges.

8. INDEPENDENT RELATIONSHIP

19024842 2
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a. Independent Cortractors: In performing services pursuant to this Agreement,
the Hospital and all cmployees, agents, or representatives of the Hospital are, at all times,
acting and performing as independent contractors, and mothing in this Agreement is
intended, and nothing shall be construed, to create an employer/employcc, partnership, or
joint-venture relationship between them. The Center shall neither have nor cxercise any
direction or control over the methods, techniques, or procedures by which the Hospital or

other employees, Tgents; Or representatives ‘of the~Hospitat- perform-their professiomal
responsibilities and functions. The sole interest of the Center is to coordinate timely
transfer of Patients for medical care.

b. Hospital Employee Payment: The Hospital shall be solely responsible for the
payment of compensation and benefits to its personnel and for compliance with all
payments of taxes, social security, unemployment compensation, and workers’
compensation.

c. Non-Hospital Personnel: Notwithstanding the terms of this Agreement, in no
event shall the Hospital or any Hospital personne] be responsible for the acts or omissions
of non-Hospital personnel.

9. INSURANCE: The Hospital shall maintzin, at no cost to the Center, professional-liability
insurance in an amount customary for its business practices. The Hospital shall provide evidence
of the coverage required herein to the Center on an annual basis.

10.  INDEMNIFICATION: The Hospilal shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Center
from and against any and all liability, loss, claim, lawsuit, injury, cost, damage, or expense
whatsoever (inciuding reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs), arising out of, incident to, or
in any manner occasioned by the Hospital’s (or any of its employee’s, agent’s, contractor’s, or
subcontractor’s) performance or nonperformance of any duty or responsibility under this
Agreement.

11.  TERM AND TERMINATION

a. Term: The term of this Agrecment shall commence on the date of execution and
shall continue in effect for one year (the “fnifial Term’) and shall renew on an annual
basis (“Renewal Ternt™), absent cither party’s written notice of non-renewal to the other
party, at least 30 calendar days before the expiration of the Initial Term or any subsequent
Renewal Term of this Agreement.

b. Events of Termination: Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:

i For No Cause: At any time upon 30 days prior, written notice to the other
party.
il Insolvency: Upon 10 business days’ prior written notice, in accordance

with Section 12.g of this Agreement, if either party shall: apply for or consent to
the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of itself or of all or a
substantial part of its asscts; file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; admit in

1902434-2 3
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writing its inability to pay its debts as they becomc due; make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors; file a petition or an answer seeking
reorganization or arrangement with ereditors or take advantage of any insolvency
law; or enlers a court of competent jurisdiction order, judgment, or decree or an
application of a creditor, adjudicating such party to be bankrupt or insolvent,
approving a petition seeking reorganization of such party, appointing a receiver,

triistee ot liguidator of eithey such party or of all-or-a-substantial partof “such
parties’ assets; and such order, judgment, or decree continues in effect and
unstayed for a period of 30 consecutive calendar days.

c. Immediate Termination: Notwithslanding anything to the contrary herein, this
Apreement terminates immediately upon the following events: (a) the suspension or
revocation of the license, certificate, or other legal credential, authorizing the Hospital to
provide hospital and medical-care services, (b) the termination of the Hospital’s
participation in, or the exclusion from, any federal or state health program, for reasons
related to fraud or failure to comply with certification standards in the rendering of health
services; or (€) the cancellation or termination of the Hospital’s professional-Hability
insurance that this Agreement requires, and the Hospital has not obtained replacement
Coverage.

12, MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

a. Counterparts: The parties may execute this Agreement in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all such counterparts together shall
constitute the same instrument.

b. Waiver: Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing, and
the parties have signed it. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not
waive any other terms and conditions hereof.

c. Severability: The provisions of tlis Agreement are severable, and, if a court of
competent jurisdiction funds any portion invalid, illegal, or unenforceable for any reason,
the remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and binding upon the parties.

d. Headings: All headings herein are only for convenience and ease of reference,
and no one may consider them in the construction or interpretation of any provision of
this Agreement.

e. Assignment: The Hospital may not assign, delegate, or subcountract this
Agreement, without prior written consent of the Center.

f. Governing Law: The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the enforcement
and interpretation of this Agreement.

1902484-2 4
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L Notices: Any required or permitted notice herein shall be in writing. It shall be
deemed duly given on the date of service, if a party personally serves it on the other
party, or on the fourth day after mailing, if a party mails it to the other party by certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, at the address below:

To Dialysis Provider: To the Hospital:

T NgveToer Rranie Boptec

/0 Ak QJQJC .
Ly wsDate SL as2y

With a copy to: With a copy to: ,
/Uﬂﬂeﬁ{f-/ghﬁ‘:-{””"
fao n 04
£l rosbate ,L L Gos iy

or at such other place or places as any of the parties shall designate by written notice to
the other.

h. Amendment: The parties may amend this Agreement upon their mutual, written
agreement.

i Regulatory Compliance: The parties agree that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall require the Center to refer residents to the Hospital for hospital or
medical-care services or to purchase goods and services. Notwithstanding any
unanticipated effect of any provision of this Agreement, neither party will knowingly and
intentionally conduct its behavior in such a manner as to violate the prohibition against
fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

i Access to Books and Records: If applicable, upon written request of the
Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their duly authorized representatives, the Hospital shall make available to the
Secretary or to the Comptroller General those contracts, books, documents and recards
necessary to verify the nature and extent of the costs of providing its services under this
Agreement. The Hospital shall make such inspection available for up to four years after
the rendering of such service. Public Law 96-499 and applicable regulations governs and
requires this Section 12.j. The parties agree that this Agreement shall not waive any
attomey-client, accountant-client, or other legal privileges.

1902484-2 5
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IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized officers, have executed this
Apreement os of the date first written above.

USRC Oak Brook, LLC Adventist Hinsdale Hospital
A I B 4 i Pt Y | ™ i}

By: 4 SRNL = By:\JW Y et

Its: Manager s: Y P/ LED

1502484-2 &
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ATTACHMENT 28

ASSURANCES

1888959-1
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77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j) - Assurances

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j), and with respect to the US Renal Care
Oak Brook Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies the following:

1. By the second year of operation after project completion, the Applicant
will achieve and maintain the 80% utilization standards as specified in 77

Iil. Adm. Code § 1100; and

2. That Applicant will achieve and maintain compliance with the following
adequacy of hemodialysis outcome measures for the latest 12-month
period for which data are available:

> 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves area reduction ratio
(URR) > 65% and > 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves
Kt/V Daugirdas II .1.2.

e

Signature /

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19" day of May , 2011

D Ve

Signature of Notary

WAL STE %
SRl
e $ SR
NN H
z Y ° 5 F
2 GO S O§
Y, SR 8

E: :2.012 \‘\
\\\
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ATTACHMENT 39

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Applicant documents that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the
estimated total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient
financial tesourccs from cash and securities. Applicant will fund the project through capital
contributions from its members. In the event that such contributions are insufficient to cover the
costs associated with this project, U.S. Renal Care Inc. will provide funding to Applicant through
USRC Alliance by way of a revolving promissory note. As evidence of U.S. Renal Care Inc.'s
financial viability, we have included audited financials for 2008-2010. In addition, included in
Attachment 42 is a certification from U.S. Renal Care Inc. attesting to the reasonableness of the
financing arrangement.

1888559-1

Attachment 39 114




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editfon

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicanis or co-applicanis respensible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencles, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 48 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

« Section 1120.120 Availabllity of Funds - Review Criteria
e Section 1120430 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

Vill. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The appficant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal fo or exceed the estimated lofal
praject cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the doflar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1,861.668 a) Toeh and Secunilles ~ stalements (s.4., audited financial statemenis, letlers from financial
’ ’ institutions, board resolutions} as to:

1 the emount of cash and securilies available for the project, including the
tdenilfcatlon of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2} Interest to be eamed on depreciation account funds or to be earmed on any
assel flom e date of applicant's submission through project completlon;

b) Pledges - for anficipaled pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted valua, estimated time table of gross receipts and melated furdraising
expenses, and a discussion of past undraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
{he estimated time table of receipls;

L] Debt - a statement of {he estimated terms and conditions (including the debt tme perlod, variabla
or permanend interest retes over Ihe debl time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule} for
any Interim and for the permanent financing proposed 1o fund he project, including:

1 For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to Issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, Including any discounting

anlicipated;

2) For reverue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the epacifiad amount and
interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a tetter from the prospective lender atlesting to the expectation

of making the loan In the amount and time indicated, mduding the anticipated
interest rale and any conditlons assodated with the morlgags, such as, til not
limited 1o, adjustable interest rates, bakloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, inctuding afl thee teams end conditions,
including any purchase oplions, any capitel improvemnents to the preperty and
provision of capltal equlpment;

5) For any option 1o kease, a copy of the option, including alt ierms and conditiens.

e} Governmental Approprialions - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordirance accompanied by a
statemant of funding availabity from an offiGal of the governmenta! unil. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resslution of other acllon of the govemmenial
unit atlesting to this intent;

1 Grants — a letier from the grantng agancy as to the avaitabllity of funds In terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g} All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the Bmaunt and type of any ather funds that will be
used for the project.

$1,861,668 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)

Attachment 39 116




KPMG LLP

Suite 3100

717 North Harwood Street
Daltas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of Dccember 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We condueted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement prescntation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all naterial
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Carc, Inc, and subsidiariés as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the results of their operatiens and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMe LP

Dallas, Texas
April 27, 2011

KPM3 WP is 3 Dbmware lmited babity partnorshlp,
the U.Y. member e of KPMO Imwinationsl Coaparatva
HPMG Inemsrfonal), 3 Swiss emtity.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Assels

Cash and cash equivaicnts $
~ Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $13,458,494 and 58,460,232

Inventorics

Other reccivables

Deferred tax asset

Other current assets

Total current assels

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Trade names

Investment in affiliate
Gaoodwill

Other long-term assets
Delerred tuxes

Total nssets b3

Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable . $
Accrued expenses )

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lcase obligations

Current portion of refated-party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lcase obligations, net of current portion
Related-party notes payable

Other long-term linbililies

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock acerued dividends

Total liabilities
Commiiments and contingencies

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 20,325,000;
issued and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-{($0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,431,666 and 1,415,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000;
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,500,962 shores)

Preferred stock D (§0.01 par value. Authorized shases 8,333,333;
issued and outsianding 8,333,333 and 0 shares)

Common stock ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares §3,525,000 and
52,525,000 issued and outstanding 7,074,324 and 7,074,324 shares)

Additional paid-in capital 4

Retained comings

Total 1.8. Renal Care, Inc. slockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests {including redeemable interasts with redemption
values of $40,999,428 and $23,600,000)

_Total equity

Total habilities and equity ]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

010 1009

9,537,107 15,325,357
48,449,631 25,900,874
3,100,193 1,369,198
9,994 938 4,863,513
6,215,457 904,600
2,636,244 1,429,165
79,933,570 49,792,707
46,781,941 19,251,600
27,349,714 12,241,011
859,000 —

— 217,670
190,524,762 67,922,354
470,902 238,961

— 906,459
345,919,889 130,570,762
9,045,119 5,675.616
24248618 16,485,807
2.924 662 1447,595
125,000 125,000
36,343,399 23,734,018
181,723,922 62,010,592
—_ 125,000
440,844 332,982
9,480,942 —
19,831,208 14,736,426
247,820,315 101,139,018
123,500 123,500
14,317 14,157
245,010 245,010
83,333 —_
70,744 62,229
38,667,471 36,454,222
5,291,320 1,497.694
44,495,695 38,396,812
53,603,879 11,034,932
98,099,574 49,431,744
345,919,889 150,570,762
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net operating revenues

Operating cxpenses:
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Legal cost/settlement
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Net income
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling intcrests
Net income attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

3

" 2010 2009
237,606,328 153,164,637
154,284,195 98,842,829

20,207,561 15,601,927

6,898,682 4,585,251
(352,334) 286,647
9,076,731 460,465

14,655,411 7,957,301
204,770,246 127,734,420

32,836,082 25,430,217

10,192,698 2,923,456

22,643,384 22,506,761

5,826,130 (3,191,190)
16,817,254 25,697,951
13,023,628 10,103,151

3,793,626 15,594,800
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income )
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Noncash disputc scttlement
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent
Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Equity investment income
Stock compensation expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other receivables
Other current assets
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics:

Acquisilions, net of cash acquired

Sale of property and equipment
Additions of property and equipment, net
Purchase of noncontrolling interests
Investment in affiliatc

Net cash used in investing activitics

Cash flows from financing activitics:

Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings

Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable
Deferred financing costs

Proceeds from capital leases

Capiltal lcase payments

Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of commen stock

Repurchase of preferred stock

Contributions from noncontroiling interests

Distributions to noncentrolling interests

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash cquivaients

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ycar

2010 2009
16,817,254 25,697,951
14,655,411 7,957,301

450,000 -

31,337 (83,399)
6,898 682 4,585,251
2,929,214 (4,794,034)

(805,801) (17,646)

102,652 55,096

41,711 —

(11,223,175) (9,500,021)
1,065,325 1,046,906
(2,773,018) (529,248)
(326,422) (93,041)
{1,049,343) 7,176

585,137 (5,143,239)

331,317 (12,936)
27,730,281 19,176,117

(116,523,175) (386,762)
3,172,324 —_
(18,394,835) (7,431,804)
(18,991,500) —
101,335 (200,024)
(150,635,851) {8,018,590)
181,952,491 8,750,000
(73,000,188) (600,224)
(7.938,537) (7,429)
3,260,343 336,118
(1,243,894) (799,901)
25,015,999 316,000
43,648 29,823
- (75,000
695,750 267,750
(11,668,292) (9,463,932)
117,117,320 (1,246,790)
(5,788,250) 9,910,737
15,325,357 5,414,620
9,537,107 15,325,357

(Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statcments of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

| : | ' 2010 2009
| Supplemental cash flow information:
| Cash paid for interest ] 3 8,474,494 2,780,464
| Cash paid for taxes 4,814,265 1,260,000
Supplemental disclosures of noneash investing and financing activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends 3 5,094,782 3,924,249
Capital lease financing 99,126 463,783

Sec accompanying notes le consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1} Organization and Significant Accounting Policics

(a)

(b)

)

@

(e}

Organization and Business

11.S. Renal Care, Inc. {the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as c¢nd stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanccd kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis trcatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD gencrally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2010, the Company operated
34 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Atkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center operations, as

. of December 31, 2010, the Company provides acute dialysis services through contractual

relationships with 21 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their hormes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significani intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial slatements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles {GAAP) requires management to make cstimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent asscis and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peried.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from thesc estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management's best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Reccivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The cstimated provision for doubtful

7 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party pﬁyors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare

- beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as

such, the actual payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending revicw and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivablcs, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPO), vitamin D and iron. During
2010 and 2009, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This.incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. in addition,
therc was an additiona! annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventorics consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are siated at the
tower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumuiated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments lcss accumulated depreeiation.
Depreeiation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the asscts
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leaschold improvements Life of lease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the leasc term or the estimated useful ife of the
improvement, Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred. A

8 {Continued)
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U.5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDARIES
Notes to Consolidatcd Financial Slatements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwisc disposcd of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

(i)  Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts reccivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various povernmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
57% and 55% of gross accounts receivable at December31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

(k) Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilitics include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the leasc.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred finaneing costs at the date of rcpayment,
which is included in inferest expense.

() Goadwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible asscts and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are ‘instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annua! evaluation for 2010 and 2009 resulted in no impairment charges.

{m) Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluatcs long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impaimment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable
or the useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value, :
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{n) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the Company’s financial instruments where the carrying value and fair
value differ (amounts in millions):

Fair value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Siguificant Signifieant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobscrvable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial instrument 2010 ~{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Scnior scoured credit
facility 3 178,917 — — 189,632

The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based upon a
discounted present value analysis of future cash flows. Due o the existing uncertainty in the capital
and credit markets, the actval rates that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could
materially differ from the estimates the Company has uscd.

The fair valuc of the intcrest rate swaps are determined using quoted market prices for similar swap
agreements and were nominal at December 31, 2010.

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the iast unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level | — Quoted prices in active markels for identical asscts and liabilities.

- Level 2 — Inputs other than Level | that are obscrvable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by ohscrvable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimatesthe can-ymg
amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.
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Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health pians for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fec schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the diffcrences berween amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilitics are ccrtified to participate in the Medicarc program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program arc recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis scrvices (ESRD Program). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicarc ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies. There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and phanmaceuticals such as
EFQ, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
arc now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity improvement factor. The bundied payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass all goods and scrvices provided during the dialysis ireatment,
including pharmaceuticals that werc historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services thal were previously paid directly to laboratories are alse included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaccutical utilization since reimburscment is set at a fixed average reimbursement
raie.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions of 2% and 0.8%, respectively, to conform
1o the provisions of MIPPA and to establish budget neutrality. Further, there is a 5.94% reduction
tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be eamed back upon the presence of these
certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time of treatment. Historically, dialysis
providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors and this may be difficult to capture
initially. There are also other provisions which may impact reimbursement including an outhier
adjustinent and a low volume facility adjustment.

As of November I, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January 1, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimbursement system beginning January 1, 2011.

_ Onee this election was made, it may not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certilication

subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.
Beginning in 2012, dialysis providers will also be subject to a 2% annual Medicarc payment
withholding that can be carned back by facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance
standards.
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Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates [or dialysis treatment fumished to
patients. The remaining 20% may bc paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and il the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforis, Medicare may
rcimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Mcdicaid rcimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which thc Company
has formal agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue rccognition involves substantial judgment. With scveral commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the comresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Undcr the fair-value method, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity -compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated vatue of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canccled, or repurchased.
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The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of oplions granted during the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 22%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected lifc of 3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of
1.08% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from two public dialysis
companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified method as permitied by the
Securities and Exchange .Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share Based Payment. The
expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent history and
expectations as segrepated between the Company's board of directors, senior officers, and other
grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year United
States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 352,000 and 195,000 options granted
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see note 9).

(@) Noncontrolling Inferest

In December 2007, the FASB issued an accounting standard, Nonconmtrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requircs disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced {increased) by the proportionatc amount of incomc or loss
accruing 0 noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

{r} Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted -for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable 1o the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit camyforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
cnacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or sctiled, The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asscts will not be
realized.
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The Company adopted thc accounting standard update ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January I, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company rccognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relcvant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-net threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest

. benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settfement with the
relevant tax authotity. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years beforc 2006.In
2010,th ¢ Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns. The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment.

‘I'he Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating cxpenses for all periods presented. :

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur fedcral income taxes. Instead,
their eamnings and losses are included in the returns of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries,

" {s). Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement as a means of hedging its exposure to

" and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agrecments are designed as cash flow
hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the economic
effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixcd ratcs.

In 2010, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging), which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are aceounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
(see note 6).
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1} Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2009, the Cotnpany adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis, The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statcments.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statemcnts, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company cvaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2010 and through April 27,
2011, the date on which the financial statements were issued.

(u)  Reclassifications

Centain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 consolidated financial statement balanccs to
conform with the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on earnings or
stockholders’ equity,

(2) Fixed Assels
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, property and equipment consists of the following:

2010 2009

.Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems $ 42,891,347 22,202,152
Land and buildings 6,747,940 —
Leasehold improvements 21,493,319 9,731,329
New center construction in progress ) 778,865 2,829,967
. 71,911,471 34,763,448
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (25,129,530) (15,511,848)
¥ 46,781,941 19,251,600

Year cuded December 31

2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment b 9,304,459 5,355,638
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Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

. 2010 2009
Equipment 5 16,671,572 7,312,321
Less accumulated depreciation (6,099,837) (4,092,015)

' b 4,571,735 © 3,220,306

(3)  Acquisitions/Disposition

The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilitics for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information.

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The resuits of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial siatements
beginning on the effcctive acquisition date. '

(@)  Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc.Ac quisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA)for $11.25 per share. DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
acute scrvices in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina.
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010,

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6) and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8). All purchase accounting adjustments are final
except for certain deferred tax calculations primarily related to flow-through entities.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition datc arc as

follows:

Assets:
Cash
Net accounts receivable
[nventory
Other receivables
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, nct
Amortizable intangibles, net
Goodwill

Other [ong-term assets

- Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Total liabilities

Equity:

Minority interest

Total cquity

$

1,294,958
17,072,334
2,684,480
1,280,382

2,257,895

24,590,049

20,526,500
12,957,381
113,828,342
863,600

172,765,872

4,958,871

6,177,187

11,136,058

9,586,971
(326,883)

3,808,826
24200972

38,310,900

$  38310,900
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(6) San Antonio

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% intcrest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership interest for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consolidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010, Previously, the Company’s investment was recorded
" using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately

$922.,000,
Assets:
Cash 5 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,726
Other receivables . 1,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwill 8,426,146
Total assets 3 11,280,069
Liabilities:
Accounts payable b 25,983
Accrued expenses 145,888
Total liabilities 5 171,871
Equity: ‘
Minority interest 3 2,986,200
Tolal equity $ 2,986,200

(c) December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (Dccember Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
interest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately 31 nillion was funded from
operating cash flow.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
[nventory $ 89,114
Other current assets 26,017
Fixed assets " 416,000
Goodwill 869,546
Total assets $ 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses 3 357,713
Total liabilities 3 357,713

{d) Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA aequisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain ot |oss.

(4) Noncontrolling Interests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity intercsts with respect to its consolidated
subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for s equity
transaetions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was the majority owncr in'48 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 48 joint ventures, 17 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noneontrolling interests totaled $7.3 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $41.0 million and $23.6 million at Tlecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The redcmption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2010,
$7.0 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $34.0 million become exercisable at
future dates.

During the year, there were nine time-based puls exercised in the Company’s South Texas region and one
in the San Antonio region. The Company paid $18.4 million relating to these puts. As a result of the DCA
acquisition, there was one change of contro] put that was partially exercised at one clinic for $600,000.
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(5) Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2010 2009

Noncompetition agreements § 31,836,273 20,132,544
Lease agreements 580,106 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,939,537 1,910,489
Licenses ) 359,000 —
40,714,916 22,119,254
Less accumulated amortization (13,365,202) {9,878,243)
Net amortizable intangible assets g 27,349,714 12,241,011

Amortizable intangible liabilitics, which are inciuded in other long-term liabilitics, consisted of lcase
agreements as follows:

2010 1009
Lease agreements 3 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization (648,449) (556,311)
Net amortizable intangible assets h 440,844 532,982

Amortization of intangible assets and labilitics over the next five ycars is as follows:

Deferred debt

Noncompetition issuance Lease
agreements costs agreements Licenses
2011 £ 4,564,626 1,323,090 396,359 71,800
2012 4,492,939 1,323,090 307,657 71,800
2013 4,418,857 1,323,090 227,206 71,800
2014 4322211 1,323,050 183,663 71,800
2015 1,281,681 1,323,090 149,418 29917

Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2010 2009
Balanee at January 1 $ 67,922,354 67,559,887
Goodwill adjustments {521,626) 362,467
Goodwill acquired ‘ 123,124,034 —
Balance at December 31 § 190,524,762 67,922,354
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The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill rccorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’'s intangible assets relates io the valve associated with the
noncompete and lease apgreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements exccuted in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized aver the
term of the lease. '

Long-Term Debt

On June3, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior credit agrcement that consists ofi (a) a
$132.5 million senior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a $40 million senior secured revolving credit
facility.(Revolver). Also on June 3, 2010, the Company entcred into a $40 million senior subordinated loan
agreement (the Subordinated Loan). The proceeds of the Term Loan and the Subordinated Loan along with
available cash on hand were utilized to: (a} pay off the Company’s existing CIT Term Loan B and
Revolver (which bore interest at 4.25% at December 31, 2009), (b) pay expenses and fees associated with
the new senior secured arid subordinated loan agreements, and (¢) to fund the DCA acquisition (see note 3)
including cost and fees related thereto.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver (collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.75%) or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted
based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The new Senior Secured Loan also provides for an annual

" unused commitment fee of 0,75% based upon the average revolving credit commitment less outstanding
-borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31, 2010, borrowings under the

Senior Secured Loans bore interest at 6.25%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with
11.25% paid in cash per annum.The remain ing 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PTK Interest) will
be capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.

The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $331,250 in each year from 2011 through 2015
with the balance of $124,881,250 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one- time payment of
$40 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 2, 2015, June 2, 2016 and June 2, 2017,
respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid within the
first four years subsequent to June 3, 2010.

Commencing with thc fiscal year cnded December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defincd in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: (a} 50% of the net
proceeds of certain capital contributions as defined in the credit agreement, (b) 100% of the proceeds of
assel sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or permitted
pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (c} 100% of the procecds of indebtedness that is incurred
and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment under the
Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with 100% of
the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty cvent settiement that aré not reinvested
or permiticd pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement.
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The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and scveral basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreements are collateralized by most of the
. Company’s essets, including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted
capital leases, The Subordinated Loan is subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The
Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan agreements include various events of default and contain certain
“restrictions on the operations of the business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including
capital expenditures, investments and the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include
covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, interest coverage, and total debt leverage, as well as other
customary covenants and events of defaults,

The Company belicves it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations. At December 3i, 2010,
approximately $33.0 million was unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Senior secured credit facility:
CIT term loan B b — 34,873,000
CIT revolver — 24,968,762
Term loan 131,506,250 —
Revolver 7,000,000 —
Subordinated loan 40,410,549 —_
Other notes payable
Capital lease obligations 23,305 23,532
. 5,708,430 3,592,893
Less current portion 184,648,584 63,458,187
‘ (2,924,662) (1,447,595)
$ 181,723,922 62,010,592
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December3|, 2010 were as
follows: :

Long-term Capital leasc
debt obligations
2011 - $ 1,346,461 1,964,299
2012 1,326,844 1,402,897
2013 1,325,000 1,208,797
2014 1,325,000 988,427
2015 8,325,000 486,895
Thereafter 165,291,799 809,975
$ 178,940,104 - 6,861,290
Less interest portion at 5.719% — 8.561% - (1,152,810)
: Total $ 5,708,480

According to the senior secured loan agreement, the Company was required to enter into an interest rate
hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The Company entered into a three
year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest rate cap on the LIBOR floating
rate of the senior sccured loans at 1.75% unti! August 31, 2011. Additionally the Company entered into a
swap from September 1, 2011 to September 1, 2013 effectivcly fixing the base rate at 2.32%, The notional
amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to 35% of the Term Loan amount borrowed.
The fair values of the interest rate cap and swap are insignificant at December 31, 2010 and are not being
accounted for as an effective hedge resulting in no adjustment to fair value being recorded to the statement
of operations as interest expense.

Income Taxes

[ncome tax expense (bencfit) consisted of the following;

2010 2009

Current:

Fedcral 3 1,652,164 678,126

State 1,244,752 924 717
Deferred;

Federal 3,086,086 (4,783,401)

Slate (156,872) (10,632)

L 5,826,130 (3,191,150)

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin lax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax attributable to
nonconirolling interest.

23 ) {Continucd)

Attachment 36 139




®

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities arising from temporary differcnces were as follows:

2010 2009
Deferred tax asscts:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible 3 5,776,527 765,594
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution limitation 858,471 1,345,244
Flow through entities 4,328,310 3,671,996
Property plant and equipment 197,679 236,104
-Other 151,589 332,312
Total deferred tax assets 14,312,576 6,351,250
Deferred tax liabilities: ‘
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
_ differences in depreciation and amortization (3,546,732) (25,657)
Goodwill (11,031,330) (4,514,534)
Total deferred tax liabilities (14,578,062) {4,540,191)
"Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) b (3,265,486) 1,811,059
The valuation allowancc eonsisted of the following:
2010 2009
Balance at January 1 3 — 6,149,048
Increase (decreasc) during the year — {6,149,048)

Balance at December 3} $ —

The Company had net opcrating loss carryforwards of approximately $205,000 as of December 31, 2009,
which were utilized in 2010. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2010 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such

deferred tax assets.

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 108,783,333 total shares
are nuthorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 55,258,333 shares of preferred
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board

of directors.

(a) Series A Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding.
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Serics B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Scrics B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
Dccember 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 545,000 and 529,000 shares, respectively, of Series B
Preferred outstanding,.

Series B-1 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 24,50{,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding.

Series D Preferred Stock

During 2010, 8,333,333 shares of Preferred D Stock were issued at a price of $3 per share for total
net proceeds of approximately $25.0 million in connection with the acquisition of DCA. As of
December 31, 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred outstanding,

Dividends

Series A Preferred, Series C Preferred, and Series D Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issuc prices, Dividends are
cumulative from the date of original issuance and accrue guarterly. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Serics A, SeriesC and Series D Preferred stock do not bear interest and are payable
generally at the time of a liquidating event as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred,
Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockhoiders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the board of directors out of the Company’s assets legally available therefore, so long as
all accrued dividends on then outstanding Serics A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock have been
paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on
September 1, 2020, if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Series A, Series C,
and Series D Preferred. Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on
September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A, Series C, and Series D
Preferred Stock and if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, Series C, and
Series D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding
shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments caleulated using the sum
of the original issue prices ($1 per share for Series A,Seri es C, and Series D Preferred, and §1.50 for
Series C and Serics B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrucd and unpaid dividends.
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Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Serics D Preferred stock is convertible at
any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of
Series A, Series B, Scrics B-1, Series C, and Serics D converts automatically upon a qualified public
offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will reccive proceeds, to the extcnt available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal
to their original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past
dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the likc); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus
any accrucd and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations, and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A
Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Siock shall have
received, in total including the payment under (a} above, an amount equal to three {3) times the
Series A and Series C and two (2) times the Series D original issue price, respectively; and
(d} fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts.

Foting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders vote together as a
scparate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Serics A, Series C and
Series D Preferrcd stockholders must approve the evenl.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Series A, Serics C and Series D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A,S eries C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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(k) Other Terms

If Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared,
and no shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued
Series A, Scrics C and Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is
declared on Scries A,Se ries C and Series D Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the
board of directors. ’

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new sceurities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Serics A, Series C or
Series D Preferred shereholder fails to purchasc a full proportionate share of the any new sccurities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred,and common stockhelders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and commen stockholders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to cmployees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. There were 6,000,000 and 5,400,000 shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, under the amended 2003 SIP.

{a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 included $70,744 and $13,271 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2010, there was $22,072 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.37 years,

27 : (Continued}

Attachment 39 143




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemcnts
Dccember 31, 2010 and 2009

The table below suminarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of .
year 1,016,066 3 0.14 1,061,692 % 0.14
Granted 352,000 0.26 195,000 0.15
.Exercised (291,472) 0.15 (208,751) 0.14
Canceled — — (31,875} 0.11
Quitstanding at end of year 1,076,594 % 0.18 1,016,066 3 0.14
Awards exercisable at ‘

year-end 380,742 § 0.14 412941 § 0.14

(b}  Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise cncumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair
market valug upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting pcriod The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $31,908 in 2010 and $41,825 in 2009. The
following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2010 2009
Outstanding balance at beginning of year b 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted 560,000 —
Exercised — -
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 3 3,961,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activiry:

2010 2009
Outstanding balance at beginning of year 5 641,122 1,384,334
Granted 560,000 —
Vested (488,369) (743,212)
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 b 712,753 641,122

At December3l, 2010, 3,248,805 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2010, there was approximately $320,471 of total unrecognized compensation costs
velated to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervisien of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 39 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medicai directors is negotiated individually and depends in gencral on local factors such
as competition, the profcssional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the worktoad at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the ovcrall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary refemal
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center,

The Company’s medical director agrcements generally include covenants not to compele. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not fo
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 44 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold owncrship
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under thesc leases is approximately $22 million at December 31, 2010, exclusive
of mainterance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2010 and 2009, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company cntercd into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease is expected to commence in 2011, The future lease payments payable under this
lease are approximately $1.5 million.

The Company’s York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited Lability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owncd by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in
cntities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-lenglh bargaining between
indcpendent parties. ‘

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiarics. The note obligation was in an originat amount of $750,000, of which $125,000 and $250,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respcctively. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classificd in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual instaliments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 2011,

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,011 and $293,101, respectively, for the usage of an sirplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximalely $100,000 and $108,333 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject to cxtensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet varjous standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper owncrship and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
cnvironmental standasds, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These taws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with thesc laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company’s dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
- Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities,

The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickhack statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a falsc or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal government, Ancther federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues, The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among othcr things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular heaithcare provider.
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws,

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, cxpulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations. :

(12) Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who mect certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute 2 defined portion of their compensation on a tax-dcferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employces. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employces of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $386,328 and $391,053.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2010 or 2009.

(13) Commitments and Centingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs aileged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd. (Rencare) conceming accounts receivable that arose prior (o the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff's claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attomey fees. Both sides appealed and the Company fully prevailed in the appeal. The
appellant court moved that the plaintiff should receive nothing. Plaintiff moved for reconsideration and the

- appeliant court dismissed their motion. Plaintiffs are seeking further appellant review. At this time, the
Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resolution. The Company incurred legal and other
professional fees related to this litigation. Thesc expenses aggregated $27,208 and $236,647 i 2010 and
2009, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it
recorded in 2008.

Tn February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
. Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA clinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date, While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties, (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and {c) the Company incurring legal
cxpenscs and management time, any or alf of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
- $389,741 in 2010, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.

In December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the U.S. Attomey for
the District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Coinpany at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company is in the process of gathering the required
documents and performing its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not
the subject of the govemment’s investigation, the outcome of this matter is uncertain and the Company has
risk of an adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in scveral of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are excrcised, the
Company would be required to purchasc the third-party owncrs” interests at fair market value (se¢ note 4).
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The Company rents office space, medical facilitics, and medical equipment under lease agreements that arc
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2010, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the

Tollowing:

2011 5 9,210,791
2012 8,665,034
2013 7,709,826
2014 6,288,782
2015 5,566,500
Thereafter 12,080,991

Rent expcnse was $8,129,164 and $6,290,202 for the years ended December31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively.
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KPMG LLP

Svite 3100

717 North Harwood Street
Datlas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Anditors® Report

The Board of Dircctors
U.S. Renal Carc, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
cquity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial staterments arc the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thcse
consolidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate inthe
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An endit also includes
£xamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemcnt, as well as
cvaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinicn.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refemed to above present fairly, in all matcrial
respects, the financial position of U.S. Rena) Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

As discussed in note | 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of
accounting for noncontrolling interests in 2009 retrospective to 2008 due to the adoption of new
accounting requircments issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, as of January 1, 2009.

KP M UP

Dallas, Texas
April 21, 2010

KPMQ LLP, g \.5. limhed kability partnemhip. Is te U3,
rrember kmn of KPMO Intemational, 5 Swias coopemtive.
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receiveble, net of allowances of $8,460,232 and 56,589,745
Inventorics

Other receivables

Qther current asscts

Total current assers

Property and equipment, net
Amonrizable intangibles, net
Investment in effiliate
Goodwill

Other long-term assets
Deferred taxes

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt and capilal lease obligations
Current portion of related party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligalions, net of current portion
Relnted party notes payable

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liability

‘Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

1).8. Renal Care, Inc. Equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par vatue, Authorized shares 20,325,000;
issued and outstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,415,666 and 1,449,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 25,000,000,
issued and outstanding 24,500,262 and 24,300,962 shares)

Common stock ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 6,222,852 and 6,014,102 shares)

Additiona] paid-in capital

Retained camnings/(accumulated deficit)

Total U.S. Renal Care, In¢. stockholders® equity

Naoncontrolling interests (including redeemable inlerests with redemption
values of $23,600,000 and $22,400,000)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Scc accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

-]

2009 2008
15,325,357 5,414,620
25,900,874 20,986,104

1,369,198 2,416,104
4,863,513 4,334,265
2,333,765 1,340,190
49,792,707 34,491,283
19,251,600 16,731,509
12,241,011 14,848,215

217,670 —
67,922,354 67,559,887

238,961 246,136

906,459 373,701

150,570,762 134,250,731
5,675,616 7,328,583
16,485,807 20,000,375
1,447,595 1,525,241
125,000 164,440
23,734,018 29,018,639
62,010,592 53,638,587
125,000 250,000
532,982 642,281
— 3,360,742
14,736,426 10,812,177
101,139,018 97,722,426
123,500 123,500
14,157 14,497
245,010 243,010
62,229 60,141
16,454,222 40,056,300
1,497,694 (14,097,106) _
38,396,812 26,400,342
11,034,932 10,127,963
49,431,744 36,528,305
150,570,762 134,250,731
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2005 2008
Net operating revenues $ 153,164,637 127,567,973
Operating expenses:
Patient care cosis 98,842,829 86,674,644
General and administrative 15,601,927 13,828,191
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,585,251 4339,141
Seller litigation settlement 286,647 2,269,203
Transaction costs 460,465 791,162
Depreciaticn and amortization 7,957,301 6,679,228
Total operating expenses 127,734,420 114,581,569
Operating income 25,430,217 12,986,404
Interest expense, net 2,923,456 3,999,912
Income before income taxes 22,506,761 8,986,492
Income tax (benefit) provision (3,191,190) 2,543,899
Net income 25,697,951 6,442,593
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10,103,151 8,517,409
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc. 3 15,594,800 (2,074,816)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 5 25,697,951 6,442,593
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and armortization 7,957,301 6,679,228
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent (83,399) {138,350}
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,585,251 4,339,141
Deferred income taxes {4,794,034) 1,082,400
Equity investment income (17,646) —
Stock compensation expense 55,096 74,582
Changes in operating assets and liabilitics, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures;
Accounls receivable {9,500,021) (9,669,549}
Inventories 1,046,906 (511,064)
{Other receivables (525,248) (871,725)
Crher current asscts (93,0411 (436,327)
Other long-term assets 7,176 (20,698)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {5,143,239) 9,885,017
Other noncurrent liabilities (12,936) (97,278)
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,176,117 16,761,930
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (386,762) (5,964,131)
Additions of property and equipment, net (7.431,804) {7,530,045)
Payment for noncompete agreement — (350,000}
Invesiment in affiliate (200,024) -—
Net cash used in investing activitics (8,018,590) (13,844,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 8,750,000 12,004,250
Payments on long-term debt and related party notes payable {600,224) (4,284,519)
Deferred financing costs (7,424) (437,334)
Proceeds from capital leases 336,118 251,615
Capital Jease payments (799,901) (793,974)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 316,000 466,000
Proceeds from issvance of common stock 29,823 46,631
Repurchase of preferred stock (75,000) —
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 267,750 1,702,911
Distributions to nonconirolling interests (9,463,932) (8,341,814)
Net cash provided (used in} financing activities (1,246,790) 613,766
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,910,737 3,531,520
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,414,620 1,883,100
Cush and cash equivalents at end of year $ 15,325,357 5,414,620
5 (Continucd)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 200% and 2008

2009 2008
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest b 2,780,464 4,002,642
Cash paid for taxes 1,260,000 1,269,843
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing '
activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends $ 3,924,249 3,882,015
Capital lcase financing 463,783 —

.See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

(1) Organization and Significant Acconnting Policies

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company)} was formed in June 2000 and provides diolysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stagc of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis trcatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2009, the Company operated
42 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas and Arkansas. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center
operations, as of December 31, 2009, the Company provides acute dialysis services through
contractual relationships with 13 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
aceounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilitics, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actuail results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best infonnation available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant cstimates and assumptions involve revenue
Tecognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, detcrmination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company belicves no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allewance for Doubiful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companics and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtfiil
accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with

payors.,
7 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements
Deccember 31, 2009 and 2008

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other reccivables, represents balances
owed te the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of our annual cost report filings and as such, the actual
payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the Medicare
program fiscal intermediaries.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carricd at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated uscful lives of the assels
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Leasehold improvements Life oflease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets and leaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease tenn or
the estimated useful life of the improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is
recorded at fair value. The cost of improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs
and maintenance charges are expensed as incurred.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
fiom scrvice. When sold or olherwise disposed of, asscts and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from dispesal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Mcdicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
55% and 60% of gross accounts receivable at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk refating fo remaining accounts receivable is limited to somc cxtent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assels

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities inelude noncompetition and similar egreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms {five to ten ycars) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agrcement

8 (Continued)
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1.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on 2 straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is ineluded in refinancing charges,

Goodwill

Goodwill is recordcd when the eonsideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of nct
tangible assets and identifiable intangible asscts acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but arc instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2009 and 2008 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite Lived Assets

We evaluate long lived assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable or the
useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not cxpected to be sufficient to
recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to ils fair
value,

Fair Value of Financiol Instrumenis

The following details our financial instruments where the carrying value and fair value differ,
{amounts in millions):

Fair value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
valuc as of identical observable  unobservable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financinl instrument 2009 (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility 5 59,842 — —_— 57,412

The estimates of the fair value of our senior secured credit facility are based upon a discounted
present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital and credit
markets, the actual rates that would be obtained 10 borrow under similar conditions conld materially
differ from the estimates we have used.

9 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The threc
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 — Quated prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilitics.

. Leve) 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. '

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

For our other financial instraments, including our cash and cash equivalents, accounts reccivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses and other long-term debt we estimate the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

{n) Nef Operating Revennes and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fec schedule is maintained for our dialysis treatment and
other paticnt services. However, actual collccted revenue is normally at a discount to this fee
schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences betwecn amounts billed for services and
amounts paid by third-party payors.

Our dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues reimbursed by
the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospeetive payment system for dialysis
services (ESRD Program). Under the ESRD Program, Medicare reimbursement ratcs for dialysis
services are set in advance pursuant 1o Part B of the Medicare Act. An established composite rate set
by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) govems the Medicare reimbursement
available for a designated group of dialysis services, including dialysis treatments, supplies used for
such treatments, medications, and certain laboratery costs. The eomposite rate is subject to regional
differences based on various factors, including labor costs. Other ancillary services and items,
including EPO and other drugs, are eligible for separate reimbursement from the Medicare program
and are not part of the compaosite rate.

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is ecligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subjest to individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often dclayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall

10 (Continucd)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Mcdicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid rcimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated bused upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which we have formal
agrecments, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known, or otherwisc upon historical
collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial revenue
recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company has
multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, paymenls
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

{o) Share-Based Compensafion

We rceognize compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option grants to
cmployccs, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value method, the estimated fair
value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service period, which is
generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting, The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because ;
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying '
stock on the date of grant. The Company continucs to account for equity compensation based shares

granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares arc modified,

canceled, or repurchased.

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2009 and December 3§, 2008 was $0.04 per share and was calculated based on the
following assumplions; expected volatility of 28%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of
3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of 1.50% to 3.34%. Expected volatility was derived using data
drawn from two public dialysis companics. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified
method as permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share
Based Payrent. The expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent
history and expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of dircctors, senior officers,
and other grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five yeor
Unitcd States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 195,000 and 550,000 options
granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see note 9).

() Noenconirplling Interest

In Deccmber 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Nenconfrofling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated

11 (Continued}
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1.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

subsidiaries. This statcment requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures. The disclosure requirements are to be applied prospectively to
fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008, Classification of such interests have been
recorded tetrospectively as noncontrolling intcrests and will appear in stockholders’ equity in our
consolidated balance sheets and presented separately on the statement of operations.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to noncontroliing interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that arc not wholly owned.

(@) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respectivc tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply 1o taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settted. The cfTect on deferred tox asscts and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes Lhe enactment date. A valuation
allowance is establishcd when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company adopted the accounting siandard update (ASC 740), Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009. Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, dccounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate scttlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applicd ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2009 was 30.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the rclated tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. With few exceptions, the Company is no
longer subject to U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the
years before 2006. The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service of
its U.S. income tax retums for 2007. The Company expects these examinations to be concluded and
settled in the next 12 months. The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits related 1o the period
being examined. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the resolution of this
examination will result in no additional tax payment.

12 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penaltics in operating expenses for all periods presented. During the ycars ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Company has recognized interest and penalties of $0.

The Company’s consolidated LI.C and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their eamnings and losses are included in the retums of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiarics.

(r)  Recemtly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issucd an accounting standard (ASC 805), Business Combinations,
which significantly changes the accounting for business combinations, including, among other

~ changes, new accounting concepts in determining the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired,
recording the fair value of contingent considerations and contingencics at acquisition date and
expensing acquisition and restructuring costs. ASC 805 is effective for business combinations which
occur during fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company madc no acquisitions in
2009, We expect ASC 805 will have an impact on accounting for business combinations but the
effect will be depcndent upon acquisitions at that time.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, as of Janvary |, 2008 for financial assets and liabilities that are remeasured and reported
at fair value cach reporting period. FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the
hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The adoption of the standard to the
Company’s financial assets did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial Habilities
that are not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurting basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Although thc adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

In June2009, the Financiel Accounting Standards Board issued guidance which divides
nongovernmental U.S, GAAP into authoritative Codifications and guidance that is nonauthoritative.
The Cedification is not intended to change U.S. GAAP; however, it does significantly change the
way in which accounting literature is organized and because it completely replaces existing
standards, it will affect the way U.S. GAAP is refercnced by most companies in their financial
statements and accounting policies. The Codification is effective for financial statements issued for
interim and annual periods ending afler September 15, 2009. The adoption of the Codifications did
not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements other than changing references to the
appropriate codifications scclions.

13 (Continued)

Attachment 3¢ 163




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2009 and 2008

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosurc of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally nccepted accouriting
principles. The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2009 and through April 21,
2010, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

(2) Fixcd Assets

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31
2009 2008
Facility cquipment, furniture, and information systems 5 22,202,152 18,768,243
Leasehold improvements 9,731,329 8,196,592
New center construction in progress 2,829,967 203,156
34,763,448 27,167,991
Less accumulated depretiation and amortizatien (15,511,848) (10,436,482)
3 19,251,600 16,731,509
Year ended December 31
2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization expense on property :
and equipment h 5,355,638 4,125,949
_ Net book value of equipment under capilal lenses at December 31 was:
December 31
2009 2003
Equipment $ 7,312,321 6,168,488
Less accumulated depreciation (4,052,015) (3,056,080}
3 3,220,306 3,112,408

(3) Acquisitions

The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values as of the effective
acquisition date based upon the best available information.

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

14 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 ard 2008

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company's financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

(¢}  Eumana Home Dialysis Acquisition

On February 1, 2008, the Company acquired an 88% majority interest in the assets and certain
liabilities of Eumana Home Dialysis, Inc. (Eumana), which provides home hemodialysis, acute
hemodialysis, and peritoneal dialysis in patient’s homes and in hospitals in and around Houston,
Texas. The Tesults of operations for thesc services are included in the Company’s financial
statements beginning on February 1, 2008.

The Eumana acquisition cost of approximately $6.4 million was funded from the proceeds of a bank
ioan (see note 6}.

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:
Assets:
Cash b 575,348
Inventory 52,687
Other current assets 26,166
Fixed assets 1,140,565
‘Noncompete agrcements and
other identifiable intangibles 845,300
Goodwill 4,309,586
Total assets 6,949,652
Liabilities:
Lease agrecmnents (see note 5) (128,492)
Other liabilities (463,848)
Net assets acquired 3 6,357,312

() CRC Acguisition

Effective September 1, 2008, the Company purchased 100% of the stock of Clinical Rescarch
Conrnections, LLC (CRC). CRC is a sitc management organization that provides coordination and
management of clinical trials for pharmaceutical and medical device companies and contract
rescarch organizations. Services are provided in Arkansas and Texas. The results of operations for
these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning on September 1, 200 8.

The Company’s initial purchase price for CRC consistcd of the repuyment of an existing loan and
certain other credit obligations incurred by CRC prior to the acquisition date that aggregated
$572,245 and are included in accrued expenses below. In addition to the initial purchase price, the
Company will also owe the prior sharcholders of CRC an amount (Eamout) equal to the eamnings
before depreciation, amortization, and interest of CRC for the three year period subsequent to
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September 1, 2008 less the initial purchase price. The payments due pursuant to the Earnout will be
made annually beginning 15 months subsequent to close.

In November 2009, the Company made the first of three eamout payments of $362,467 to prior

shareholders of CRC.
The estimated fair valucs of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:
Assets:
Cash 3 2,245
Other current assets 16,603
Fixed assets 14,573
Noncempete agreements and
other identifiable intangibles 50,000
Goodwill 907,155
Total assets 990,576
Liabilities:
Accounts payable (130,380)
Accrued liabilitics (674,764)
Net assets acquired $ =&_ﬂ'

{(4) Noncontrolling Interests

The compuny controls and therefore consolidates the results of 41 of its 42 facilities. Similar to its
investments in unconsolidated affiliates, the Company engages in the purchase and sale for equity intcrests
with respect to its consolidated subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control, these transactions are
accounted for as equity transactions, as they arc undertaken among the Company, its consolidatcd
subsidiarics, and noncontrolling interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of Deccmber 31, 2009, the Company was the majority owner in 31 joint ventures. Of the nencontrolling
interests in those 31 joint venturcs, 15 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeeinable noncontrotling interests totated $4.4 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $23.6 million and $22.4 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeern the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2009,
$7.8 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $15.8 million bccome exercisable in
2010.

Druring 2009 the company entered into 8 joint venture relating to dialysis services with a physician in
which the company owns a 40% interest. This is reflected as investment in affiliate in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet.
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Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, amortizable and indefinite-lived intangible assets consisted of:

Amortizable intangible assets as follows:

December 31
2009 2008

Noncompetition agreements $ 20,132,544 20,132,544
Lease agreements 76,221 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 1,810,489 1,903,064
22,119,254 22,111,829
Less accumulated amortization (9,878 ,243) (7,263,614}
Net amortizable intangible assets § 12,241,011 14,848,213

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other leng-term liabilitics, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

December 31
2009 1008
Lease agreements ' $ 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization (556,311) (447,012)
Net amortizable intangible assets % 532,982 642,281

Amorlization of intangible assets and iiabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Noncompetition  Deferred debt Lease
agreements issuance costs agreements
2010 h 2,226,310 366,331 88,696
2011 2,226,310 366,264 88,696
2012 2,166,194 183,132 82,101
2013 2,119,921 — 56,801
2014 2,026,763 — 56,801
17 (Continued)

Attachment39 167




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

December 31
2009 2008
Balance at January ] g 67,559,887 62,344,166
Goodwill adjustments for prior acquisitions 362,467 (1,020)
Goodwill acquired — 5,216,741
Balance at December 31 $ 67,922,354 67,559,887

The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a resuit of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
-noncompete and lease agreements. The nencompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
. honcompele agreements executed in connection with the acquisition tramsactions or the medical !
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the i
term of the lease.

(6) Long-Term Dcbt

* Prior to January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a $55 million syndicated credit agreement with CIT
Healthcare LLC, as administrative agent (the CIT Credit Agreement) and two other lenders, for a
$30 million secured loan (Tenn Loan B) and a $25 miilion revolving credit facility (CIT Revolver).

Borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreement bear interest based upon a spread in excess of the LIBOR or
the U.S. prime rate, as thc benchmark, and based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The credit agreement
also provides for an annual unused commitment fee of 0.5% based upon the average revolving credit
commitment less outstanding borrowings on the revolver and lctters of credit issued. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, borrowings under the CIT Credit Agreement bore intcrest at 4.25% and 6.63%,
respectively.

The CIT Credit Agreement allows the Company to tequest up to an additional $15 million in revolving
credit commitments at any time during the term of the revolving credit facility up to 180 days prior to its
scheduled termination. The Term Loan B and the CIT Revolver mature on July 5, 2012 and July 3, 2011,
respectively. Quarterly principal payments of $91,000 are due on the Term Loan B. In accordance with the
original terms of the CIT Credit Agreement, the Company was required to make principal repayments
equal to 75% of excess cash flow, as defined, within 120 days of year end until the total leverage ratio at
the end of a fiscal year is 2,50 or lower.

In February 2007, the CIT Credit Agreement was amcnded to provide, among other things, for the
following: (1) the defined calculation for cxcess cash flow prepayments attributable to 2006 and payable
by April 30, 2007 was changed so that the Company will not be requircd to fund the 2007 prepayment;
(2) permitted capital expenditures were increased; and (3) total and senior leverage ratios were increased.
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In February 2008, the CIT Credit Agreement was amended to allow for the purchase of Eumana Home
Dialysis Inc. (see note 3). The credit agrecment was increased $6.4 million to a total of $61.4 million. The
additional $6.4 million is a subsequent Term Loan B commitment and matures on the same date as the
original Term Loan B. The scheduled quarterly principal payments on the Term Loan B increased from
$75.,000 to $91,000.

In July 2008, the CIT Credit Agrecment was amended to provide, among other things, for the following:
(1) distributions in excess of those made to cover third-patty owners estimated tax obligations are
permitted assuming the Company is in compliance with its senior leverage ratio; (2)the permitted
acquisition limit was Increased; (3)the spread in excess of LIBOR or the US Prime Rate, as the
benchmark, to determine the interest rate the borrowings base was increased; (4) tolal and senior leverage
ratios were amended; (5) the limits for permitted purchase money debt, capitatized lease obligations and
capital expenditures were increascd; and (6) several definitions were amended.

The CIT Credit Agreement is guaranieed, on a joint and sevcral basis, hy each of the Company's
" subsidiarics. Borrowings under the credit agreement are collateralized by most of the Company’s asscts,
inctuding accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not secured by other credit facilities. The credit

- agreement includes various events of default and contains certain restrictions on the operations of the
business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including capital expenditures, investments and
the payment of dividends, and including covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, minimum annual
EBITDA, senior debt feverage and total debt leverage, as well as other customary covcnants and cvents of
defaults. One event of defuult pursuant to the CIT Credit Agreement is subjective as it relates to whether
there is a matcrigl adverse change in (n) the properties, business, prospects, operations, management, or
financial condition of the Company or (b) the ability of the Company to meet its obligations under the
agreement.

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the CIT Credit Agreement and has met
all debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2009, approximately $31,000 was unused and available
under the revolving.credit facility.

Long-tcrm debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

December 31
2009 2008

Senior secured credit facility:
CIT Term Loan B $ 34,873,000 35,237,000
CIT Revolver 24,968,762 16,218,762

Notes payable:
Note payable to First Insurance —_ 58,802
Note payable to Simmons First Bank of Jonesboro 23,532 36,514
Capital |ease obligations 3,592,893 3,612,750
63,458,187 55,163,828
Less current portion (1,447,595) {1,525,241)
3 62,010,552 53,638,587
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Scheduled maturities of Jong-term debt and capital lcase obligations at December 31, 2009 were as

follows:
Long-term Capital lease
debt obligations _
2010 3 370,004 1,349,272
2011 25,350,290 1,123,390
2012 34,145,000 561,963
2013 — 453,797
2014 — 261,986
Thereafler — 646,178
$ 59,865,294 4,396,586
Less intercst portion at 5.7192% - 8.561% (803,693)
Total $ 3,592,893
(7 Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:
2009 2008
Curmrent:
Federal $ 678,126 771,194
State 924,117 690,305
Deferred:
Federal (4,783,401) 1,090,717
State (11,632) (8,317
' $  (3,191,190) 2,543,899

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
duc to the valation allowance that was previously required due to historical losses and uncerlainty of
future taxable income, Texas gross margin tax which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax
attributable to noncontroliing interest.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporury differences were as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible b 765,594 310,441
Net operating loss carry forwards and contribution limitation 1,345,244 4,626,938
Flow through entities 3,671,996 1,407,357
Property plant and equipment 236,104 176,369
{Mher 332,312 99,998
Total deferred tax assets 6,351,250 6,621,103
Less valuation allowance — (6,149,048}
Net deferred tax assets 6,351,250 472,055
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in depreciation and amortization (25,657) (98,355)
Goodwill (4,514,534) (3,360,742)
Total deferred tax liabilities (4,540,191} (3,459,097
Net deferrcd tax assets (liabilities) $ 1,811,059 (2,987,042)
The valuation allowance consisted of the following:
December 31
2009 2008
Balance at January 1 $ 6,149,048 5,794,526
Increase (decrease) during the year (6,149,048} 354,522
Balance at December 31 L — 6,149,048

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,321,958 and $10,400,000 as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which expire beginning in the year 2021 if not previously
utilized. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2009 as they expect to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such deferred lax
assets. The valuation allowance will be reduced at such time as management is able to determine that the
realization of the deferred tax assets is more likely than not to occur. .
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(8) Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 100,450,000 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of commen stock and 46,925,000 shares of preferred
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board
of directors.

(1) Series A Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, there were 12,350,000 shares of Serics A Preferred outstanding.

{b)  Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redecmable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2009 and 2008, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2009, there were 529,000 shares of Series B Preferred outstanding.

{c) Series B-1 Preferred Stock

During 2009, thc Company repurchased 50,000 shares from a related party physician at $1.50 per
share. As of December 31, 2009 there were 886,666 shares of Scrics B-1 Preferred outstanding.

{d) Series C Preferred Stock

. During 2009, the Company issued 200,000 shares at a price of $1.50 per share. As of December 31,
2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outs tanding.

fe) Dhvidends

Series A Preferred and Scries C Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cash dividends at the
rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are cumulative from the date
of origina! issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on shares of Scries A and
Series C Preferred stock do not bear interest and are payable generally at the time of a liguidating
evenl as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common
stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if declared by the board of directors out of
the Company’s assets legally available thercfore, so long as all acorued dividends on then
outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stock have been paid or declared and set apart.

(0  Redemption

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on September 1, 2012,
if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Series A and Series C Preferred.
Series B and Serics B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on September 1, 2012 if approved
by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Serics A and Series C Preferred, voting as a single class,
and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred,
voting as & single class.
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Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments calculated using the sum
of the original issue prices (81 per share for Series A and Series B Preferred, and $1.50 for Series C
and Serics B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.

Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1 and Series C Preferrcd stock is convertible at any time,
at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of Series A,
Scrics B, Series B-1, and Series C converts automatically upon a qualified public offering. Upon
such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent av ailable, as follows: (a)
first, to the holders of Series A and Series C Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their
original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past dividends,
combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) sccond, to the holders of Series B and Series
B-! Preferred Stock, amounts per share cqual to their original share purchase prices, plus any
accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations,
and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Commion Stock, and Series A Preferred Stock and
Series C Prefcrred Stock on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A
and Scries C Preferred Stock shall have received, in total including the payment under (2} above, an
amount equal to three (3) times the Series A or Series C original issue price, respectively; and
{d) fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts.

Veting Rights

Each share of Series A and Series C Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to the number
of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For various
defined events, Series A and Serics C Prefemmed stockholders vote together as a separate class. In
those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders
must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Scries A and Series C Preferred stock is
outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A and Scries C Preferred stockholders
vole together with common stockholders as a single ¢lass on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis.

The Series B ond Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can ¢change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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)  Other Terms

If Series A and Series C Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared, and no
shares shall be redcemed, on Series B or Serics B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued Series A and
Series C Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is declared on Series A and
Series C Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single cluss, and the board of
directors.

Series A and Series C Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new secutities on a
proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A or Series C
Preferred sharcholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities. Series B
Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common steckholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and othcr share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In May 2003, the Company
authorized an additional 500,000 sharcs available for grant. In March 2009, the company authorized an
additional 500,000 shares available for grant. There were 3,400,000 and 4,300,000 shares available for
grant as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(a) Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 S1P arc for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the datc of grant, and which vest 25% ofter one year of
service and then menthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 included $13,271 and $10,111, respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2009, there was $20,735 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a peried of approximately four years. Al December 31, 2009, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 1.87 years.
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The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2008 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price

Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,061,692 § 0.14 838,355 % 0.14
Granted 195,000 0.15 550,000 0.15
Excrcised (208,751) 0.14 {314,892) 0.15
Cancelled {31,875) 0.11 (11,771) 0.14
Ouistanding at cnd of year 1,016,066 § .14 1,061,692 % 0.14

Awards exercisablc at

year-end 412941 §% 0.14 245432 § 0.13

Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2007 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three ycars of service, subject 10 continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are nol allowed 1o sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowcd to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, rcpurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair
market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $41,825 in 2009 and $64,741 in 2008. The
following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2009 2008
Outstanding balance at beginning of year b} 3,401,558 3,401,558
Granted — —_
Exercised —_ —
Forfeited _ —
Repurchase — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 h 3,401,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2009 2008
Cutstanding balance at beginning of year b 1,384,334 2,331,595
Granted — —
Vested (743,212) (947,261)
Forfeited - —
Repurchase — —
Balance at December 31, 2009 3 641,122 1,384,334

At December 31, 2009, 2,760,436 of the outstanding restricted shares werc vested. As of
December 31, 2009, there was approximately $51,379 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricled stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately two years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is & physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 27 individual physicians and physician groups te provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individially and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient gencrally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of our centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical director services
to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or morc physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with us, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests in
competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 20 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $14 million at December 31, 2009, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation, For 2009 and 2008, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.4 million and $2.4 million, respectively.
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Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Seres B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased {rom the Company or received as partial compensation under & medical director agreement.
Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity intercsts in entities that operate the Company’s
dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and cquity purchases are no less favorable to us and no more
favorable to such physicians than would have been obiained in ann’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $250,000 and $375,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual instatlments from May 1, 2006
through May-1, 2011. The obligations pursuant to these notes are subordineted in terms of repayment to the
Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agrecment (see note 6).

The Company also has another promissory note obligation owed to another noncontrolling interest holder.
The amount outstanding on this note was $0 and $39,440 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, rcspectively.
The note was paid off in 2009. The note bore interest at 5% per annum and was subordinated in terms of
repayment to the Company’s obligations under the CIT Credit Agreement (see note 6).

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $293,101 and $496,059, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company's board of dircetors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $108,333 and $50,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company purchased CRC in September 2008 (sce note 3). Three executives of the Company owned a
majority interest in CRC prior to the acquisition.

(11) Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations arc subject to extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the opcration of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper owncrship and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to govecrnment and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interprelation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healtheare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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Our dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicarc payments, and are licensed and permitted by state
authorities. The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally
referred to as the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer,
solicit, make or receive payments in retumn for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid paticnt for treatment.
The fedcral False Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a
false or fraudulent claim for payment 1o the federal government, Another federal law, commonly referred
to as the “Stark Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to
entitics with which the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions
relating to the privacy of medical information and prohibits inducements to paticnts to select a particular
healthcare provider. Congress, states and regulatory agencies continug to consider modifications to federal
and statc healthcare laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste
and nonhazardous medical waste disposal [aws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fincs and penaltics,
rcpayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain ctiteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows cmployees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible cmployees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $391,053 and $365,496.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2009 or 2008.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

On February 15, 2007, the holders of the subordinated note referenced in note 6 brought suit against the
Company. In the tawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd, (Rencare) concerning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denicd plaintiff's claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-ciaim against onc of the other sellers of Rencare, In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the epplicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. An appeal is pending and the parties are awaiting a ruling from the appellant
court. At this time, the Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resotution of our appeal, In
addition to the judgment, the Company incurred legal and other professional fees related to this litigation.
These expenses aggregated $286,647 and $1,219,203 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agrecments, and are exercisablc at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations, If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (see note 4).

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2009, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of ane year or more consist of the

following:
2010 8 5,827,058 4
2011 5,260,414
2012 5,109,728
2013 4,696,231
2014 3,658,621
Thereafter 9,440,090

Rent expense was 56,290,202 and $5,011,653 for the years ended Decemher 3}, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

(14) Subsequent Event

On April 14, 2010, a subsidiary of thc company, entcred into a definitive agreement to acquirc Dialysis
Corporation of America, Inc. (DCA}). Under the terms of the agreement, USRC, through a subsidiary, will
commence a tender offer for all the outstanding common shares of DCA for $11.25 per share in cash,
followed by a merger to acquire all remaining outstanding DCA shares at the same cash price paid in the
tender offer. The transaction is valued at approximately $112 million. DCA provides outpatient dialysis,
in-hospital dialysis, acutc and at home dialysis services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jerscy, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina and Virginia. The Company has received a commitment letter providing
fully committed debt financing in connection with the transaction from Royal Bank of Canada and equity
financing from certain of its existing shareholders.
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Minnaspolis, MN 55402

Master Lease

Master Lease Number 285280 dated a3 of Nevember 2, 2010
Name antl Address of Lessos!
US Renai Care Hoinre Theraples LL
1313 La Concha Lane .
Houninn, TX T7054

Master Lease Provisions
1. LEASE, Lessor hereby agross Iv loass Ip Lassse. and Losson hamby agrees fo lease from Lessor, the persons! proparty 0eseribed In a8 Supplement or
Supptemants to this Master Loase fram ime fo tima sigred by Lessor and Lassee upan e tarmns and condBons sot forth b this Mastor Leass and In tha retatod
Suppiement (such properdy together with alf replacements, substiutions, parts, improvesnonts, repeirs, ant accossanies, ard il pdditions inoorparaled thonein or
affixod tharsto being roferd 1o herein &5 the “Equipment”). Each Supplamont shell coritiute 8 separate Jeose Incorporating the terms of this Master Lease.
Ralarances In s Mastor Leass fo this Lessa”, ‘hereuntar” s0d “horoin” shall be consinied to maan 8 Supplemert which Incorparates s Master Leass.
Lasyoe's sxocution of 8 Supplement shaff obdigale Lassae 1 ledse the Eqspmernt described thersin from Lessor, No Supplement shell be binding on Lessor
uniass end until executed by Lessor, Anything fo o comirary noiwithstanding, Lessor shall have no obiigation fo eccept, execulo or gnfav imD any Supplament
or be acquime of leets o Lossos any equipmant. Tite o aff Equipmont shofl et afl tmes remakn in Lassor,
2 TERM. The term of s Lesss shal begin on the rert commencemont dahe shown & ihe epplfizatie Supplerment and shall camtinue o the number of
consoctive manihs from the ront commencemont dafe shown in such Supplement (the Tnitial tarm ) unfess sarlier irmingted by Lessor 8S provided hamin.
The rent commencrment dete is the 16 day of the mordh in which at of the 2ems of Equiprant described It the related Supplement have been delverad and
acceptad by Lasses ¥ such delivery end acceplance fs compleled an or before the 15th of such manth, Bad the rent commancemenl dal &8 the st day of Such
month if such defivery and eccaptance Is complated duning the balance of such month. In the evert Lessee executes ihe refated Supplement prior to devery
end acceptanc of Al Ko of Equipmuent described thersin, Lesspe agreos af the rent commencement dete may ba jeft biank whon Lassee executes the
rolated Suppleram and hereby euthorizos Lassor (o ixsert the rent commancement dafe hased upon tho dete appesring on the delvery end acoaplance
Lertihicale skyod by Lasser, :
At the sxpiretion oF tha inftiaf térm, unkess Lessoa shall heve rencwed the Loase or puvchased tha Equipment from Lassor, 85 provided for in esch Supplernent, &
Lessee does not rehim fo Lossor a¥ of the Equipment that s the subject of a Supplement in sccordance with paragraph 14 befow, Lessoe shal pay to L essor an
&mount exgual 1o the monthly basic rentat payment that wes in effect during ihe fast month of the intial term for each month (or parf of any mortih) as “Holdover
Rent”. snd shafl comply with olf olfwor provisions of iiis Leass, from the first day after the expiration of the initial term unti! eft such Equipment has been ratumed
to Lassar In econntance with paragraph 14, providad hiwaver, that nathing contatd herein and no payment of Holdovsr Rent shall rfiove Lessee of s
abiigation 1 retum the Equipment upon the axpiratian or aarfor termination of e Lease. In edkfticn, Lessoo simil pay &y Bpplicablo 86433, Lse, Bndlr propordy
faxos prising from this Lease, :
3. RENT. Lessee shof psy g3 basic rent bor the initiaf torm of this Laese the emount shown in ihe rofated Supplement as Total Basic Rant. The Total Basio
Rent ghail bo payatda in irstafments each in the amounf of the basic rentaf payment saf forth in the reiated Supplament plus Sales and use [ax thoron. Lesaoe
shelf pay advance instaliments and any securily depostt, each a5 shewn in e reisted Supplometd, on the date B ks excouted by Lessee, Subrsequéent
Inefolfmants shalt be payatito on the first day of each rental payment period shown In the migted Supplement beginning efter the firs! renial payment perod;
privided, however, thet Lessor and Lessce may doras o any other payment schaduls, lckiding Fmeguilar or baloon payments, in which event thoy
shall be set forth in the Supplament. If the sctissl cast of the Equipment is morg or Jass than te Tots! Cost 83 shown in the Suppfement, the amount of sach
Insteiiment of rent wilt be Bdjusted up or down to provids the 3ami yiok! 1o Lessor 83 would have bean cbimined i the eclual cost had boon the same es the Tok!
Cost. Adustments of 10% or less may be made by wiftfen nofice from Lessar (o Lossee. Adfustments of mare than 10% shakl to made by execition of an
amendmant to the Supplament reflacting the change i Tota! Cost end st rental payment.
i eddition to bersic rend, which Is payable beginning on the rent commencament doto, Lexseo agrees lo pay kterim rent for the pariod beginning on the date the
fs caliveret and accepted by Lassoe 10 the rerst commentsment dafe at & detly rolo equad to the porcenfpge of Lessors cost of the Equipment set
forth in such Supploment. Interim rent shafl be paysabie on the o oo m date. Lesses egroes that if all.of the Roms of Equipment coverad by such
Supplament heve not bean defivered and sccopted thermunder befor the date specifiod as the Cutoff Date i such Supplament, Lessor sholl have no abligation
to lease the Equipment ip Lessos e Lesses shall pevchese from Lessor the fems of Equipment then subjed! to this Lease within fve days after Lossors -
foquestto oo £0 o 8 prica equst (0 Lessor’s cost of suth dams phrs aff sccrued bit unpaid Inforin rent thoron. Lessoo shall &Iso pay eny appiceble sales and
use bax On Sch 5866,
4. SECURITY DEPOSIT. Lassor may apply any securfly deposit trward eny obfigaion of Lessse undef ety Supploment end shol retumn sy umapplied
balance to Lesson wihout intorast upon full satistaction of ak of Losses’s -
5 NOWARRANTIES Lessoa ogreas thel i has Sefoctod oach Kam of Equipment based upon is own fudgment and drsclains any refiance upon ey
statements or reprasantations made by Lessor. LESSEE ACKNOYLEDGES THAT: LESSOR IS NOT THE MANUFACTURER OF THE EQUIPMENT NOR
THE MANUFACTURER'S AGENT NOR A DEALER THEREIN, THE EQUIPMENT IS OF A SIZE, DESIGN, CAPACITY, DESCRIPTION AND MANUFACTURE
SELECTED BY THE LESSEE; LESSEE IS SATISFIED THAT THE EQUIPHENT IS SUITABLE AND FIT FOR ITS PURPOSES; AND LESSOR HAS NOT
MADE AND DOES NOT MAKE ANY WARRANTY WITH RESPECT YO THE EQUIPMENT, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND LESSOR SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERGHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR AS TO THE QUALITY, CONDITION OR
CAPACITY OF THE EQUIPMENT OR THE MATERIALS IN THE EQUIPMENT OR WORKMANSHIP OF THE EQUIPMENT, LESS0R'S TITLE TO THE
EQUIPMENT, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER. LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO LESSEE FOR ANY LOSS,
DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND OR NATURE CAUSED, DIRECTLY DR INDIRETTLY, BY ANY EQUIPMENT OR THE USE OR MAINTENANCE
THEREOF OR THE FAILURE OR DPERATION THEREOF, OR THE REPAIR, SERVICE OR ADJUSTMENT THERECF, OR BY ANY DELAY OR FAILURE
TO PROVIDE ANY SUCH MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, SERVICE OR ADJUSTMENT, OR BY ANY INTERRUPTION OF SERVIGE OR LOSS OF USE"
THEREOF OR FOR ANY LSS OF BUSINESS HOWSOQEVER CAUSED. LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING
ANY LiAg 'R CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, ARTSING OUT OF THE USE OF OR THE INABILITY TO USE THE EQUIPMENT. o pefoct or umfitness

of tho Eq d no ¢ part of the manufachurer or the shipper of the Equipment to deliver the Equiprmant or anty par thoroof o Lassoe shal
refove of tho obligation pay rent or any atfror obiigation herpunder, Lessar shafl have no obiigation i respect of the Equipment and shall have no
THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED PAOE(S). '
Lessor-Wells Fage EY M arke, Inc. U.S. Renal Care Home Tharaples, LLC,
‘_ = Leascs
v e T )
8y o By '
ames 0. Shelton, Manager
™ S, Contract Adminigtrotor
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ebiigation lo install, ered!, test, adust or service the Equipment. Lesses shall ook only kb persons other then Lessor such &5 the menufachor, vendar o CRITier
thoreof shoukt any Bem of Equipment for 8ny reason and in any way be defeciive. To e extent permited by ite mandacturer andior vendor snd provided
Lesson 13 not in dofaul under the Lease, Logsar shall make evalialia fo Lassee o manufectrer andiv vondor wamanbies with mespedt (o the Equipment.
8. LESSEE COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. (o) Aflrnative Covensnts, Leasoe shall: (i) pay afl shipping and defivary charges art
oter expansas incumed in conmartion with e Equipment and pay e lawil dakms, whethar &7 lbar, materials, suppfes, rent or services, wivich mght or could
# unpald becoms & ten on the Equipment; {5) comply with sl laws nd regulabians and niles, all manufacturer's instructions and wamanty requirements, and with
tha condons end requirements of alf policiss of nsurance reiating to the Equipment and Rs uss; (iK) mark ard identify the Equipment with aI isformation and
sueh manner as Lessor or 1S assigns may request from time o bme end replece gromplly 8ny $uch markings or identificalion which ero removod, defaced or
dostroyed: (iv) at any and eff imeg during busingss hours, grant Lassor froe eccess te onlor upon I8 premises wherein (e Equipmant shall ba locstod of used
&nd permit Lossor to inspact the Equipment end afl apiiicabl msintenance records, provided, howevar, thet Lessar shaff it no obligation (o inspedt any

ihg principles and

Exquipment or recorts; (v malntein & sywtom of gooounls estabiished snd administered it Bocondance with generofly acceptad Becounting

Aractices consistently appied, and (vi} within thidy (30) days after the end of each fiscal quartzr, deliver to Lessor a belance sheot 83 at the end of such quarter

and statemarnt of operaions for such quarter, setting fodth in.comperative form the COTESPONCING e far the comparable penod in the preceding fiscel year,
Within one hundred and twenty {120) days sftar the ent of eech fscal pear, Uetiver to Lessor a balance shoot as et the end of such yoer and statestrents of
Operations. Income and rafsined eamings for such yoor, with accompanying fecinotes, each seffing forth in comparative form the comesponding figures for the
Precoding yoer, in Bach case prepared in sccordente with genarady svcepted fing principhes and praciioes consiclantly applod and ceted by Losssa's
chigf financiat officer as fally presonting the Manclal posifon and msults of cpermlions of Lassee, and, In the case of yeer ord fnencial staloments, certifiad by
an Indapendant ecoourting fim eeceplablo i Lessor, and with reasonpbia prompinsas, fumish Lessor with such pther information, Bnenclal or otherwiss,
relating o Losses or the Equiprant 85 Lassor shalf reesonsbly request.,

() Negative Covenants. Lesses shaf not (7} voltmtarfy of involunterly crgate, incur, assume or seffer fo axist any mortgage, en, securly infarest, plodge
arothor encumbrancs or atfechment of eny kind whetsoever upon, affecting or with respedt to the Equipment or this Loase or any of Lossen's imtsrest
tharsunder; (5) pevmt the name of any person, associalion o covporation olhor than s Lessor of Lessen fn be placed on the Equipmont: () part wift
POSS055300 07 contro! of or sulfar or aliow to pass out of T8 passession or contrtl any fem of the Equipment or change the locatian of the Equiament or sny part

. theroof from the address shewn i the applcabie Supplamert; {iv) ASSIGN OR IN ANY WAY TRANSFER OR DISPOSE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF ITS
RIGHTS OR QBUIGATIONS UNCER THIS LEASE OR ENTER INTO ANY SUBLEASE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF THE EQUIPMENT: {v) chengw (a)#s name |
OF 6ridress fom that sof fodth sbave, (b tha efate wndsr whose laws & i organized 8s of the date hereal, or (c) the type of organization undor which 7t axists 25 of
the date hereaf uriess i shalf have ghen Lessor o its 2ssigns no loss than thity (30) days’ prior written rofice of any such proposod change; (vil parnit the eak
or transter of eny shares of its copia! Stock or of any ownership Interest in ha Lesses (o any person, porsons, iy or entilies {wheathor i one transaciion or in
multipde fransactions) which rosults in @ transfer of @ majority intarest in the awnership andior the control of the Lasses fom the parson, persons, enfity or eniibes
who hakt Ownership andixr control of the Lassee as of the date of his Master Leass; or {vil) consolidate with ar marge ¥%o o with any other entily, or purchase
or offerwise acqits aff or substantially o0 of e sssals or SHCK Br oihar SWNEIShIp inferest of sy person or exntity of saf, trensfer, Jease o olhemise Ciaposs of
all or subslantisdy ol of L63366°s ASS0TS 10 &Ny Parsen or enlily. .

(c} Representations end Worrantes. Lossen repvesonts and warrants fo Lassor, that sffoctve on the date on wivich Lesson axecutes Ivs Masier Laase
and asch Supplsment. (i} if Laszea is & parfership, corparation, fmited ¥ably comparny or odrey legad entity, the orecution and geleory of this basior Loasn
&hd each Supplamont and the parfarmence of Lessoo’s abfgations hereumder end theroundar have bean duly Buthorized by al necessary action on the part of
Ihe Lessoe and am nat i contravontion of, and will not rosull in o breach of, any of the torms of Lessee’s chertor, by-laws, srticies of incorporption or ather
organic documants or any Joan egreements of indertures of Lesses, or any cther contract, agropment or Instrument to which Lesso is & party or by which & is
boumd; (i) the person signing the Master Logss and sach Supplement on behall of Lessee is culy suthorzed: {iff) Lossoa's exact legal nama as It Bppoers oft 23
Charier or other organk; documernts, Inchrding as to punduation 8nd capitalization, and is principal plrce of business or chisf exeative office 61e a5 sof fvth i
the hoading of this Master Leass; (i) Lesses is duly organizud, validly axisting and In good starxting under the faws of the atela of s hearporation or farmation
and s chaly gualifiod and authorized to transact business in, end s in good standing under the fews of, each other state It wiich the Equipmont is or will be
located;(v) thers has bean no change in the name of the Lossee, of the name under which Lasses conducts businass within the one yoar proceding tho dalke
hereaf axcopt o3 previcusly reported in wiiting to Lossor; (vi) Lossoe has nolt moved 15 pringipal place of bursineas or chisf exsctthe office, or has ot changed
the jurfsdiction of s o thon with the one year precedkng Ifra dato hereaf extept A3 previously reporfod to Lassar in weiling; (vi) this Mastor Lesse and aech
Suppiement constitte A fegal, vekd and binding obligstion of Lesses, enforveabla egainst Lessos in accondance wilh Xs lemms; (vi¥) &b information provided by
Lessoe fo Lessor in connection with this Leasa i true and ¢omredt; (ix) the Equipment will ba used pemarily for businass purposos as oppesed ka p fy
O household purposes; end [x) thers are no suils pending or throatenad agsinst Lessee or eny guareaior which, if deciced attversaly, might matarially pdversely
affect Lossoo's of suth guaranior's financial condition, e vaks, Uity or remalning useful Wa of te Equipmarnd, the Aghls intendied to ba afforded to Lassw
hereunder or under any quarahites of the ebilty of Lesses or any guarentor ko perform k9 obligatians under the Leass or arry document odediverod in connection
iif the Leass.

7. TAXES, Lessue shaft promptly pay whan due, and indemn¥ly sad hold Lessor harmitass, on en aftordex basts, from, aff sales, use, properly, oxciss and
oifior taxps andf all license and rgisiration feas now or h fler imposed by any gov el body or egency vpan the Equipment or &s usa, purchass,
ownenship, Oefvary, leasing, p fon, Storagre, eperation, maintenance, fepeX, retum or ather disposition of the Equipment, or for tiiing or registerng the
Equipment. or upon the income or offar procoads fvex with respect fo i Equip t or this Lease or the rentals hemundar: provided, however, the! Lessee
Shail not be requird to pay faxas on or moasred by the net Income of Losstr. Lasses shad propare and e af 1sx relums redating Io texas for which Lassep Js
responsidle heretnder which Lossee is penmitfad to fila under the laws of the applicable texing jursdiction. LUpon the axpiration or earber termination of the
Loass, Lossoo shol pay to Lessor sy such feres acorved or assessad but not yet due and poyobic.

B INDEMNITY. Lossee hereby egreos to indamanily and hold Lossor hamnisss (on an oftar-iox badis} from and ageinst any and af calms, lossas, labibes
fincluding nagligance, kort end strict babilty). damages, jrdgments, cbligations, atdions, suls, end all legel proceodings, aad any and el costs end @xpenses i
connection tharaiith (including attomuys’ fees) sitsing out, or iz any menner connecled witt, o resting direclly ar intirectly from, the Equipment, inchading,
withotd imitation, fha manufochure, purthaso, lease, finanting, selethon, ownorship, dulivory, rejoction, non-defivery, transportation, possession, use, shrage,
operetion, Conaion, malntenance, repalr, nefum ar other dispasition of the Equipment or witr (ha Lease, Including withow! limitation, claims for injury (0 o doath
of parsons and for demtage to.property, whether arising under fhe doctring of strict Eabiity, by operstion of law ar oiharwise, and & give Lessor prompl rotics of .
ony such claim of Habilty. . .

9. ASSIGNMENT. Lessor may self or assign gny or al of ifs intersst in this Lease or sokf or grant @ securly inferest In il or ony port of e Equipmont, without
offco bo or the consant of Lassea. Lasses agroos not o assernt agains? any assignoe of Lassty any setoll, recoupment, claim, countordalrr o tefenss Le336e
may fiave agams! Lessar or any person olher than such assignea. Lesseo agraes that f & recohvas wrillon notics of an assignment from Lessar, # will pay o8
Rut snd other paymonts payable unter soch Supg i to such assigneo or 8§ instutted by Lessor or the assignee identifed in the notice reosived from
Lessor. An assignes of Lessor shail have ol rights of Lassor undaf the applicabla Leass, & the extant assimed, separately exarcisable by such assignes
indepsndantiy of Lessor or any assignee with rospoct fo ather leases. Upor any such assignment and oxcopt o5 may alhorwise be provided theroin af
rforonces in ths Mosior Lease to Lessor. shalt include such assignee. }

10. EQUIPMENT PERSONALTY. The Equipment shall remain porson! proparty regardiess of s aftnchment (o faalty, and Losses sgress fo take suth action
#f i oxpansa at may bo nocessary ta prevant any third parly from aequldng sny interest in the Equipment a3 2 resuft of s attachment to roally. If requosied by
Lassor with respoct to any lem of e Equipmant, Lasses wif obfaln and deliver to Lessor waivers of interest or ens in recardable form, satisfectony i Lessor:
fom all parsons cigiming eny intarest in the real propsriy on of In which Sugh Asm of the Eqiament is installed or located.

1. USE AND MAINTENANCE. Lessea wil usa Ihe Equipment with oue care and only for the purposn for which R 18 intonded. Lessen will, by qualiiod
porzorned, usa, maintain, repair, modily (to the extent pormitted or roquired hertin) in accardance with prudert pectices (Dut In AD evend fecs then fe came
sxtont o which Lessee mairdeing other Similar squipment owned or leasod by it) and ko the purposa for which aurch Equipmont was dagsigned, i1 comphancs with
h policles, ¢ f: m*sspedﬁndmahmanwmams,mmmdmxfmuemnmd&haﬂkeep the Equiprment in @s good repar, condition
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and warking ordor ay whon ariginaly received by Lessooe, ordimary wesr and tear axcopted ent will Asmish and repiace aif ports of the Equiprnont o3 may from
fimo fo time become wom o, lot, Stolen, destoyed of damaged or unfit for use., BN &t its expensse.. Lossan shofl, of s oaperrss, make all modifications and
My to the Equipment raquited by taw. Lesses may. al ifs solo cost B expense, ke any modifications fo the Equipment, providod thal such
modifications (3) ang readily ramovabie witheud cursing damags to the Equiomad, (b) do not reduce Bhe vale, utily, marketabiRy o remaining ussful e of the
Equipmont, and (c) are of a kind that customariy 8re mady by lesses Or purthesers of squipment similar o the Equipment AR parts, modiications end

13 fo the Equipment shall, when instalted or made, immediately become the propady of Lessor end part of he Equipmont for all purposes: provided,
that any mosTiation N roquired by law shall if requestod by Lessor be ramoved by Lesses and any dsmage to the Equipment resubing from such removal
Shail be repaired prior ta the relum of the Equipmend i the Lossor. The mwammwwmwmmmmmmmssmmm
consent,
12, LOSS OR DAMAGE. Mo bss or damage to the Equipment or any part thereof shafl affact any cbiigation of Lessop wdar i Loass, wiich sihafl continug iy
full forve and affect Léssee shall advise Lossorin writing within fiva (5) days of any item of EqeApront becoming lost, stofon or damagod vnd of the
Gircumstinees and extont of cuch damogn, in the event any item of Equipment shad bocome last, stolon, oBstoyed, darmgedboynndmm‘rorrwgdamd

herwndarﬂaimmmmmmwummmwhmmﬂwmy&mfdﬂemﬂormyomwm'd‘vw#hrapseafn‘mea-nm,or
bath, would become an Event of Defaut,

13. INSURANCE. mmmaumwmmmwmmmmoawsmm (P {&) comgpr o { inhity Insurance
nsuning sgainst SgbATy for bodily nfury, Eﬂﬁpwpm‘ydamugumham‘nmummofﬂmmmiiwdﬂ?wem;mmwrb)pnﬁkﬂw

i Insuring egaingt loss or demag Io tha Equipe in sn unt not less than the full mplacement value of the Equipment. Lesses shall umish Lessar
m‘mawﬁfmmoflnmmeaﬁ;’anmgmfswmdamkywpoﬁdesmusseshuhaﬁmenﬁwmammwmhmahnamlml.essorasm
ammwmmmﬂm-formoﬁabﬂywwmgaandaabsspambr!howmrydamgommga Eath such policy shall be in such formt and with
wmhsumrsasmaybamﬁsfaexoryml‘.e&mr,andshaﬂcunfahadausemmfyr‘ngﬂ'mtmmorm!anpmaenmﬁmbymm:rﬂmnw!swm

!nﬂmavenranymmmwa‘raﬂmtoomﬂymmquufmntshm .
14, RETURN OF THE EQUIPMENT. Upon the expiration or earlier tormenation of this Loase by Lassor, Lessos will imediately dotver the Equipment to and in
Msmmmignafadbrmeuminmemmumwwmmmmdmmwmwm&m#msmaw
Cesiymad (or as upgradod during tha Leaso Tem), ortinary wear and tear excepled, end in compiance with By actklional retum condfions sef Frth in the
applicably Supplement, 8t such focation withn mewmrumamosuwmmm meaﬂmyaﬂbansmrraﬁmmddﬂeraxpmsos
r'?faffrvgromdaﬂm Lessen shall ge for the o ly ertd perckineg of the Boulp t, togeth with &ll parts 2nd pieces end then reassembly

such be ur ond conteln il pogss, Upon Lessor's raquest, Lessoa shatl 8t Lessoa’s ol Cxpense, pravkie storege ecceptatis o
LﬁssorforaparbdofupfoWdays#unthodafvdmhmmduﬂsssﬁsfuswmaﬂmwdngmmamﬂw&rwmm including dlspiay amd demonstration of
the Equipmesnt ork g fsssor o By public or privale sale or audion on Lessan’s promises.

upon demand. .

16, LATE CHARGES. If any payment, mmerrbrmam.Bnﬂm’dmmm,’mmmymummmdﬁ of the amdunt past due (or
ﬁammmmmwtynmmw#mu mmmmhwmﬂumﬁhmmhmmwmﬂmmm

17.  DEFAULT. &mwmmmmumﬁﬁdeanﬁunfdwwhm{a}msmmﬂhﬂbpaymdbemhsram!aﬁmm
ronl, basic ren! or any other emount due hersunder: (b} any cortificate, staigmant, raprosontation, warrenty or Branclal or credi information hevelalors or )

lhuedbyl'.onarroLmoe:(d)Lesmoranyww:tommﬂsLemwmymmdumﬁumkummmwmse doing businass 63 a poing
. oancem, make an assignmant for the banefit of creditons, besoms insolvent, or engage in any dissolution or liquidation procoedings; {e) Lessee or any puerantor
of His Laose or any partner of Lesses i Lesses is & pantnership shall voiuntarily fie, or hava fFad against It involuntenly, a petition for fquidation, reoganzation,
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shall ocour under any other obligation Lessse or sny guarenfior of Lesses’s obiigetions heroundar owes fo Lessor; (i} 8n event of defaul shall oocur wer eny
Indebledross Lossee may now or herealier owe fo any afifiata of Lessor; o () Lesses, or any guaranior of this Lease shefl suffer an adverss materia crange in
s Fnancial condifion from tho dete herood, sl as a resu!? haereal Lossor dooms it or eny of the Equipment ko be insecuro.

18 REMEDIES Lessorond Lessos agree that Lessors damages suffered by reason of an Evant of Dafawt ong uncertaln and nof copabile of sues!
measlromexy 8 the me this Laaso is execuied bocguse the vokue of ho Equipment af the eapiretian of By Leage is uncartetn, and therefore they agroe that for
purposes of this paregraph 18 “Laszar's Logs" as of any dile ahall bo the sum of ha fokowing: (1) the amount of &f ront end Gther amounts payable by Lessos
hereundor dus bit unpaid a8 of such date plus (2) the amound of 8if unpald rant for the balance of the tarm of this Loaso not yot dus as of such date fincluding
any renewal or purchase opbions which Lesses hes contraciod o pay) discounted from the raspactive dates instalimant paymonts woukd ba due ot tho Discount
Ralo as dafinod below plus (3) 109 ofﬂ!eoosrnfmeswwmmamsubfeamﬁrsu&masofsumdamfpmmmﬁm,wandmmqwdmany
Supplorment that exprossly sets forth 2 *Finst Purchasa Payment” otbor then 10% of the cost of the Equipment, then the amount of such Finaf Purchese Paymont
shall be substituted in place of the 10% in this dawse (3)° for the purpase of calcutaling Lessor's Loss with regerd to svoh Supploment ) Discount Rete” means
{7 the rate sof kwih B tha Troasury Constant Maturiies having ihe closast temn fo (but nol fongor then) the onging torm of the appicable Supplemant, os set
fm'hmhemMMHTﬁMwﬁmmM)asdmaﬂwmrMappﬁcoblefa&m&;pﬂennntmmmfem
farth for Me Troasery Constand iMatuitios heving the closest terrn fo (but not langer than) the remaining torm of the applicable Supplament, os o forth in the
Fodaral Resorve Bosnd H. 15 Release (Salactod interest Rates) 85 of the date afual‘wl’aﬁon ofussn(smappﬂcabbbm&:pﬂml or (i) 3%,
whichever is lowes!, f 5 rafe referred o it the preceding dauses 1) or (8] Is not p fiod in such 1 reforoncoad her guch rofo sheil be
fahan Irom a repuiable source selected by Lessor

-+ Upon Ihe ocourronce of an Event of Defauft end at any time thereafter, Lessor may exescise any one of mom of Mo remodias Bsted below as Lessor in f
£0da (iscrotion may lawlully Gl provided, howevey, that upon the ocowrence of an Event of Default speciied in paragraph 17(e), an amount equé fo Lessar's
Loss as of the dafe of such occumence shell sulpmatically becam and be rnmediately due end payabis without notice or demand of any kind. , The exercise of
&ny one mamedy shak not be deemod an olection of such remedy tv pradiude the exercise of eny other remedy. Bnd such remedies may be exerclsed
concusntly o separatoly but only (o I extent necassary to permi Lassor to recover smounts far which Lesses is ¥ebls horpumder.

8]  Lessor may, by written molice fo Lesses, ferminate this Loase as to any or &f of the Equipmerd subject hersto and deciame sn amourt equal ko Lessors
Lmasdmadmdwchnoﬁasmbemmdmtelyduaandpayabb as Fouldaled damages and not &s a penally, and the same shall tharsupon be and

bacome immadiately dua and payable without further notice or demand, and af ights of Lessoa fo use the Equipment shall terminate but Lessee shofl be and

romain sbie o3 provided in this parsgraph 18. Lossee shafl st 85 axpense promptly defiver the Equiprment o Lessor 8t a logation or lecetions wittin e
continental United Stales dasignatad by Lassor. Lessor may &S0 eier upon the pramises whong the Equipment is focated and taka immediafe possession of
and remove the same with or without instivting legat procecdings.

[-}] Laswmymedbyapmmmudadmnhwmwpeﬁomanwbyumsdmappﬂmbbmnmwmmmsewmm {or broach of s
Loazs, Lossors Lose es of the date Lessor's Loss &5 dacfarnd dun and payablo hereunder; provided, howower, thel upon recovery of Lossor's Loss froin Lesses
iR any such action wilrou? having o repossass and disposa of the Equipment, Lessor chall iramsfar the Fquipmant to Lessoe of &3 then localion upon poymest of
any addifonal emount duo undor clavses (e}, [} and (g) bolow.

¢}  Intho event Lessor repassesses the Equipment, Lessor shall afher retaln the Equlpment in fuff satisfaction of Lessea’s obligation hereunder or soll o (ease
- each Rem of EqUipMEeNR in such manner and uptn such tums as Losgcor may in it sofo discretion datormine. The proceeds of any such ik or jesse shed bo
appited o reimburse Lessor lor Lessors Lass end eny additionel emoun! doe vndsr ciauses (0) and (e) below. Lessor shall be entitied to any surpkus snd
Lasms’ralmmlable for any defidancy. For purposes of this subparegraph, mmmdwmwaﬂwmymwm&mmbyumshaﬂk

the t imod by Lessor as tha cost of such Equlpment In dabarmining the rent undar such laase.
) Lsssormsysaroﬂandappfyegaﬁmanyﬁ'enﬂoromwms dup herpunder anysumsofmyhek‘.' by Lossar or any affiiafe of Lossor for Lesses;
a)  Lossir may recover inferest on the unpaid balance of Lessor's Loss plrs any bie unter oo {7} and {g) of this paragroph 18 from me

dafe ¥ bacomos peyable untlt fully paid 6t the rate of the lasser of 12% per annum o the highest rate permitiosd by law.

f}  Inaddition to any other recovery permitted hereunder or urder applicable aw, Lessor may recover from Lesses e amount thet will fully compensata Lessar
Tor any foss of or damage {0 Lessor's residual Inferest in the Equipment.

g) Lessor may oxercise any other right or romady avadable taitbthnrbywmﬂ and may 1 any everd recovar logal fees #nd offver gosty and
expensas mourrsd by reason of 81 Event of Dafeult or the exarcise of any remedy h oy, inchuding aof slon, repalr, storega,
trarsportation, end disposiiion of the Equipment. Any payment recelved by Lassor may be apmedlounpadobbgafmsas Lessor in its solz discetion
determinas.

ﬂanySuppbtm:#isdeamedafanym Io be g jease lnfanded as secunlly, Losson gran!sl.ema soauriy Intornst In the Equipment fo Secure s
abligetions under such Supplement. &ff other Supplomants snd af ather Indobiedness of any tms owing by Lossse fo Lassar. Lessoe agrees thet upon ha
ocarance of an Evont of Delauwd, In eddition o el of the offver nights and remedes ovalable fo Lossor hersunder, Lossor shafl have off of the rights and
remoadias of & sepued parly undar the Lindorm Comenertial Code.

No axpress or impfied walvar by Lessar of eny trooch of Lesspe's abligutions horsunder shel constitute o waiver of any other breach of Lessoes
obigations hereunder.

19, NOTICES. Any notice hereundar to Lessee or Lessor shall be In wiiting and shall be deemed o have boen givon whan dollvered personally or deposited
with 2 nationafy-recognized overmight couriar ssrvice of in the Unlted States mells, posfage propaid, ediressed lo redplon! af #5 adkiness se! forth sbove or of
such ofher atdress #s may be iast known to the sender.

20.  NET LEASE AND UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION. Thiz Lease Fs a complololy nat lease end Losses's obiigation 1o pay rent and &8 ol amounis
payabio by Losseo hareunter I5 absoktte, unconditional and irevocable, and shall bo paid wihod ony abatemeont, foduction. seloff or dofense of any Knd.

21. NON-CANCELABLE LEASE. This Loase cannot be canceled of lsrminaied except as exprossly provided hangin.

22 SURVIVAL OF INDEMNITIES. Lessoe's obligations under peregraphs 7, £, and 18 shaff survive larmination or expirotion of this Loass,

23, TAXINDEMNITY. Lessor'sioss of or foss of the rdghts to cal, or rcaplure of, ol or any part of the lodural or state ingonre tax benafifs Lessor
amicipafed as @ msult of entering lnfo this Leose ond owning the Equipment is reforred to harein 63 8 "Loss”. If far any reason ihis Lease & not a I lbase or
fedarol or stote income tax purpesas, of f for ary reason (even Hhaugh this Lonss may be 8 e lease} Lassor is nol antitled o depreciate thy Equipment for
fedoral or stuto incamo tax purposes in the manner thet Lessor anticipaiad whan emforing into this Loase, end a3 & resuft Lessor suffery a Losa, then Lessee
agrees (o pay Lessor, as additonsl bask: rent, 8 kimp-sum amount! which, after e payment of all federal, stete and Jacal income taxes on e recelpt of such
amourd, and using the same essumphians st lo tax benedits end othor matiers Lessor used in onginally evelualing and pricing this Loasa, will in tho masonabie
opinion of Lessor maintair Lessors net effordax rate of mtum with resped o this Losse of tha 5ame kevel 1t would have been if stch Loss had not ocourrad, The
Lessor makos no represantation with respect (o #ra incomo fak conseyuences of s Lexse or the Equipment. Lessor wil notify Losses of sny claim that may
giva rice to indomty horaunder. Lessor sholl make a reasonable efford o contest any sudh cdaim bt shall heve no obligeBion i contest such dlaln boyond the
adminkstratve level of the Informal Ravenue Sordce or ofher lexing suthorty. in any event, Lexsor ahell controd a¥ espends of eny Faifiement and comest.
Lasses agreas Io poy the legal fdes snd othor put-of-pockal expensas incumod by Lessor i1 defending any such claim sven # Lessor's dofonse is succasstul.
Notwithstonding the forogoing, Lassee zhad hava ro obiigations tu indemnily Lessor for any Loss coused sololy by (a) a casually 1o the Equipment # Lessoo
pays the emount Lossee is mquirod to pay a3 a result of such casualty, (b) Lessor's sale of ha Equipmont other ihan on accourt of an Event of Default
henatinder, {c) fallure of Lessor to have suffidlent income to utilize its anticipatad iax banelits o to timedy cletm such tax benofts, ond (0} a changa in tax law
{noluding tax rafes) effective eftor the Lease begins. For purposes of this paregreph 23, the term “Lessor” shal intiude any member of an affiiated groop of
which Lessor Is (or may boecoma} & mambar if corsnideted fax refms e filed for such efisfed group for fedemd income Lex purposes. Lossoe's indemnly
obifgations under this paragraph 23 shall sufvive terfnination of this Loass.

24 COUNTERPARTS, Thero shal ba ono arfgingl of the Mastor Leass and of oech Supplement and # shell be marked "Original " To the axdant thel any
Supplemont constiutes chalfel paper (a3 thet [erm i dafined by the Untom Commorcial Code),  secwurlly interest nray anly be arpated in the Supplement
marked “Drignal*
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5 NON-WAIVER. No course of deating belwoen Lessor and Lessea of any delay or omission ot the part of Lassar in exercising any nghts hereunder
ehail opereto 8< & walver of any rights of Lossar, A waiver on sy one oocoslon sheff not be construed as & ber i or walvor of eny right or remady on any
fture pecasion. No wetver ar consent shal b binding upon Lessor unioss X Js In writing and signed by Lossor, Ta the axtont parmitied by applicable law,

. Lesgee hereby waives the benofit end o ge of, gnd ao nfs not o essort against Lessor, any valuation, inquisiion, stay, apprefsemmm, extension or
redempiion iaw's now existing oF wivich sy hereafter exist which, but for this provision, migit be appicable to any sake or ne-lgasing made under the
Judgmeant, arer or decoe of any court or unger ihe pawers of sale Bnd re-leasing confamed by this Lease or othansa, To the exient permitted by
spplicable law, Lossae horoby walves any end afl rights and remadies corfemmed upon 5 Losseo by Artidle 2A-508 through 24522 of the Uniipen
Commarcial Coda, mmmmmmmmumtﬁmmm:ﬁ)mmrsm;ﬁ)mmsmmm;;ﬁ)mmwmﬁv)mm
secaptance of the Equipmant; (v) recaver dumages from Lassor for any broaches of wamanty or for eary other (eason; {vi} cigiry 8 secusly intorest in the
Equipment in Lessee’s possession or control for any mason; {vil) deduct all or any port of any claimed dampges resulting fromy Lessor's dafmrt, if any, under
this Leass: (vill) sccapt pertist delivery of the Equipment: (ix) ‘cover by making any purchese oF lease of of contracl {0 purchise or fease Equipment in
substittion of Equipment kleritfiad to tis Lease; (x} recover any gensral, specill, inckfantad, or consequentis! damages, for any reason whalsoevar, and (xf)
speciic performance, replavin, delime, sequastralion, claim, defvery or the fike for any Equipment idontiied to ihfs Leese. To the axien! pormitted by
appiicabla law, Losses also horaby waives any rights noxy or hereafter confared Dy stalute or cihomwise which may roquire Lessor o 'sell, lsase or otherwise
use any Equipment in mitigalion of Lessor's damages a8 s=i fortl in paragraph 18 or which may otherwise i or modily any of Lessor’ rights or remedies
wridor paragraph 18.

6. MISCELLANECUS. This Master Legse end related Supplement(s) constinde the antim agresment betwesn Lessor and Lesses and may be modified
il by & written instrument signed by Lassor and Lesses. Any provision of this Loeasa which is unentorcenbls in amy jurisdiction shal, &s ha such
furtsdliction, be ineffective to the extont of such unenforceabilty without ivalidating the remaining provisions of s Lease, angd eny such unenforceabiity in
any kudscietion shalt nof renger unenforcesble such provision in eny other juristiction. Paregraph hoadings ere for convenlence only, are not part of this
Lense and shafl not be deemed [0 effact the meaning or construction of any of tho provisions hereol. in the event thare Is more than ong Lassas named in

- Mtis Master Lease or in any Supolament, the obligations of sach shall ba joirt and saversl. Lessormay in Xz sola discretion, socspl 8 pholocopy,
elecironically rensmitted facsimile or otter roproduction of this Master Leass emiior o Supplement (& “Counferpart”) as the binting and effactive record of
this Master Laase andir @ Supplement whether or not an ink signed copy hereof or theroof is a1so received by Lessor from Lesses, provided. however, that
If Lessor accepts a Counterpart as tha binding and effective record of this Mastor Lease or a Suppiement, the Countarpart acknowiedged in wiithg by
Lessar shall constitule the record hereaf or therpof, Lossae agress thal @ Countorpart of this Mastor Laase or 8 Supplomont recelved by Lessor, shall, whon
ecknowledged in withng by Lessor, constitute an orginal decurient for the purposas of estabfishing the provisions hersaf and thereaf and shell ba legally
somissidle under the best avidencs e and binding on and enfarcosbie against Lesses. If Lessor actepts o Counterpart of 8 Suppismoent et the bimdng
and effoctive recond thereof only such Countsiport acknowiedgod in witting by Lessor shall be marked “Onginal” and (o the oxtont that 8 Supplement
constitutes chetlef paper, a securily inferost may only be crested In the Supplomant thet begrs Lessor’'s ink skined oekm todgemerd amd is menked
“Original.* This Lesse shall it el rospects be governad by, and consirusd in accordonco with, the substantive iaws of ihe stele of Minmesofe. LESSEE
HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT T ANY MATTER ARISING UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE. TIME
15 OF THE ESSENCE WITH RESPECT TO THE OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE UNDER THiS LEASE.

Yer. 0809
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Wells Fargo & tFnenco, Inc.. N
KRR 75 tampote avence, S 00 ' Amendment fo
FARGO - MAC N9306-070 Master Lease

Minneapolis, MN 55402

' Weﬂs Fargo Equipment Fmanee, Inc. ("Lassor?) and U.S. Renal Cars Home Theraples LLC ("Lessee’) herahy
amend the Master Lease Number 288280 daled as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease?) as follows:

1. Section 6{a)(wi) is amended by defeting 1t and repiacing it in its entirety with tha following: “kesp
accurate and complate records perfaining to Borrower's business and financlal condition and submit
o Lendar such quarterly and annual reports conceming Borrowar's busmess and financigl condition
Lendar may from time to tima reasonably request;”

2 Ssction 15 is amended by replacing words “Lassee wifl promptly execute and deliver fo Lessor” with
“Lesses will execuls and deiver to Lessor within tan (10) days of Lassor’s request”

" 3. Section 17(a) is amended by inserting “within (5) fiva business days of bafore the words “when due™
4. Saction 17(c) is amended by deleting Jen (10) calendar days” and ropiacing il with “20 calendar days”.

5. Section 17(s} is emended by Inserfing “and,. f such petition Is involuntary, the same shall not be
dismissed within 30 calendar days of its fling”

6. Naw clauses (k), () and {m) aro hereby added as additional Events of Defauil in Section 17 of tha .
Agreamant fo read as follows:

“tk) an evont of dafaurt shaﬂ oceur aftar giving effect to any provided éure period, of Lessee under
that cenain Crodil Agreement dated as of May 24, 2010 among Lesses as Borrowesr, the
Guarentors and Lenders ientifiad thereinBank of America, N.A., as Syndicstion Agent, and Royal
Bank of Canads, as Administrative Agent end as Collateral Agent, es such Credii Agreement mey
bé amendad fram time to time (the “Credit Agreement?); (1) faflure of Lesses to maintain-at all times
& minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Relio es defined and set forth in the Credit Agreemant; ()
faiiure o certify in wriling lo Lessor within sixty (60) days of the end of each fiscal quarter as to
those matters pertaining lo financlel stalaments and Events of Defaull stated In the form for such
cortil catbn attached hereto as Exhibi A." ‘

Except as modfﬁad hersin, the termns end conditions of the Laase remsin the same and continus in full force and

affect. In the event of a confiict between fha tenns of the Lease and this Amendment, the ferms of this
Amendment shall pr’avaﬂ.

Datedd: Novemy rZ, 2010

M LESSEE:
 Wells Fargo|Equitment Fing U.S. Renal Cane Homs Therapies, LLC
. , .
By: : "By

. Shelton, Mansger
Tite: ____am__ :

. Révised U3 Renaf Coro inc amendment & ML (v2} {2).doc
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. Exhibit A
To Amaendment to Master Lease dated as of November 2, 2010

To: Woells Fargo Equipment Financs, Inc.
733 Mamuelle Avenus
Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attn; Senior Lending Manager; Healthcare

Re:, Quarterty Compiiance Certification of U.S. Renal Care Home Theraplas, LLC (Lessee’)

Thé undersigned Lessee hershy certifies b Walls Fargo Equipmient Fingnee, Ine, (Lessor’) that (a} the
financial statement of Lesses doted as of June 30, 2010, herctofore or concurrently herewith deliversd by
Lessee lo Lessor, Is true and correct, and has been prepared in accordance with generally acceplad accounting
principals, and (b} as of the dalé hereof, there exists no defaulf or defined Event of Default under any loan
agreement, promissory nata or other document In effect with respect to any credit accommodation granted by
Lessorto Lesses, - '

Dated: November 2, 2010

Page2 0f2
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Wolls Fargo Equipment Fin '
WL L :fmm. I Finance, inc. _ Amendment to
FAHGL MAC NB306-0T0 - Master Lease

Woelis Fargo Equipment Finance, Int. (‘Lessor’) and U.S. Renal Care Home Thersples, LLC (“Lesses’) hereby
amend the Mastor Loase Number 288280 daled as of November 2, 2010 (the "Lease?) a3 follows:

1.

Saclion 6{a)(vl) is amended by doeleting it and replacing it In #s entirely with the following: ‘keep
securale and complete records pertaining to Bommower's business and financial condition and submil
{0 Lendar such quarterly and annual reports conceming Borrowers business and financisl condition
Lender may from time fo time- reasonably request;™

Section 15 Is amended by replacing words "Lesses will promptly exscute and doliver fo Lessor” wilh
‘Lossoo will execule and detiver to Lessor within fen (10) days of Lessor’s request”

Section 17(a) Is amendad by inserting "within (5) five business days of” before the words “when due”,
" Section 17(c).is amended by delsting “ten (10) caféndar days” and replacing i with "20 calandsr days”.

Sechion 17(e) Is amended by Inserting “and, such petition Is Ewoluntary, the same shall not be
dismissed within 30 calendar days of ils filing”

New clauses (), {i) and (m) ame hersby added és addiional Events of Default in Section 17 of the
Agmement to m&d a3 foflows: .

(k) an evenfof defauit shell occur after giving effect fo any provided cure penod of Lesses under
that cerfain Cradit Agreament dated 85 of July 5, 2006 emang Lesses as Bamower, the Gueraimors
amd Lenders identifled thereln, CapitaiSource -Finance LLC, as Syndicsfion Agent, and CIT
Hesftfrcare LLC, as Administrative Agent and as:Issuing Bank, as such Credit Agresmendt may be
amendaed from time to time; (I) faifure of Lessea to mainfain at afl imes g minimurn Fhxad Charge
Coversge Ratio (a3 defined below) of 1.20; (m) failure to cerlify in writing to Lessor within sixdy (60}
days of tha end of pach fiscal quarter as to those meatlers perlaiing lo financlal statements and
Events of Default stated in the form for such cerification attached herato as Exhibi A. “Fixed
Charge Coverage Ralio® is defined as se! forth in tha atlached Exhidit B, without regard {0 whethsr
efther of the two agreements from which the text of Exhibil B was taken Is subsequenby modified or
remﬂnated

-Except as modified harein, the terms and conditons of the Lease remain the same and continue in full foree and
effect. In the svent of a conflict between the Isrmns of the Lease and this Amendmem' the terms of !m‘s
Amendment shall prevall.

Datad: Novemper 2, 2010

LESSOR: LESSEE:

Wells Fargo : U.S. Renal Cers Home Therapies, LLC

U'S Renal Core i

for Zinik o Mdoc
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Welts Frrgo Equlpmont Finence, me. Supplement to Master Lease
733 Marquetio Avenus, Sults TOO Agreoment of Sale
MAC NO3OS-070

Kinnoapokis, MN 55402

Suppiarnant Numiber 0288280400 dated os of Novarmbar 2, 2010
o .

- Mastor Loase Number 285280 dated as of Novomber 2. 20
Namo and Address of Losses:
US Ronaf Cere Home Theraples LLC
1313 La Concha Lene
Houston, TX 77054

Notice: Lessor resefves the right (o withdraw the terms of this Suppiement and Issue & modifiod Supplement without notice
to Lessov if Lassor ks not in recelpt of & fully executod orfginel or facsimila of this documont within five (5) businoss days of
_the date of this Supplement. However, in that svent, no such modificitions witl be binding on Lossoe unfess and untll Lessos

axecutos the modifed document contnining aN such modiications.

.This Is a Supplement fo the Mastar Leass fgentified above between Lessar and Lesses (the "Mastor Leasa”). Upon the axecution and

dolivery by Lassor ant Lessea of this Supplemont, Lassor heroby agrees lo lease o Lesses, and Lessas heraby agreses fo lease from

Lassor, the equipment descred helow upon the terms and condifions of this Supplement and the Master Lease. All lerms and

_corxditions of the Mastar Lease shall remain in full force and effect except to the extant modifiad by this Supplemant, This Supplement
- and tho Master Lease s it refates (o this Supplement re hemeinafter refermad ko as the Lease”.

Equipment Description:
The Equlpment described an Schodufe A sttached hereto and mada a part froreof
Aflor Lasses signs this Leaso, Lessse authorizes Lessor fo imserl eny missing information or change any fnaccurate ifomnation (such

as the mods! year of the Equipment or i3 serial number or VIN} into this Equrpmant Dascription.
Equipment Location: 1313 La Concha Lane, Houston, TX TT054
SUMMARY OF PAYMENT TERMS

Initigl Term (Moaths): 60 7ol CoSt 3103,892.7?
Payment Frequancy. Monthhy Total Basic Rent. $123,532.80
Basio Rontal Payment: $2,059.88 plus spplicable sales and use | Interim Rent Dally Rate: .014%
iax

Numbsr of instalimonts. 60 Cutoff Date: December 16, 2010
Advarice Paymoerits: First dus on sighing this Leasa Security Daposit. A
Additional Provisfons: Tols! Fingnoo Charges: §14,700.03

End of Termn Agreemaont:

1. addition to paying the Tolel Basic Rent when and as dus undar the Laase, Lasses agrees o pay Lassor $1.00 on the expiration
dsio of the nitial term of the Lease (the “Final Purchass Paymuant).

2. Upon recoipt of the Tulal Basic Rent and the Final Purchase Faymment by Lessor, the Equipment shall be deemned transfermed o

Lessoa &t its then bocstion. Upon roquest by Lossee, Lessor will deliver a bl of sale transferring the Equdpment to Lessee. Lessor

_ heraby waants that at the time of lrensfer the Equipment wil be free of all securily inferesty and other fions crested by Lessor orin
favor of persons caiming thiough Lossar, LESSOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFHICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPQSE AND ANY LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR THE

. INABILITY TO USE THE EQUIPMENT.
THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED PAGE(S).

Ls.sjz%ﬂs!:argo ipment Fimange, inc, LLS, Renal Cams Horme Therapes, LLC,
By
— VY
Thie
ﬂ,gc,w-bm 3, 201D
Rent Commencement Dale
Fegedof2 SUPSALE CANNCOH HOXXR0 1238 Z00ero-400 X V23 10851
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4.

Failwe to pay the Final Purchese Paymeant when due shafl constitute an "Event af Defaud” urdor the Leass.
Lasses agrses fo pay ak salps and use taxes ersing on sccowrk of Bhe saks of the Equipmeant fo Lessoe,

Lessor mahos no representation with respect to the Income fax consequences of tha lransaction evidenced by iis Lesss. Lassor wit beat
the loase a5 & sale regardiess of how the Loase is beated by Lossea.

Modification to Master Lease: To be consisiont with s Supplomont the Master Leass is amended as fofows;

1
F4

The second peragraph of paragraph 2 {refating o ewiomatic sxtension) is hareby dafofed.
The third sentence of paragragh 12 covering casuslly o the Equipment is amendad to read as foliows:
Irr the event any fem of Eqedpment shall becoma lad, stolen, desiroyed, demaged bayond repatr, or rendared

permanerily unfl for use for ey reason, or it the evord of condemnation or seizure of any item of Equipment, Lossoe
shel promptly pey Lessor an emount equal o Lessar's Loss as defined in paragraph 18 with respect to such lfem et the

.{ima of payment based on the proportion that the origina! cost of such fem bears to the Totul Cost of off Rems of

Equipmont

Tha shith senternce of paragraph 12 is amondad [0 read “Any Insurance or condamnation procoeds feceived shall be cradied fp
Lesseo's obigation undar this paragraph end Lesssea shall e entited to any surphs.”

Paragraph 14 and 23 are dofeted in thuir antirety.
The third serdgnce of paregraph 18(::}'5ammdedmma&1asssssnaﬂbeenﬁ‘dedfomyswp‘mandmaﬂmsh#abiaﬁrany
deficanty.”

Clause (a} of the first sentence of paregraph 13 fs amendsd fo read es foflows: "(a) comprehensive gonaral abdity insurance
insuring exainst dahily for bodfly injury and property damage with a minimumn it of $2,000,000.00 comtined single kmft per

Ver. 1109

Paga 2 of 2: SUPSALE
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Walls Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. Schedule A
IEANEIEN 733 Marquotio Avenve

Sutte 700

Mnmspolis, MN 55402

WE L

. Contratt No. 288280400 dated ag of November 2, 2010
Lostoo: US Rorral Care Home Theraples, LLC

Equipmont Description: Dialysts, Computor and Computer Software systems equipment
together with el optians, altachmerts and eccessorios as more fully described on the klfowing Vendor Invaices

Assel 1D Dascription Datn AsseAClass ID  Yendor ID Check & nvolce £
10260 Red Pult Tight Lock 1215008 EQUIPMENT METROMEDICAL 7818 70814600
{22.00} 7086883-01
7846 773474-01
(831.20)
8189
{261.68)
10259 EPROM for upgrade to CRRT 121509 EQUIPMENT  FRESENIUS USA 7779 84485260
10262 18 X 72 Adj. Shelf 010810 EQUIPMENT INTERMETRO 7800 10279243
10284 2008 K Dhatysts, Machine 0210110 EQUIPMENT  FRESENIUS USA 7958 94583144
10265 Marcor FEO1 RO System ovi8M0 EQUIPMENT MAR COR 7042 0000159306
108 BOXL Mater Kit-GT 052510 EQUIPMENT MESA LABS B247 0383636-IN

Equipmemt Originally located at: 1313 La Concha Lang
Houston, TX 77054

Datad: November 2, 2010

Losasa: US Renal Care Homo Theraples, LLC

Pape 1 of 1

Attachment 39 190




ATTACHMENT 40

FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAIVER

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources.

18889591
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ATTACHMENT 41

VIABILITY

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources as indicated in Attachment 40.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

Sec Attached Certification

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

See Attached Certification

C. Rcasonablencss of Project Costs

The applicant shall document that the estimated project costs are reasonable and shall
document compliance with the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

7

1888555-1

Preplanning costs — Costs do not exceed 1.8% of construction and modemization
contracts plus contingencies plus equipment costs.

Total costs for site survey, soil investigation fees and site preparation — This
criterion is not applicable as there are no site survey, soil investigation fees or site
preparation costs associated with this projcct.

Construction and modernization costs — As indicated in Section 1120 Appendix
A HFSRB staff will review the cost per square foot data submitted in the
application, to determine compliance with the latest available cost standards of the
R8Means publication.

Contingencies — This criterion is not applicable as Applicant does not anticipate the
need for Contingencies associated with this project.

New construction or modernization fces — This criterion is not applicable as therc
are no construction and modemization fees associated with this project.

~ The costs of all capitalized equipment not included in construction contracts do

not exceed the standards for equipment. The anticipated Movable or Other
Equipment cost is $436,924. On the basis of 13 stations, the calculated as a per
station cost is $33,609. The corresponding standard listed in 77 111 Admin. Code
1120.APPENDIX is $39,945 for 2008, adjusting for inflation using the RS Means
rate of .05% increases this standard to $40,004 for 2011 ($39,945 x 1.0005 x
1.0005 x 1.0005). The anticipated per station equipment cost of $33,609 is
consistent with both the 2008 and 2011 standard and is thus in compliance.

Building acquisition, net interest expense, and other cstimated costs — There are
no Building acquisition, net interest expense, and other related costs associated
with this project as Applicant is proposing to used leased space for the provision
of dialysis services. '
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8) Cost Complexity Index (to be applied to hospitals only) - This criterion is
inapplicable as the Project is related to the establishment of In-Center

Hemodialysis services.

D. Projected Operating Costs.

Projected Operating Costs Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Labor 744,352 9,246 80.51
Medical supplies 194,787 §,246 21.07
Medications 553,127 0,246 59.82
Medical Director fees 75,000 9246 8.11
Management Fee 213,196 9,246 23.08
Cther 265,350 9,246 28.70

Total Projected Operating Costs” 2,041,812 9,246 221.26

*Excludes Bad Debt

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs
Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
251,607 9,246 | 27.21

Total Effect of the Project on Capital Cost

1888959-1
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC QOak Brook, LL.C

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, | attest that the total estimated project costs and
related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By: W

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this i‘h day
of May , 2011

i%pr ;&hﬂu@f\\f

Signature of Notary

Wiy
SSALS

ey
g 2012 N
it

Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May , 2011

Signature of Notary

Wiy
\"‘\\\\\“ USA L :S"’;(,’I,
LTI
= o ROT. ' F‘-%

W

) N1S

R; E? -z

. £
%, ", :)\‘\‘ES-‘b
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Mt W

- ..
%, s & S
,’/)&c’b'"onu!‘ N
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Oak Brook, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt financing are
reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By: W By: A/i//"lpz\&m/) /) Sarn

Its: Manager Its: President and Manager
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day Subscribed and sworn to me this 19™ day
of May , 2011 of May ,2011
4 XUJ ‘74/2/,)/? Moo
Signature of Nota:y Signature of Notary

g,
\\‘\%\\‘:ﬁ.@ Vacy,
RV B

e Lok
i? .QQ\ ( e, ’/-":'.’ \“\““""”ﬂ,”
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77 lll. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, ] attest that the total estimated project costs and
related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

L ]

By, F 2 D By: /Va’ﬂ[/lmw D S

/
Its: Manager Its: President and Manager
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May, 2011 of May, 2011
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
\\“\““ iy iy \\\\\““é.vl,:‘,"” sy, ?
SN STEWAR T, N\ SR,
S, SRR, Ty
s § % 2 e L2
z i i g e o i
E! @ f = R ¥ ;] £
Z h 9, ¥ & F Z 5 oy s §
Z % A - Z %, ATEORNe & F
f[, " 2_ X \\\\ f/[’” -27'® \\\\\\
i Uity
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77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt financing are
reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day

period.

o L2 o b v [

Its: Manager
Its: President and Manager
Notarization:
Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May, 2011 Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May, 2011
L;&Lb . QM \25
Signature of Notary (/13 ,Q-LO.JO’U{'
Signature of Notary
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. U.S. Renal Care, Inc,

77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project

costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment

By: 7%.._\__7&

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19" day
of May 2011

Moo

Signature of Notary

Wy,

securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

o L [

Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 1_9‘_[‘, day
of May _, 2011

Signature of Notary

Wiy,
SXewART

erdin, I”/

Sy rsivueLg %
\“}":é‘)\
-
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. 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

[ ]

. U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

. In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt

financing are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation
of existing investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility.
Should the applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital
retained could be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a
sixty (60) day period.

By: %"‘—7" By: /\MA\M /J%

Its: Manager

Notanzation:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 19™ day
of May , 2011

%J)C 3%@\)\/

Signaturev of Notary

Wity
S \EWAQ Y,
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Its: President and Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 1_93 day
of Ma , 2011

{ &&o\/d\)f

Signature of Notary

aW iy,
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ATTACHMENT 44

SAFETY NET IMPACT

This criterion is required only for Substantive and Discontinuation projects. As the proposed
project is non-Substantive and for the establishment of a category of service, this criterion is
inapplicable to the proposed project.

1888959-1
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ATTACHMENT 44

CHARITY CARE

Payor Mix Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Billed Govt Patients 29 57 59
Billed Commercial Patlents 1 6 8
Billed Non Govt Low Patients 0 0
Total Patients K] 63 67

Charity Care Information Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Net Revenue 352,705 | 2,199,835 | 3,045,660
Bad Debt / Charity Care 9,876 61,595 85,278
Ratio of Bad Debt to Net Revenus 0.028 0.028 D.02_8

1888959-1
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APPENDIX 1
PATIENT REFERRAL LETTERS

1888959-1
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May 16, 2011

Mr. Dale Galassie
Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson St., 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

We are writing in support of the certificate of need application for the proposed U.S.
Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis clinic.

We currently refer patients to several facilities depending on the location and availability
of the dialysis facility, included as Appendix A is a list of those facilities. Based on our
records, in the past three years, we have referred for dialysis 80 patients in 2010, 86
patients in 2009 and 55 patients in 2008. These referrals are a component of the dialysis
volumes as reported to the Renal Network by the dialysis facilities. Included as
Appendix B is the patient origin information by facilities for the years 2008, 2009 and
2010.

With regard to new patients referred for dialysis, in the year 2010, we have referred 66
new patients for hemodialysis. These referrals are a component of the dialysis volumes
as reported to the Renal Network by the dialysis facilities. Included as Attachment C is a
patient count by facility and zip code of newly referred patients.

Based upon a review of our 1,057 Pre-ESRD (Chronic Kidney Disease) patients that
currently are in CKD Stage 3, 4, and 5, we anticipate referring 26.7% of those patients for
dialysis within 2 years. Of those paticnts, we anticipate referring 147 ESRD patients,
who live in Suburban Cook or DuPage Counties, to U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis
for dialysis within 2 years after completion of the facility.

We respectfully ask the Board to approve the U.S. Renal Care Oak Brook Dialysis CON
application to provide in center hemodialysis services for this growing ESRD population
in Suburban Cook and DuPage Counties. Thank you for your consideration.

We attest to the fact that to the best of our knowledge, all the information contained in
this letter is true and correct and that the projected referrals in this document were not
used to support any other CON application.

Appendix 1




Respectfully,

Signature: ﬁ\_@_ﬂ_ _;a}
Name: Anis A Rauf D!

Title: Neghrologist

Signature: &%A%A___

Name: Mohammed S. Ahmed D.O.
Title: Nephrologist

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me
this ppday of _pal ,2¢)

Q@/C &Aﬁ&

Notary Public

"OFFICIAL SEAL"
JACK SARTORE
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 3/26/2013

e Y Y .
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APPENDIX A - REFERRAL FACILITIES

" Dialysis Center - -

Advanced Home Dialysis

Advanced Home Therapies i

Affiliated Dialysis, Westmont

Community Nursing Home Naperwlle

DaVita Alton

Fairview Baptist Nursmg Home Dialysis

FMC Bartlet

IFMC Berwyn )

FMC Blue island

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bridgeport

FMC Burbank

FMC Crestwood

FMC Downers Gro_ve Dialysis Center

FMC Elk Grove

FMC Evergreen Park

FMC Glendale Helghts 6|aly5|s

FMC Mokena

FMC Naperville Dlaly5|s Center

FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center

FMC Neomedica West

FMC Orland Park

FMC Oswego

FMC Palos

FMC Plainfield

FMC Roseland

FMC South Suburban

FMC Tinley Park

FMC University Program

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Westchester

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

Fox Valley Dialysis

Good Samaritan Inpatient Hospital

Gotleib Hospital Dialysis

Hinsdale Inpatient Hospital

Loyola Dialysis Maywood

Maple Avenue Kidney Center

Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home -

Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
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_ : : Dialysis Center
Meadowbrook Naperville Nursing Home

Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit

Neph Inc. Mishawaka

Otttawa Dialysis Center

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis

Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit

Tri Cities Dialysis

UIC Downtown

Appendix 1
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APPENDIX B — REFERRAL FACILITIES PATIENT ORIGIN

i Year Dialysis Center " Zip. Patients _|
2008 Advanced Home Dialysis 60440 1
2008 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60532 1
2008 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60563 1
2008 FMC Berwyn 60402 2
2008 FMC Berwyn 60501 1
2008 FMC Blue Island 60406 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60439 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrock 60440 4
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60586 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60644 1
2008 FMC Bolingbrook 60625 1
2008 FMC Bridgeport 60616 1
2008 FMC Burbank 60501 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60137 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60148 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60544 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60559 1
2008 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60563 1
2008 FMC Evergreen Park 60805 1
2008 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60108 1
2008 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60138 1
2008 FMC Mokena 60491 1
2008 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 60565 1
2008 FMC Naperville Dialysis Center 83301 1
2008 FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center 60440 1
2008 FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center 60544 1
2008 FMC Palos 60415 1
2008 FMC Villa Park Dialysis 60148 2
2008 FMC Westchester 60525 1
2008 FMC Westchester 60546 1
2008 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60458 1
2008 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60527 4
2008 Good Samaritan Inpatient Hospital 60644 1
2008 Loyola Dialysis Maywood 60521 1
2008 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60526 1
2008 Meadowbrock Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60048 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60151 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60435 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60440 2
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60445 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60451 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60478 1
2008 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60482 1
2008 Otttawa Dialysis Center 60428 1
2008 RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60108 1
2008 Silver Cross Hospita! Dialysis Unit 60433 1
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2008 Total
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2008
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2008
2009
2009
2008
2009
2008
2008
2009
2008
2009
2009
2003
2009
2009
2009

Advanced Home Therapies
Advanced Home Therapies
Advanced Home Therapies
Community Nursing Home Naperville
DaVita Alton

Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis
Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis
FMC Blue Island

FMC Blue Island

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Bolingbrook

FMC Burbank

FMC Burbank

FMC Burbank

FMC Burbank

FMC Crestwood

FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center
FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Naperville Dialysis Center

FMC Naperville Dialysis Center

FMC Naperville Dialysis Center

FMC Naperville Dialysis Center

FMC Naperville North Dialysis Center
FMC Neomedica West

FMC Oswego

FMC Roseland

FMC South Suburban

FMC Tinley Park

FMC University Program

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Willowbrock Dialysis Center

60517
60521
60559
60563
62002
60516
60525
60472
60827
60439
60517
60440
60446
60544
60586
60901
60455
60457
60458
60629
60445
60148
60164
60181
60193
60515
60516
60517
60644
60139
60440
60490
60521
60643
60446
60625
60543
60628
60475
60452
60440
60101
60482
60525
60526
60534
60638
58784
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2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60446 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60458 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60459 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60514 1
2009 FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60527 2
2009 Fox Valley Dialysis 60506 2
2009 Loyola Dialysis Maywood 60130 1
2008 Loyola Dialysis Maywood 60162 1
2009 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60513 1
2009 Maple Avenue Kidney Center 60638 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 53168 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60431 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60435 1
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60440 2
2009 Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60446 1
2009 Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60608 1
2009 Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60636 1
2009 Meadowbrook Naperville Nursing Home 60440 1
2009 Neph Inc. Mishawaka 46628 1
2009 RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60617 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60403 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60431 1
2009 Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit 60446 1
2009 Total 86
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60137 1
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60148 1
2010 Advanced Home Therapies 60527 1
2010 Affiliated Dialysis, Westmont 60542 1
2010 Community Nursing Home Naperville 60505 1
2010 Fairview Baptist Nursing Home Dialysis 60148 1
2010 FMC Bartlet 60107 1
2010 FMC Berwyn 60402 1
2010 FMC Berwyn 60629 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60101 1
2010 FMC Bolinghrook 60585 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60403 2
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60440 7
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60441 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrock 60442 1
2010 FMC Bolingbrook 60506 1
2010 FMC Burbank 60453 1
2010 FMC Burbank 60458 1
2010 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60148 1
2010 FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center 60515 1
2010 FMC Elk Grove 60143 1
2010 FMC Elk Grove 60191 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60101 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60103 1
2010 FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60108 9
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2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010
2010 Total
Grand Total

FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis

FMC Orand Park

FMC Orland Park

FMC Plainfield

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Villa Park Dialysis

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Westchester

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center

FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center
Gotleib Hospital Dialysis

Hinsdale Inpatient Hospita!
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home
Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis

RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis

Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit
Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit

Tri Cities Dialysis

UIC Downtown

60191
60613
60462
60491
60544
60126
60148
60523
60137
60402
60513
60525
60526
60513
60516
60517
60521
60559
60561
60131
60173
54981
60126
60645
60463
60525
60651
60623
60628
60901
60432
60435
60174
60440
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APPENDIX C - NEW REFERRALS

e " Dialysis Center T zip | Patents |
Advanced Home Therapies o 80137
Community Nursing Home Naper\nlle _ 60505

_FMCBartet 60107

_FMCBerwyn ., 60402
: FMC Berwyn .. 60828

_EM_Q__Bollngbrook e ..., 60403
i FMC Bolingbrook 60440

| FMC Bolingbrook . 60441
QF_MC Bollngbrook - . 60442
MC _Bohngbrook 50505_1 o

_FMCButbank . 60453
: FMC Burbank 60458
: FMC Downers Grove Dialysis Center ... 60515
. FMC Elk Grove .. 60143
. FMC Elk Grove ... .. 60191

__EMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60101
FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis 60103

_FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis . . 60108
.FMC Glendale Heights Dialysis = 60131

.EMC Glendale Heights Dialysis .. 60613
FMC Orland Park ... 60462
" FMC Orland Park o 60491
_FMC Villa Park Dialysis . 60126
_FMC Villa Park Dialysis =~ 60148 .
- FMC Villa Park Dialysis . 60523
- FMC Westchester .. 80137
FMC Westchester .., 60525
FMC Westchester S . 60526 _
FMC Willowbrook Dlaly5|s Center ... . sBoo13
" FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center - 60516
. FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center | 60517
FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60559
_FMC Willowbrook Dialysis Center 60861
Gotleib Hospital Dialysis =~ 60131
_ Hinsdale Inpatient Hospital 60173

_Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home =~ 54981
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60126
Meadowbrook Bolingbrook Nursing Home 60645

_Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60463
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60525
Meadowbrook LaGrange Nursing Home 60651

Mt Sinai Hosp Med Ctr Renal Unit 60623
RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis 60628

: b . ' Lo i N .
! H 1 : : H H : ' . :
_L:._\.:_L - —L;_L:—LI-L e e e e ) _l;'\):_ll_l. B . T R T T R« T . T W s ) B K T S . N N
o : . L N ' R L § : . : : , : ; :

_RML Specialty Hospital Dialysis . 60901
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| Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit

Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Unit
| Tri Cities Dialysis
_UIC Downtown

60432

60435

60174
60440

'—‘E—‘ M-
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APPENDIX 2
MAPQUEST MAPS OF FACILITIES

1888959-1
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Itlinois to 1300 Waterford ... Page 1 of 1

Notes

Trip to:

1300 Waterford Dr

Aurora, [l_ 60504-5502 :

18.09 miles

26 minutes F e e et e e e i e e o

All rights re; . Use subject 19 License/Copyriaht

Directions and maps are informationat only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their contemt, rmad conditions of roule usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use, MapQuest and fts suppliers shall not be llable to you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Tems of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print7a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67c3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 455 Mercy Ln, ... Page 1 of 1

- g NS e e e e
mapquest i . :
Trip to: ; '
455 Mercy Ln
Aurora, IL 60506-2462 .

19.39 miles :

27 minutes .

his reserved. Use subj Licenses Tigh

Diractions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the eccuracy of their content, roed conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and Its suppliors shalt not be lable 10 you for any loss or deley resulling from your use of
MopQues!. Your use of MapQuest means you agres to our Janns of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba%1d8c67¢3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, lllinois to 514 W 5th Ave, ... Page 1 of |

Notes

mapquest i -
i
Trip to: ;
514 W 5th Ave
Naperville, IL 60563-2901
9.52 miles

18 minutes

o | B
i

i

et e
o
anfP

A &f\-ﬁ—

All rights reserved, Use subject fo License/Copyright

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no wamranties on the accuracy of their content, road condillons or route usabifity or
expedifiousness. You assume all risk of use, MapQuest and its suppliers shafl not be fiabls lo you for any loss or dalay resuliing from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.corc.cdfa0633cd 1 1340150417946 4/11/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, 1ilinois to 329 Remington ... Page | of 1

Notes

mapquestm® T ———

H
i
i

Trip to: ,
329 Remington Bivd ;
Bolingbrook, IL 60440-5827
13.63 miles
20 minutes

All rights reserved, Use subject to | jcense/Copyri

Directions and maps are informational only. Wa make no warmrantles on the accuracy of thelr content, roed conditions or route_ usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all isk of use, MapQuest and its suppiers shall not be liable to you for eny loss of delay resulling from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

|
|
http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633cd11340{50417946 4/11/2011
|
|
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 100 Spalding Dr.. Pagelof!

mapquest m© =~

Trip to:

100 Spalding Dr

Naperville, IL 60540-6550 :

12.89 miles !

22 minutes e e

1] Use subjed to License/Copyriahi

Directions and maps are informational anly. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their contenl, road conditions or route usability or

 expeditiousness. You assume # risk of use. MapQuest and fis supplicrs shall not be {iable to you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of

MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67c3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 3825 Highland... Page 1 of 1

Notes

mapquest 2

!
Trip to: !
3825 Highland Ave
Downers Grove, IL 60515-1552 i

1.46 miles
2 minutes

All righls reserved. Use subjact to Licgnser ngh

Direclions and maps are Informational only. Wa make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions ar route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and s suppfiers shall not be liable to you for any Ioss or delay resulting ltom your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest meens you egree to our Terms of Use :

hitp://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67¢3c7110b433 371572011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 6300 Kingery H... Page 1 of 1

Notes

Trip to:

6300 Kingery Hwy

Willowbrook, L 60527-2248
7.56 miles 1
11 minutes o ot et e e e e

- EE-J}FW-"-Y e 0

) A ara AT

T il ; e = et
S I
h_-:'é,?“"‘ o

o N A
T 3etst. .

Al righls reserved. Lise subject to License/Copyright

Direclions and maps are informalional onty. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expediliousness. You assume all fisk of use. Maptiuest and fis supphers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from your usa of

MapQuest, Your use of MapQuest moans you agree to our Terms of Lige

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba%1d8c67¢3c7110b433 311512011
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1213 Butterticld Rd, Downers Grove, IL 60515 to 2400 Woif Rd, Westchester, IL 60154 ... Page ] of 2

Directions to 2400 Wollf Rd, Westichester, IL
Google mapsS  cotss

7.7 mi - about 14 mins

(Save trees. Go green

Download Google Maps on your
phone at goagle.com/gmm

e

7

I 4
B Cpestonss
GRICUD %o

http://maps.google.com/maps?f=d&source=s_d&saddr=1213+Butterfield+Road,+Downers... 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, llinois to 1359 N Neltnor ... Page1of1

mapquest = e

Trip to:

1859 N Neltnor Blvd

West Chicago, 1L 60185-5900
14.97 miles

23 minutes

—
t‘iz_-ﬁw.‘:_.« .

=utr:!wn
P

-

Al ri reserved, Use suble License/ igh

Directions and maps are informetional only. We make no warrantias on the accuracy of their content, road conditions oF routs usability or
expedilicusness. You assume gl risk of use. MapQuesl and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulling om your use of
MapQuest, Your use of MapQues! means you agree 10 our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67¢3¢7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butierfield Rd, Downers Grove, lilinois to 1300 S Oak St,... Pagelofl

Notes

mapquest’ m2

Trip to:

1300 S Oak St

West Chicago, iL 60185-3944

11.87 miles :

18 minutes © o e et e e

I

e the

Il righ rved. Use sub) to License/Copyngh!

Directions and maps are informalional ondy, YWe make no warmanties on the acouracy of their content, road conditions or roule usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all isk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be Yiable to you for any loss or delay resuling from your use of
MapQuesl. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633¢cd11340f50417946 4/11/2011
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Driving Directions trom 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 1156 S Roselle ... Page lof1

mapquest &

Trip to:
1156 S Roselle Rd
Schaumburg, IL 60193-4072
15.70 miles .
' 23 minutes e e e e e e e e

All righly reservad. Use subject to License/Copyright

Directions and maps are informational onty, We make no waranlies on the accuracy of their content, road condilions of route usabllity or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppllers shall net be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.corc.bb68ba91d8c67c3¢7110b433 3/1572011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 3150 W Higgins... Page 1 of 1

mapquest m® |

Trip to:

3150 W Higgins Rd
Hoffman Estates, IL 60169-7237 '
22.08 miles ;
32 minutes

Al righis r ed [lee subject g License/ igh

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their conlent, road conditions or route usability or
expedifiousness. You assume all risk of use, MapQuest and its suppliers shall nol be ligble to you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http:/fwww.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633cd11340f50417946 4/11/2011
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s

Univing Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, [llinois to 1940 Springer D... Page 1 of 1

: . @ Notes_ o o
mapquest
Trip to:
1940 Springer Dr
Lombard, IL 60148-6419
1.67 miles
4 minutes

- P S i
i ) I

A

H
»

L O
I/, e

g
R

man
W
Y

ST T

)

§

_Gentre Cile Bry_:"

7 TR, ]

e
=y

Sie

._._.‘ _.._.._E.g

o

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/C i

Directions and maps are informational only, YWe make no warranies on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or rowte usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all sk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be tiable to you for any loss or deley resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree 1o our Terms of Use

http:/www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba%1d8c67c3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions trom 1213 Buttertield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 520 North Ave; ... Page 1of1

Trip to:

520 North Ave
Glendale Heights, IL 60139-3119 !
7.41 miles .
12 minutes _ L e e e e o e e e = @ i

%,

= N @y
TR &

E:

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of Iheir content, road conditions or route usability or
expaditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you tor any loss or defay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapCuest means you agres to our Tems of Use .

http://fwww.mapquest.com/print?a=app.corc.bb68ba9 1d8¢67c3c7110b433 3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Tlinois to 820 Biesterfield ... Page 1 of 1

Notes

mapquest’ 2

Trip to: |
820 Biesterfield Rd

Elk Grove Village, IL 60007-7335
13.55 miles

19 minutes bl

{ e
 Vilage - -

i

T

i

R
i

£

)

:suq!r%ﬂh -

v T

1" YorKCente,

—

All rights recerved subiject 1o Li e/Capyti

oute usability or

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or r
sulting from your uge of

axpediliousness. You assume all risk of use, MapQuest and Its suppliers shall not be fiable 1o you for any loss or delay re
MapQuesl. Your use of MapQuest means you agree o our Temms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633cd 1134050417946 4/11/2011

Appendix 2




Driving Directions from 1213 Buttcrfield Rd, Downers Grove, Hlinois to {309-3 17] York ... Pagelofl

mapquest m> RS e

Trip to: ;
{309-317] York Rd ;
Eimhurst, IL 60126 :
10.40 miles i
16 minutes ¢

Hen JUh a3 B EAPS
GBI BRI 81 e
Pty s = LT

A P s

@

I

All ights reserved. Use subject fo License/! ight

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditlons or routq usability o
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you fer any loss or delay resulting from your use of
MapQuesl. Your use of MapQuest maans you agree to our Termg of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633cd 1134050417946 4/11/2011
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O

. Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 4180 Winnetka ... Page 1 of |

mapquest @

. Trip to:

4180 Winnetka Ave

Rolling Meadows, IL 60008-1375
19.78 miles :
26 minutes O

All fighls rese Use subie, i {Coa)

Directions and maps are informational only. YWWe maka no warmranties on the accuracy of their coniert, road condilions or roule usahility or
expeditiousness. You essume al risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall nol be liable to you for any loss or delay resutting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuesl means you egree to our Terms of Use ’

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.bb68ba91d8c67¢c3c7110b433 ' 311522011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, Illinois to 17 W Golf Rd, ...

Notes

mapquest m®

Trip to:

17 W Golf Rd _
Arlington Heights, IL 60005-3905
18.65 miles

26 minutes T S

All rights reserved, Use subject 10 License/Copyright

Page | of 1

Directions and maps are informational enly. We make no wamanties on the accuraty of their conlent, road conditions or route usability or
expediliousness. You assume afl risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be [able to you for any loss or delay resulting from your use of

MapQuest Your use of MapQuest means you agree to aur Terms of Use

http:/fwww.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core. bb68ba91d8c67¢3c7110b433

3/15/2011
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Driving Directions from 1213 Butterfield Rd, Downers Grove, lllinois to 1625 Qakton PL,... Page ! of}

Notes

mapgquest m>

Trip to:

1625 Qakton Pl

Des Plaines, iL 60018-2002
19.28 miles

28 minutes e e

e )
OBy 1

o) :;1_ ST
EERIEHICAGO

TR T
ol

pies{ 1 174 . - L
= - 3 .

. P
- .. 3

I

,3, =
25

3

All rights reserved. U ubiect fo Licen opyright

Directions and maps are informalienal only, We make no warranlies on the accuracy of their content, road congitions o route usabllity or
expeditiousness. You assume gl nisk of use. MapQuest and Its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss o delay resulting from your use of
MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Tenns of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.cdfa0633cd11340£50417946 4/11/2011
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o NoteS o e
mapquest' m
Trip to: ;
Orland Park, IL :
21.31 miles ;

30 minutes

AT | NIRRT
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